
 

      Downtown Investment Authority 

Hybrid Virtual In-Person Meeting  
Wednesday, February 19th, 2025  

2:00 PM 
 

 
 

 
 

MEMBERS: 
Patrick Krechowski, Esq., Board Chair  
Micah Heavener, Vice Chair  
Sondra Fetner, Esq., Secretary   
Scott Wohlers     

John Hirabayashi 
Jill Caffey 
Cameron Hooper 

 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

III. COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
A. Form 8B: Voting Conflict Disclosures 
B. January 31st, 2025, Community Redevelopment Agency Meeting Minutes 

Approval 
C. Resolution 2025-02-01 Site A and Site B Disposition 
D. Resolution 2025-02-02 Convention Center Dispostion of Option 
E. Resolution 2025-02-03 Train Station Dispostion of Option 
F. Resolution 2025-02-04 Gateway Acquistion and Dispostions 
G. Resolution 2025-02-05 801 West Bay Disposition 
H. Resolution 2025-02-06 21 E Adams Façade 
I. Resolution 2025-02-07 Baptist Allocation of Development Rights 
J. Resolution 2025-02-08 Former Landing Access Agreement 

 
IV. DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

A. January 31st, 2025, Downtown Investment Authority Board Meeting Minutes 
Approval 

B. Consent Agenda 
a. Resolution 2025-02-09 LaVilla Sounds Event Contribution 

 
V. OLD BUSINESS 

 
VI. NEW BUSINESS 

 
VII. CEO INFORMATIONAL BRIEFING 

A. CEO Monthly Update 
 

VIII. CHAIRMAN REPORT 
 

IX. OTHER MATTERS TO BE ADDED AT THE DISCRETION OF THE CHAIR 



Downtown Investment Authority January 2025 Board Meeting 
           Page 2 of 2       

 
 

 
X. ADJOURN 

 
PHYSICAL LOCATION 
Jacksonville Public Library-Main Library/Downtown  
303 North Laura Street 
Multipurpose Room (located in the Conference Center) 
Jacksonville, Florida 32202 

 
 VIRTUAL LOCATION 

Interested persons desiring to attend this meeting virtually can do so via Zoom (including by 
computer or telephone) using the following meeting access information: 

 
Join Zoom Webinar 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87990789951?pwd=6D95Mq0jlJ1V4PLG9oxpc7UWGLTOSL.1 

 
Webinar ID: 879 9078 9951 
Passcode: 062932 

 
One tap mobile 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

 
International numbers available: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/keJuzyhyuj 
  

 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87990789951?pwd=6D95Mq0jlJ1V4PLG9oxpc7UWGLTOSL.1
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/keJuzyhyuj


TAB III.B 

JANAURY 31ST, 2025 COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING 
MINUTES APPROVAL 



 

PAGE 1 OF 7 

 

Community Redevelopment Agency 

Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting 

Friday, January 31st, 2025, 9:00 a.m. 

Community Redevelopment Agency Hybrid Meeting 

MEETING MINUTES 

 

DIA Board Members: Patrick Krechowski, Esq.; Micah Heavener; Sondra Fetner, Esq.; Scott Wohlers, 

Jim Citrano; Jill Caffey; and John Hirabayashi 

 

Mayor’s Office: None 

 

Council Members: None 

 

DIA Staff: Lori Boyer, Chief Executive Officer; Steve Kelley, Director of Downtown Real Estate and 

Development; Guy Parola, Director of Operations; and Ava Hill, Administrative Assistant 

 

Office of General Counsel: John Sawyer, Esq. 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

Patrick Krechowski, Board Chair, called the Board Meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. and asked for introductions 

from the Board and Staff. He recognized Board Member Jim Citrano and advised that it would be his last 

Board meeting. He expressed his appreciation for his work with the Board and mentioned formally honoring 

him at a future meeting. He also mentioned that Board Member Melinda Powers was also resigning from 

the Board. 

 

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 

John Nooney                  8356 Bascom Rd  JSO Trespass Citation, Jacksonville University, and 

Pottsburg Creek Acquisition 

    

III. COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 

A. FORM 8B: VOTING CONFLICT DISCLOSURES 

   

None. 

 

B. DECEMBER 18TH, 2024, COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING 

MINUTES APPROVAL 

 

Board Chair Krechowski called for a motion on the meeting minutes as presented. 

 

Motion:  Board Member Fetner motioned to approve the meeting minutes. 

Seconded: Board Member Citrano seconded the motion. 

 

Board Chair Krechowski called for a vote on the meeting minutes. 

 

Vote:  Aye: 7  Nay: 0  Abstain: 0  

 



 

PAGE 2 OF 7 

 

Community Redevelopment Agency 

Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting 

Friday, January 31st, 2025, 9:00 a.m. 

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 7-0-0 

 

C. RESOLUTION 2024-01-01 DOROTHY’S DOWNTOWN MODIFICATION  

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY ("DIA") 

ACTING AS THE COMBINED NORTHBANK COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT 

AGENCY ("GRANTOR") MODIFIYING THE REQUIRED HOURS OF OPERATION 

FOR THAT TERM SHEET RELATING TO DOROTHY'S DOWNTOWN AS 

PREVIOUSLY APPROVED BY THE DIA VIA RESOLUTION 2024-09-02; 

AUTHORIZING THE DIA CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER ("CEO") TO TAKE ALL 

ACTION NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES OF THIS RESOLUTION, 

INCLUDING ENTERING INTO A REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT OR 

FUNCTIONAL EQUIVALENT WITH THE HIDDEN DISTRICT, LLC AND 21 E ADAMS 

ST, LLC ("GRANTEES"); PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mr. Steve Kelley explained that the Board originally approved a $167,380 FAB REP grant for 

Dorothy's restaurant at the former Burrito Gallery site on Adam Street and that the only 

modification was a reduction in the restaurant's operating hours. Initially, the owner planned 

broader hours but now requests flexibility to expand as staff and clientele grow. The revised hours 

are Wednesday–Sunday from 3 PM to 9 or 10 PM, which still aligns with program guidelines. 

The change slightly lowered the score from 42 to 39, but it was still above the required 30.  

 

Board Chair Krechowski called for a motion on the resolution. 

 

Motion: Board Member Heavener motioned to approve the resolution.  

Seconded: Board Member Wohlers seconded the motion. 

 

Board Chair Krechowski opened the floor for discussion. 

 

Board Member Fetner mentioned lunch service not being an option at the time and asked is there a 

plan to update the program accordingly. Lori Boyer responded that staff would not restrict the FAB 

REP to somebody that's open lunch and dinner or lunch and breakfast and that she thought they 

should allow for the dinner only opportunity. 

 

Board Chair Krechowski added that he would not want to limit anyone if they were just doing 

evening hours. Also, maybe they could consider additional incentives to encourage opening during 

lunch. 

 

Seeing no further discussion, Board Chair Krechowski called for a vote on the resolution. 

 

Vote:  Aye: 7  Nay: 0  Abstain: 0 

 

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 7-0-0 

 

 

 



 

PAGE 3 OF 7 
 

Community Redevelopment Agency 

Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting 

Friday, January 31st, 2025, 9:00 a.m. 

 

D. RESOLUTION 2025-01-02 FEST PARK AVE SIGNAGE  

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY ("DIA") 

ACTING AS THE COMBINED NORTHBANK COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT 

AGENCY PROVIDING TO WJCT, INC., A FLORIDA NOT FOR PROFIT 

CORPORATION, AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED TWO HUNDRED FIFTY 

THOUSAND ($250,000) FOR DEVELOPMENT OF A MASTER WAYFINDING AND 

SIGNAGE PLAN TOGETHER WITH FABRICATION AND INSTALLATION OF 

SIGNAGE FOR THAT CITY-OWNED PROPERTY CURRENTLY LEASED BY 

GRANTEE; AUTHORIZING THE DIA CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER ("CEO") TO 

UNDERTAKE ALL NECESSARY ACTION TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES OF 

THIS RESOLUTION, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO NEGOTIATION AND 

EXECUTION OF CONTRACTS, AGREEMENTS OR FUNCTIONAL EQUIVALENTS 

THEREOF; AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER OF FUNDS IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

EXHIBIT 'A' TO THIS RESOLUTION; A PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mr. Guy Parola explained that the resolution is for a contribution of up to $250,000 to support 

WJCT with wayfinding and other signage due to disruptions caused by city-led construction 

projects near Festival Park. Since the city owns the property and wants its tenant to succeed, this 

funding will cover both past and future signage expenses. The resolution clarifies the approved 

contribution limit and ensures WJCT follows DDRB review processes. The DIA CEO is 

authorized to negotiate further terms, and staff will assist with permitting to support the tenant's 

needs. 

 

Board Chair Krechowski called for a motion on the resolution. 

 

Motion: Board Member Citrano motioned to approve the resolution.  

Seconded: Board Member Fetner seconded the motion. 

 

Board Chair Krechowski opened the floor for discussion. 

 

Board Member Hirabayashi asked how did staff come up with the $250,000? Mr. Parola responded 

that staff anticipate that there's going to be a lot of signage and a lot of wayfinding signage. He then 

explained the details. 

 

Board Member Heavener asked if the funds were for things that have already been constructed, or 

the funds for things to be constructed. Mr. Parola responded that it was for both and that they've 

already incurred expenses. 

 

Board Member Wohlers asked how much has been spent already. Mrs. Hodges, Attorney for WJCT, 

responded that the costs that have already been incurred were about $23,000 or $25,000 and that 

the bulk of this funding is going towards the new wayfinding.  

 

Seeing no further discussion, Board Chair Krechowski called for a vote on the resolution. 

 



 

PAGE 4 OF 7 
 

Community Redevelopment Agency 

Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting 

Friday, January 31st, 2025, 9:00 a.m. 

Vote:  Aye: 7  Nay: 0  Abstain: 0 

 

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 7-0-0 

 

E. RESOLUTION 2025-01-03 MOSH PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE  

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY (THE "DIA") 

RECOMMENDING AMENDMENTS TO THE PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE 

APPROVED IN RESOLUTION 2024-08-01 AND IN THE AMENDED AND RESTATED 

REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AMONG THE CITY, DIA, AND MUSEUM OF 

SCIENCE AND HISTORY, INC. ("MOSH") DATED NOVEMEBER 1, 2024, ("RDA) AND 

RELATED DOCUMENTS WITH ALL OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE 

RDA AND RELATED DOCUMENTS REMAINING UNCHANGED; AUTHORIZING 

THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF THE DIA (THE "CEO") TO AMEND 

PROPOSED LEGISLATION TO ENACT THE MODIFICATIONS TO THE RDA AND 

RELATED DOCUMENTS; AUTHORIZE THE CEO TO EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS; 

AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

CEO Lori Boyer explained that the resolution updates the performance schedule for the MOSH 

Museum Project to reflect its current progress. In August, the Board approved converting the 

project to a city-owned museum with MOSH leasing the building. With City Council funding 

secured, the revised schedule accounts for design adjustments, addressing parking concerns. 

MOSH must maintain its current number of on-site parking spaces, requiring some redesign. 

While the overall completion date remains unchanged, the timeline for design milestones has been 

extended.  

 

Board Chair Krechowski called for a motion on the resolution. 

 

Motion: Board Member Wohlers motioned to approve the resolution.  

Seconded: Board Member Heavener seconded the motion. 

 

Seeing no discussion, Board Chair Krechowski called for a vote on the resolution. 

 

Vote:  Aye: 7  Nay: 0  Abstain: 0 

 

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 7-0-0 

 

 

F. RESOLUTION 2025-01-04 RESCIND BERKMANN APPROVAL  

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY ("DIA") 

DIRECTING ITS CEO TO TAKE ALL NECESSARY ACTIONS TO FORMALLY 

TERMINATE THE JULY 23, 1999 REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT ("RDA") 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE ("CITY"), DIA AND DB HOLDINGS, LLC 

("DEVELOPER"), AS SUBSEQUENTLY AMENDED, REGARDING DEVELOPMENT 

OF THE BERKMAN PLAZA RESIDENTIAL HOUSING DEVELOPMENT IN TWO 



 

PAGE 5 OF 7 
 

Community Redevelopment Agency 

Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting 

Friday, January 31st, 2025, 9:00 a.m. 

PHASES ON EAST BAY STREET BETWEEN LIBERTY STREET AND CA THERINE 

STREET; FINDING THAT THE DEVELOPER FAILED TO MEET THE 

PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE UNDER THE RDA FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE 

PHASE II PROPERTY; AUTHORIZING THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE TO OTHERWISE 

TAKE ALL NECESSARY ACTION IN CONNECTION HEREWITH TO EFFECTUATE 

THE PURPOSES OF THIS RESOLUTION; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

CEO Lori Boyer explained that the resolution terminates an old JEDC redevelopment agreement 

for the Berkman 2 site to help facilitate its sale. After the city's demolition and foreclosure process, 

Choate, the current owner, is negotiating a sale. Both the buyer’s and seller’s attorneys requested 

assistance in clearing the site’s record. The termination avoids complications of identifying 

successors or issuing default notices while ensuring that any valid permits remain unaffected. This 

cleanup effort aims to support a potential closing in February or March. 

 

Board Chair Krechowski called for a motion on the resolution. 

 

Motion: Board Member Heavener motioned to approve the resolution.  

Seconded: Board Member Citrano seconded the motion. 

 

Board Chair Krechowski opened the floor for discussion. 

 

Board Chair Krechowski asked if approving the resolution would release or otherwise unburden 

any funds that may have been allocated or being held or are we passed that. CEO Boyer responded 

that they were way past that. 

 

Jim Citrano asked if the RDA was recorded. CEO Boyer responded no and then explained. 

 

Sondra Fetner asked if the Board would be eliminating any standing to code enforcements. CEO 

Boyer responded that she didn’t know if there were any outstanding code enforcement violations. 

 

John Sawyer added that code enforcement liens have a life of their own and are independent of 

the RDA. 

 

Seeing no further discussion, Board Chair Krechowski called for a vote on the resolution. 

 

Vote:  Aye: 7  Nay: 0  Abstain: 0 

 

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 7-0-0 

 

 

G. RESOLUTION 2025-01-08 LAVILLA PARCELS ACCESS AGREEMENT  

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY (“DIA”) 

AUTHORIZING ITS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO”) TO EXECUTE A SITE 

ACCESS AGREEMENT (“AGREEMENT”) WITH THE UNIVESITY OF FLORIDA FOR 

THE PURPOSE OF CONDUCTING DUE DILIGENCE ACTIVITIES, INCLUDING 



 

PAGE 6 OF 7 
 

Community Redevelopment Agency 

Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting 

Friday, January 31st, 2025, 9:00 a.m. 

ENVIRONMENTAL AND GEOTECHNICAL EXPLORATION, SURVEY, UTILITY 

LOCATION, ETC. FOR  THOSE CERTAIN CITY OWNED REAL PROPERTIES 

IDENTIFIED BY REAL ESTATE NUMBERS 074836-0000, 074837-0000, 074838-0000, 

074839-0000, 074840-0000, 074487-0020, AND 074887-0000 AS ILLUSTRATED BY 

EXIHIBT ‘A’; AUTHORIZING ITS CEO TO NEGOTIATE TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

PRIOR TO EXECUTION OF A SITE ACCESS AGREEMENT; INSTRUCTING ITS CEO 

TO OBTAIN APPROVAL FROM THE CITY’S RISK MANAGER, DIRECTOR OF 

PUBLIC WORKS AND THE OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNCIL PRIOR TO 

EXECUTION OF THE  AGREEMENT; INSTRUCTING THE CEO TO TAKE ALL 

NECESSARY ACTION TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSE OF THIS RESOLUTION; 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

CEO Lori Boyer explained that the resolution is a provision that allows DIA to provide access 

agreements on properties assigned to DIA’s inventory and city owned property. The access 

agreement allows someone to conduct due diligence activities such as geotechnical investigation, 

site surveying for legal descriptions, etc. She mentioned changing the language from an access 

agreement to one or more access agreements because there are multiple parcels, and the scope of 

the activity may vary. She mentioned that staff have not finalized or negotiated the terms of the 

actual access agreements, but the resolution provides the CEO with the authority to enter into 

agreements and allow them to start due diligence sooner rather than later. 

 

Board Chair Krechowski called for a motion on the resolution. 

 

Motion: Board Member Fetner motioned to approve the resolution.  

Seconded: Board Member Heavener seconded the motion. 

 

Board Chair Krechowski opened the floor for discussion. 

 

Board Member Hirabayashi asked if there was a big cleanup and if they were related. CEO Boyer 

responded that she didn’t believe there was. John Sawyer added that code enforcement liens have 

a life of their own and are independent of the RDA. 

 

Board Chair Krechowski commented that they were talking about access versus any actual impact 

to the property itself.  

 

Sondra Fetner asked if they would be able to receive copies of the reports. CEO Boyer responded 

yes. 

 

Board Member Citrano asked if the area is within the Downtown Brownfield designation. CEO 

Boyer responded that she couldn’t answer that question definitively but mentioned that she believed 

most of the Downtown area is within the Brownfield designation. 

 

Seeing no further discussion, Board Chair Krechowski called for a vote on the resolution. 

 

Vote:  Aye: 7  Nay: 0  Abstain: 0 

 



 

PAGE 7 OF 7 
 

Community Redevelopment Agency 

Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting 

Friday, January 31st, 2025, 9:00 a.m. 

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 7-0-0 

 

 

IV.  ADJOURNMENT 

 

Board Chair Krechowski adjourned the CRA meeting at 9:41 AM. 

 

The written minutes for this meeting are only an overview of what was discussed.  For verbatim comments 

of this meeting, a recording is available upon request.  Please contact Ava Hill at avah@coj.net to 

acquire a recording of the meeting. And  

mailto:avah@coj.net


TAB III.C 

RESOLUTION 2025-02-01 SITE A AND SITE B DISPOSITION 



RESOLUTION 2025-02-01 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

(“DIA”) INSTRUCTING ITS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO”) TO 

ISSUE A 30-DAY NOTICE OF DISPOSITION IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

FLORIDA STATUTES AND THE NEGOTIATED DISPOSITION POLICY 

APPROVED BY ORDINANCE 2022-372-E; AUTHORIZING THE 

PUBLICATION OF A NOTICE OF DISPOSITION FOR THE FEE 

SIMPLE DISPOSITION OF APPROXIMATELY 2.36 ACRES OF CITY 

OWNED PROPERTY PARTIALLY IMPROVED BY A SURFACE 

PARKING LOT AS DEPICTED ON EXHIBIT A ATTACHED HERETO 

AND IDENTIFIED BY DUVAL COUNTY TAX PARCEL NUMBER 

074487 0020 (“SITE A") AND APPROXIMATELY 1.22 ACRES OF 

UNIMPROVED PROPERTY AS DEPICTED ON EXHIBIT B ATTACHED 

HERETO AND IDENTIFIED BY DUVAL COUNTY TAX PARCEL 

NUMBERS RE# 074836 0000, RE# 074837 0000, RE#074838 0000, RE# 

074839 0000 AND RE# 074840 0000 (“SITE B”, AND TOGETHER WITH 

SITE A, THE “PROPERTY”); EXPRESSING THE INTENTION, ABSENT 

HIGHER RESPONSIVE OFFERS, TO DISPOSE OF SAID PROPERTY IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH THE NEGOTIATED TERMS ATTACHED 

HERETO AS EXHIBIT C, AND ESTABLISHING THE TERMS OF THE 

PUBLISHED NOTICE OF DISPOSITION ATTACHED HERETO AS 

EXHIBIT D; AND FINDING THAT THIS RESOLUTION FURTHERS 

THE BUSINESS INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT (“BID”) PLAN, 

INCLUDING THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AREA PLAN; 

AUTHORIZING THE CEO OF THE DIA TO TAKE ALL ACTION 

NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES OF THIS 

RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, via Ordinance 2012-0364-E, the City Council created the Downtown 

Investment Authority, designating the DIA as the City’s Community Redevelopment Agency for 

the Combined Northbank Downtown Community Redevelopment Area and authorizing it to 

approve and negotiate economic development agreements and dispose of City-owned property; 

and 

WHEREAS, DIA is the designated Community Redevelopment Agency for the 

Northbank CRA, for which a Business Investment and Development Plan, inclusive of a 

Community Redevelopment Plan, (“BID/CRA Plan”) was adopted by Ordinance 2014-560-E 

and updated by Ordinance 2022-372-E; and 

WHEREAS, Section 55.108 of the Jacksonville Code of Ordinances grants certain 

powers and duties to the DIA, including: 



 

Page 2 of 17 

 

 

Interpreting the BID/CRA Plan and approving development and redevelopment projects 

within Downtown. 

 

Implementing the BID/CRA Plan, and negotiating and approving downtown development 

and redevelopment agreements, grant agreements, license agreements, and lease 

agreements.  

 

Planning and proposing Projects and Public facilities within Downtown; and 

 

Subject to Section 122.434, Ordinance Code (Procedure for disposition of Community 

Development Property), hold, control, manage, lease, sell, dedicate, grant, or otherwise 

dispose of any of the City’s Downtown assets and properties managed by the DIA, or any 

interest therein. 

 

WHEREAS the City owns approximately 2.36 acres of real property identified by Duval 

County Tax Parcel Number RE# 074487 0020 (Site A”); and approximately 1.22 acres of real 

property identified by Duval County Tax Parcel Numbers RE# 074836 0000, RE# 074837 0000, 

RE# 074838 0000, RE# 074839 0000 and RE# 074840 0000 (“Site B”) within the Combined 

Downtown Northbank Community Redevelopment Area (“Northbank CRA”) which are assigned 

to the Northbank CRA for redevelopment; and 

 

WHEREAS, University of Florida has presented to the DIA an acquisition and master 

plan for improvements within the Downtown Northbank Community Redevelopment Area that 

proposes the development of a University of Florida Campus in Downtown Jacksonville; and 

 

WHEREAS, University of Florida proposes to acquire and improve Site A with a 

minimum of 60,000 square feet of new building space and Site B with a minimum of 20,000 

square feet of new building space (subject to the right to decrease the minimum square footage 

on one Site and correspondingly increase the minimum square footage on the other Site) to be 

used as part of an educational campus that is expected to contain such features as higher 

educational classrooms, research, office, residences, retail, food and beverage, services, parking 

and ancillary uses, all as integral components of the broader master plan proposed; and   

 

WHEREAS, the DIA finds that such University of Florida Jacksonville Campus is 

consistent with the Conceptual Master Plan and the adopted vision for the LaVilla and 

Convention Center Catalyst sites contained in the adopted BID Plan for the Downtown 

Northbank CRA as well as the adopted LaVilla Neighborhood Development Strategy; and 

 

WHEREAS, DIA entered negotiation with University of Florida regarding the terms of 

the disposition and redevelopment in accordance with DIA’s approved negotiated disposition 

process and the essential terms of the redevelopment proposal including certain of University of 



 

Page 3 of 17 

 

Florida's obligations and conditions to closing on Site A and Site B are set forth in the Term 

Sheet attached as Exhibit C; and 

 

WHEREAS, DIA has established the terms upon which a public notice of disposition 

will be published as set forth in Exhibit D; and  

 

WHEREAS, to determine fair value for the Property pursuant to Florida Statutes Chapter 

163.380(2), and as required by City of Jacksonville Code of Ordinances §122.432, the DIA has 

engaged an appraiser to appraise the various parcels involved in the disposition; and  

 

WHEREAS, development of the University of Florida Jacksonville Campus proposed 

creates higher education opportunities expected to attract top-tier students from around the world 

where such development will generate interest in development of a long underutilized historic 

area of Downtown Jacksonville, draw firms into the area creating new employment 

opportunities, and put City-owned properties to use for the overall benefit of the local 

community; and 

 

WHEREAS, the DIA finds that the proposed disposition and redevelopment proposal 

further the following Redevelopment Goal and Strategic Objectives found in the BID/CRA Plan: 

 

Redevelopment Goal 1: Increase…job growth to reinforce Downtown as the 

region’s epicenter for business. 

 

Through the creation of an educational campus of a top tier university within Downtown, 

Downtown will be positioned to provide a highly trained workforce to businesses seeking 

to locate within Downtown and the region. Further, the location of a major research 

institute within the proposed campus will further solidify Downtown as the region’s 

epicenter for business. 

 

Redevelopment Goal 2: Increase rental and owner-occupied housing Downtown… 

 

The proposed campus will increase the demand for housing within the immediate vicinity 

as well as throughout Downtown. In addition, some student housing is envisioned to be 

part of the campus or developed nearby. 

 

Strategic Objectives: 

• Actively pursue a minimum of 8,140 built and occupied multi-family dwelling units 

by 2030; and strive to induce construction of 425 multifamily dwelling units per year, 

on average. 

• Improve the breadth and diversity of housing options across Downtown Jacksonville 

to provide all types and varied price ranges of rental and owner-occupied 

opportunities, including mixed-income and mixed-use structures. 



 

Page 4 of 17 

 

 

Redevelopment Goal No. 3: Increase and diversify the number and type of retail, 

food and beverage, and entertainment establishments within Downtown. 

  

The proposed campus will include multiple mixed-use buildings that include publicly 

accessible food and beverage or other retail establishments including the proposed 

building to be developed on Site B. 

  

 Strategic Objectives: 

• Increase the number of retail, food and beverage, and entertainment establishments 

that are open for business weekends and other times outside of weekday business 

hours. 

• Pursue the addition of one or more new neighborhood restaurant/entertainment 

venues in each District by 2025 and a second by 2030. 

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed disposition will facilitate the creation of higher education 

opportunities expected to attract top tier students from around the world, generate interest in 

development of a long underutilized historic area of Downtown Jacksonville, draw firms into the 

area creating new employment opportunities, and put City owned properties to use for the overall 

benefit of the local community, 

 

WHEREAS, at a publicly noticed meeting held on February13, 2025, the DIA Retail 

Enhancement and Property Disposition Committee (“REPD”) recommended that the DIA Board 

adopt Resolution 2025-02-01 and 

 

WHEREAS, upon adoption of this Resolution, a 30-day public notice for the solicitation 

of proposals pursuant to Section 163.380(3)(a), Florida Statutes, and Sections 122.434(a) and 

(b), Jacksonville Ordinance Code, will be issued. 

  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment Authority: 

  

Section 1. The recitals set forth above are true and correct and are hereby 

incorporated herein by this reference.   

 

Section 2.   The DIA has determined that in furtherance of its plan to facilitate 

development in the Downtown Northbank Community Redevelopment Area the Property should 

be developed for use as a University of Florida Campus in accordance with the terms outlined in 

Exhibit C, attached herein, unless a responsive proposal of greater value is received, and that the 

commitments of the University of Florida regarding development of the property constitute fair 

value for the land 

 



Page 5 of 17 

Section 3.  The DIA instructs the Chief Executive Officer of the Downtown 

Investment Authority to take all action necessary to effectuate the thirty (30) day Notice of 

Disposition for the Property in accordance with its Negotiated Notice of Disposition Process and 

pursuant to the terms set forth in Exhibit D and consistent with Florida Statutes and the 

Ordinance Code.  

Section 4. Proposals received, if any, will be reviewed by the DIA Chief Executive 

Officer, who will make a recommendation to the DIA Board regarding any responsive alternate 

proposals received. 

Section 5. If no alternate responsive and qualified proposals are received, or if they 

are determined by the CEO to be lower in value or unresponsive, the DIA authorizes its CEO to 

finalize negotiation of a Redevelopment Agreement with University of Florida substantially in 

accordance with the terms set forth on Exhibit C, and including such additional dispositions as 

may be approved and authorized by Resolution, and file legislation seeking approval of the 

disposition and Redevelopment Agreement and associated documents with City Council. 

Section 6. The DIA Board hereby authorizes the CEO of the Downtown Investment 

Authority to take all action necessary to effectuate the purposes of this Resolution. 

Section 7. This Resolution, 2025-02-01, shall become effective on the date it is 

signed by the Chair of the DIA Board. 

WITNESS:   DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

______________________ _______________ 

      Patrick Krechowski, Esq., Chairman Date 

VOTE:  In Favor: ______ Opposed: ______ Abstained: ______       



 

Page 6 of 17 

 

     

Exhibit A to Resolution 2025-02-01 

 

SITE A 

 

Approximately 2.36 acres of property partially improved by a surface parking lot located in the 

LaVilla District within the Downtown Northbank Community Redevelopment Area of Downtown 

Jacksonville bounded by W Forsyth Street to the north, the adjacent improved parcel with RE# 

074487 0010 to the east (owned by an unrelated third party), W Bay Street to the south, and N 

Lee Street to the west and identified by Duval County Tax Parcel Numbers RE# 074487 0020. 

 



 

Page 7 of 17 

 

 

Exhibit B to Resolution 2025-02-01 

 

SITE B 

 

Approximately 1.22 acres of unimproved property located in the LaVilla District within the 

Downtown Northbank Community Redevelopment Area of Downtown Jacksonville bounded by W 

Forsyth Street to the north, N Lee Street to the east, W Bay Street to the south, and LaVilla Center 

Drive to the west and identified by Duval County Tax Parcel Numbers RE# 074836 0000, RE # 

074837 0000, RE0 #074838 0000, RE# 074839 0000 and RE# 074840 0000. 

 

 
  



 

Page 8 of 17 

 

Exhibit C to Resolution 2025-02-01 

 

Term Sheet for the Disposition of Real Property to the University of Florida 

 

 

Developer:  University of Florida 

 

The Property:  A 2.36 plus or minus acre parcel of land as depicted on Exhibit A (“Site A“) and a 

1.22 plus or minus acre parcel of land as depicted on Exhibit B (“Site B” and 

together with Site A, the “Property”) to be conveyed following award of the 

Property pursuant to a publicly noticed disposition consistent with the closing 

conditions below including  negotiation of a Redevelopment Agreement 

consistent with the terms set forth herein and approval by the Jacksonville City 

Council of legislation authorizing the same. 

 

Purchase Price: The consideration for Site A and Site B shall be the Developer’s commitment to 

development of the Site A Project and Site B Project on the parcels as described 

below and there shall be no cash purchase price paid for the land. 

 

The Site A  

Project: To include the design and construction of one or more Class A-buildings with a 

minimum of 60,000 total gross square SF on Site A, which may include features 

such as associated parking, retail space, and landscaping with a minimum capital 

investment of $80,000,000 on Site A. 

 

The Site B  

Project: To include the design and construction of one or more Class A-buildings with a 

minimum of 20,000 total gross square SF on Site B, which may include additional 

features such as associated parking, , and landscaping with a minimum capital 

investment of $20,000,000 in horizontal and vertical improvements related to 

the construction of such building(s) on Site B. The Site B development shall 

include a publicly accessible ground floor retail space facing the Emerald Trail. 

 

The Combined 

Project on 

the Property: Notwithstanding the requirements above for Site A and Site B, the Total Capital 

Investment and square footage minimums may be combined and the 

$100,000,000 investment and 80,000 total gross square footage reallocated 

between the parcels; however both parcels shall include occupiable buildings at 

buildout with a minimum square footage on each Site of 20,000 square feet, 



 

Page 9 of 17 

 

and may also include other improvements such as landscaping, passive parks 

and structured parking that contribute to campus programs and activity. For 

example, Developer may elect to construct 60,000 square feet of building 

improvements and other campus improvements with a minimum Capital 

Investment of $80,000,000 on one Site and 20,000 square feet of building 

improvements and other campus improvements on the other Site with a 

minimum Capital Investment of $20,000,000 in horizontal and vertical 

improvements related to such building(s) .   

 

 All improvements on the Property shall comply with the Downtown Zoning 

Overlay, subject to any deviation or variation as may be required for the 

improvements, with final approval by the Downtown Development Review 

Board (“DDRB”), or the COJ City Council as may be required (which may include 

deviations for maximum building height as may be requested by Developer and 

approved by City Council).  

 

Use Limitation: The Property shall be limited to use for a higher educational campus, including 

but not limited to  such features as: classrooms, research, laboratory, office and 

clinic uses, as well as residences, administration, retail, food, beverage,  parking, 

recreation and other uses and services, all supporting the campus  (“Campus 

Uses”); and the deed of conveyance will include such a restriction.  The Property 

may also be used as a construction laydown and staging area during 

construction. 
 

Capital  

Investment:  Capital Investment shall include hard costs incurred for site improvement and  

construction of the buildings at Site A or Site B including soft costs for 

architectural and engineering. However, Capital Investment shall not include the 

cost of tenant improvements for third party tenants unrelated to the University 

of Florida in any building owned by the University of Florida or its affiliates. 

 

Preconditions  

to Closing:   The closing and conveyance of Site A and Site B is expected to occur 

simultaneously. Conveyance will follow the Due Diligence period and approval 

by City Council and execution of the Redevelopment Agreement and associated 

documents by all parties, upon a mutually agreeable date but no later than 

December 20, 2025. The Redevelopment Agreement may contain certain 

additional conditions to closing as may be agreed upon by the parties. No 

closing on any parcel shall occur until the Developer has completed its due 



 

Page 10 of 17 

 

diligence and agreed to move forward without termination or the Due Diligence 

Period has expired. 

 

Redevelopment  

Agreement: The Redevelopment Agreement (sometimes referred to as the “RDA”) will 

establish, inter alia, the essential terms of the conveyance of the Property, the 

Developer’s rights and responsibilities with respect to design and use, the 

Developer’s and the City’s obligations with respect to construction of 

infrastructure improvements, if any, site remediation, improvements on the 

Property and other terms relevant to development of the Property including 

rights of reversion in favor of the DIA and the City if development activity does 

not occur after closing as agreed upon by the parties.  The RDA will become 

effective upon its execution following approval by COJ, and final University of 

Florida Board of Trustee approval, with an outside date for execution by 

Developer of forty-five (45) days following the effective date of the legislation 

(which date shall be set forth in the legislation). While this term sheet 

summarizes certain of the terms and conditions that will be contained in the 

RDA, it is not a complete statement of all such terms and conditions. Additional 

terms and conditions essential to implementation of the master plan will also be 

included in the RDA.  

 

Site  

Investigation:  The City will grant Developer early access to the Property to conduct inspections 

prior to execution of the Redevelopment Agreement. In addition, following the 

execution of the Redevelopment Agreement the Developer will have an 

additional period, if needed, to have a cumulative total of one hundred eighty 

(180) calendar days from the grant of access (the “Due Diligence Period”) to 

inspect and perform tests on the Property and any other LaVilla parcels 

awarded to Developer through disposition or included in the campus master 

plan. pursuant to a scope of work approved by Developer and the DIA to 

determine its suitability for the campus, and to investigate the quality and 

marketability of the title of the fee simple interest it will receive from the City. 

Upon providing written notice to the DIA, the Developer may terminate the 

Redevelopment Agreement and the Project any time within the Due Diligence 

Period without cause and without incurring any obligations under the 

Redevelopment Agreement. If no written termination notice is delivered by 

Developer to the DIA prior to the expiration of the Due Diligence Period, all 

remaining terms found in the Redevelopment Agreement shall be in effect. 

 



 

Page 11 of 17 

 

Environmental: City will provide access to the Property for any required investigation but shall 

not be liable for environmental issues that arise by actions taken by the 

Developer or its agents during inspection or following conveyance of the 

Property, including liability for any damage caused by Developer or its 

contractors during construction. 

 

Conveyance 

“AS IS”: Except for any representations and warranties or as otherwise may be agreed 

upon by the parties in the Redevelopment Agreement, the City agrees to convey 

Site A and Site B in “as-is” condition and is not undertaking any obligation, 

financial or otherwise, to remediate the sites, clear title, or otherwise.  

 

Form of Deed: The City will convey title by Quit Claim Deed as required by the Ordinance Code, 

unless waived. 

 

Documentary  

Stamps: The City is precluded by law from the payment of Documentary stamp taxes. 

Such taxes, if any, will be paid by Developer or someone on Developer’s behalf. 

 

Survey: DIA to provide Developer with a survey map and prepared legal description for 

each Site on or before the RDA execution date. If Developer desires a stamped 

survey depicting all improvements and easements, etc. the Developer shall 

obtain the same at its cost and expense. 

 

Title  

Commitment: DIA shall obtain and deliver to Developer a title commitment for each Site on or 

before the RDA execution date. Title insurance, if desired, shall be issued at 

closing at Developer’s expense. 

 

Appraisal: DIA shall obtain appraisals of Sites A and B as required for disposition at DIA’s 

expense and shall make the same available to Developer on or before execution 

of the RDA.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City will deed the Property to 

Developer for no monetary consideration in recognition of the other obligations 

of Developer set forth in the RDA. 

 

Restriction on  

Further Transfer:  Property to be deed restricted against further transfer without the approval of 

DIA except as may be otherwise set forth in the Redevelopment Agreement 

(such as conveyance to university direct-support organizations (as defined in 

Section 1004.28, Florida Statutes), university health services support 



 

Page 12 of 17 

 

organizations (as defined in Section 1004.29, Florida Statutes), and their 

subsidiaries). 

 

Reverter:   The Deed will include a reverter of Sites A and B in favor of the City in the event 

Developer fails to commence construction on Site A for its intended use as set 

forth herein within a period of 5 years after the closing (subject to force 

majeure) and a reverter of Site B only if after timely commencement of 

construction on Site A, Developer fails to commence horizontal construction  for 

the building meeting the minimum requirements on Site B for its intended use 

within a period of seven (7) years after closing (subject to force majeure).  In 

addition, the Property will be restricted to Campus Uses and subject to the 

restrictions on transfer set forth herein.   

 

Right of  

Repurchase: The Redevelopment Agreement or deed shall include a mutually agreeable right 

of repurchase to allow the City to re-acquire the Property if there is a cessation 

of Campus Uses, and it becomes dilapidated as defined between the parties. 

 

Entitlements:  Mobility Credits will be provided to Developer if Developer earns the same 

through its design in accordance with the criteria for the Mobility Fee Credit 

established in the adopted BID Strategy.  Stormwater Credits may be available 

for purchase by Developer in accordance with the ordinance governing the 

same once the quantity of credits required is known and subject to the 

availability of credits in the City or Downtown Stormwater Credit Bank. The DIA, 

pursuant to its authority via Chapter 55, Jacksonville Code of Ordinances, will 

allocate an aggregate of eighty thousand (80,000) square feet of 

government/institutional for use on Sites A and B. At or prior to commencing 

design for Site A, Developer will request, and DIA will allocate the required 

entitlements pursuant to a development plan for Site A.  At or prior to 

commencing design for Site B, Developer will request, and DIA will allocate the 

required entitlements pursuant to a development plan for Site B. Any unused 

entitlements previously allocated for use on Site A remaining after the last 

Certificate of Occupancy or functional equivalent on Site A will return to the DIA 

for its use and future allocation throughout the Central Business District without 

any further action by DIA. Any unused entitlements previously allocated for use 

on Site B remaining after the last Certificate of Occupancy or functional 

equivalent on Site B will return to the DIA for its use and future allocation 

throughout the Central Business District without any further action by DIA. 

 



 

Page 13 of 17 

 

Design: a) The Developer will design each building with the goal of creating educational 

campus buildings incorporating design and use considerations capable of 

attracting students and researchers for decades following their completion. 

The buildings will be designed with the intent to serve an important and 

functional purpose contributing to that which defines the City as a 

distinctive and leading urban research and learning campus and will remain 

visually and functionally beneficial with the passage of time. 

b) The design will comply with the Downtown Overlay Standards as enacted 

within the Jacksonville Municipal Code as well as the DDRB's development 

guidelines, except as may otherwise be approved by the DDRB and allowed 

by code. The design is subject to further review and approval of the 

Downtown Investment Authority for consistency with its BID and CRA Plan 

and of the DIA and COJ for consistency with associated adopted studies and 

plans. 

c) In collaboration with the City’s Chief Resiliency Officer and the Florida 

Institute for Built Environment Resilience, the design may include resiliency 

features, including to the extent practicable the design recommendations 

set forth in Resilient Jacksonville published in October 2023 and its update 

published in October 2024. 

d) Parking and landscaping will comply with the City's standard as found in the 

Downtown Design Standards, except as otherwise approved through 

deviations or variances.   

 

Performance  

Schedule: 

a) The Redevelopment Agreement will be entered into by the Developer, DIA 

and the City within forty-five (45) days following City Council approval 

legislation authorizing the same. Due Diligence period of one hundred eighty 

(180) days as defined above with termination rights as found in the 

Redevelopment Agreement. 

b) Conveyance of the Property to occur within thirty days of satisfaction of the 

conditions to closing, but not sooner than the earlier of the execution date 

of the Redevelopment Agreement and the Acceptance Date (defined as an 

affirmative letter delivered to the DIA within the Due Diligence period or 

with the expiration of the Due Diligence period with no termination letter 

provided by Developer). 

c) Developer must commence design of a least one Class A educational 

building on Site A comprising the minimum required square footage within 

six (6) months of closing and proceed diligently using commercially 



Page 14 of 17 

reasonable efforts to complete applications for permitting of horizontal and 

vertical construction of such building(s) within 24 months of closing. 

d) Commencement of Construction of Horizontal Improvements on Site A must

commence no later than six months following Developer’s receipt of

necessary permits and approvals for such work.

e) Commencement of Construction of Vertical Improvements must commence

on the Property within six months of completion of horizontal

improvements but in no event no later than eighteen (18) months following

Developer’s receipt of necessary permits and approvals for such Vertical

Improvement work.

f) Substantial Completion of the Construction of the initial 60,000 (or greater)

of Vertical Improvements on Site A (subject to the right to reallocate the

square footage between the Sites as set forth above) shall be diligently

pursued to completion using commercially reasonable efforts to achieve

Substantial Completion no later than 3 years after vertical commencement.

g) Developer must commence design of a least one Class A educational

building on Site B comprising the minimum required square footage thereon

within six (6) years of closing and proceed diligently using commercially

reasonable efforts to complete applications for permitting of horizontal and

vertical construction of such building(s).

h) Commencement of Construction of Horizontal Improvements on Site B must

commence no later than seven (7) years following closing.

i) Commencement of Construction of Vertical Improvements must commence

on the Property within six months of completion of Horizontal

improvements but in no event no later than eighteen (18) months following

Developer’s receipt of necessary permits and approvals for such work.

j) Substantial Completion of the Construction of the required 20,000 square

feet (or greater) of Vertical Improvements on Site B (subject to the right to

reallocate the square footage between the Sites as set forth above) shall be

diligently pursued to completion using commercially reasonable efforts to

achieve Substantial Completion no later than ten (10) years following

closing.

k) The foregoing deadlines will be subject to extensions of up to six (6) months

granted by the DIA's Chief Executive Officer and an additional up to six (6)

months by the DIA Board for both Site A and Site B independently without

additional City approval upon reasonable cause shown. In addition,

extensions shall be available for force majeure. Such extension of the

Commencement Date shall also apply to the date of Substantial Completion

of either Site A or Site B, so that a single extension provided to

Commencement will apply to Substantial Completion on that same Site.



 

Page 15 of 17 

 

Following entry into the Redevelopment Agreement the Developer will 

provide project updates to DIA every six (6) months, and the DIA reserves 

the right to inspect the Property with not less than 48 hours notice to 

Developer, and not more than once per month prior to Substantial 

Completion of any improvements. 

l) Provisions of this Term Sheet are intended to guide the parties in 

negotiating the Redevelopment Agreement and any other documents that 

may be necessary to give effect to the manifest intent of the parties 

expressed herein, but no party shall be bound unless and until a fully 

executed Redevelopment Agreement is approved and entered into. 

 

 



 

Page 16 of 17 

 

Exhibit D to Resolution 2025-02-01 

 

Essential Terms of Disposition Notice 

 

1. Property Interest considered for disposition by Quit Claim Deed, unless waived by Ordinance:  

Fee Simple title, in “as is” condition, subject to any representations and warranties in the 

Redevelopment Agreement and also subject to covenants, easements and restrictions of record, 

to: 

a. Site A - RE# 074487 0020, and  

b. Site B - RE# 074836 0000, RE# 074837 0000, RE# 074838 0000, RE# 074839 0000, RE# 

074840 00 (together with Site A, the “PROPERTY“)  

2. Use: At least one or more Class A buildings on Site A and one or more Class A buildings on Site B 

to be used as part of a higher educational campus, and the deed of conveyance will 

include such a restriction. 
3. Minimum Capital Investment on Site A of $80 million and on Site B of $20 million or of $100 

million on the two sites in the aggregate. Capital Investment shall include hard costs incurred for 

site improvement and construction of the buildings at Site A or Site B including soft costs for 

architectural and engineering. However, Capital Investment shall not include cost of tenant 

improvements for third party tenants unrelated to proposed owner or its affiliates. 

4. Minimum 60,000 gross square feet of new Class A building space on Site A and minimum of 

20,000 gross square feet of new Class A building space on Site B or of 80,000 gross square feet in 

the aggregate (however both parcels shall include occupiable buildings at buildout with a 

minimum square footage on each Site of 20,000 square feet, and may also include other 

improvements such as landscaping, passive parks and structured parking that contribute to 

campus programs and activity.  
5. New construction must comply with Downtown Zoning Overlay including approval of any 

deviation or variance as may be required for the improvements. 

6. Deed to contain a reverter if construction not commenced on Site A within 5 years after closing, 

and a reverter as to Site B only if construction on Site B fails to commence within 7 years after 

closing. 

7. Deed or other contract to contain a mutually agreeable right of repurchase to allow the City to 

re-acquire the Property if there is a cessation of Campus Uses, and it becomes dilapidated as 

defined between the parties. 

8. Redevelopment Agreement to be executed within forty-five (45) days following City Council 

approval thereof and closing to occur within 7 months of effective date of Redevelopment 

Agreement unless mutually extended by the parties. 

9. If conveyance is to a non-profit or tax-exempt entity, Property to be deed restricted against 

further transfer without the approval of DIA except to approved affiliates.  

10. Developer must demonstrate successful track record of the development and operation of 

similar facilities. 

11. Developer to demonstrate current and previous capacity and capability to raise debt and equity 

funds necessary for project financing. 



Page 17 of 17 

12. Proposal must identify if Developer or proposed owner is exempt from payment of ad valorem

taxes or if taxes will be paid on the proposed improvements to be constructed on the parcel.

13. Developer must commence design of a least one Class A building to be constructed on Site A

within one year of execution of the RDA and proceed diligently using commercially reasonable

efforts to complete applications for permitting of the initial horizontal and vertical construction

within 24 months of closing.

14. Commencement of Construction of Horizontal Improvements on Site A must commence no later

than six months following receipt of applicable permits and approvals.

15. Commencement of Construction of Vertical Improvements on Site A must commence within six

months of completion of horizontal improvements but in no event later than 18 months

following receipt of applicable permits and approvals ..

16. Substantial Completion of the Construction of the initial Vertical Improvements on Site A (i.e., a

minimum of 60,000 square feet on Site A, subject to the right to reallocate the square footage

between the Sites as set forth above) shall be no later than 3 years following Commencement of

Construction of such Vertical Improvements on Site A.

17. Commencement of design of the minimum required Site B improvements must occur within 6

years of closing and commencement of horizontal improvements on Site B must occur within 7

years of closing, with substantial completion of the required Site B improvements no later than

10 years from closing.

18. The foregoing deadlines will be subject to extensions of up to six (6) months granted by the

DIA's Chief Executive Officer and an additional up to six (6) months by the DIA Board for both

Site A and Site B independently without additional City approval upon reasonable cause shown.

In addition, extensions shall be available for force majeure. Such extension of the

Commencement Date shall also apply to the date of Substantial Completion of either Site A or

Site B, so that a single extension provided will apply to both simultaneously.



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

RESOLUTION 2025-02-01 SITE A AND SITE B DISPOSITION                                        
STAFF REPORT 



Staff Report to Resolution 2025-02-01 

1 

 

CRA NEGOTIATED PROPERTY DISPOSITION 

Sites A and B to University of Florida 

 

Staff Report for DIA RE&PD Committee  

 

February 7, 2025 

 

Site A: 0 W Bay Street 

Parcels(s):                  074487 0020 
Acres:                Approximately 2.36 
 
Site B:  Multiple addresses including 0 W Forsyth Street  

Parcels(s):            074836 000, 074840 000, 074838 0000, 074839 0000, 074837 0000 
Acres:                 Approximately 1.22 
 

Project: University of Florida Graduate Campus 

 

Request: Negotiated Disposition 

 

Consideration for disposition:                              No cash purchase price- commitments of  

                                                                            UF to develop sites and establish campus  

 

 

Project Background: 

In February 2023, the University of Florida (“UF”) announced intentions to locate a new graduate 

campus at a then undetermined location in Downtown Jacksonville that would bring as many as 1,500 

students and approximately 80 professors within an approximate five-year period from opening. 

Although degree and class offerings have not been finalized, early reports indicate the new graduate 

campus will focus on advanced studies in artificial intelligence, data analytics, computer science 

(concentrating on AI and cybersecurity), business management, law, and biomedical and health 

sciences, and semiconductor research. The campus is projected to cover 22 acres as it reaches its full 

capacity. A key component of the campus will be the Florida Semiconductor Institute, dedicated to 

advancing research and development in semiconductor technology, a critical area for national security 

and economic competitiveness. The institute has already secured $80 million in state funding, with 

additional federal support anticipated. 

 

The establishment of the Jacksonville campus is supported by significant funding from various sources. 

The state of Florida has committed $150 million, while the city of Jacksonville approved $50 million in 

Ordinance 2023-114, with an additional $50 million proposed. Private donors have also contributed $50 

million to the project. This investment is expected to have a substantial economic impact on the region, 

fostering innovation, creating job opportunities, and attracting talent to Jacksonville. 

 

In December 2024, the University announced that the LaVilla District had been selected for the location 

of the campus with focus on the parcels including and surrounding the Prime Osborne Convention 



Staff Report to Resolution 2025-02-01 

2 

 

Center, most of which are City-owned. The site was selected in part due to other available parcels of 

land in the area that create the opportunity for quick establishment and rapid growth for the campus.  

 

The Property and its Proposed Use: 

 

Site A is a 2.36-acre lot  held by 

the Combined Northbank CRA 

for redevelopment (titled in the 

City of Jacksonville) and 

partially improved by a surface 

parking lot. The parcel is 

bounded by Lee, Forsyth, and 

Bay Street with 801 W Bay to 

the east. This parcel is targeted 

as the first site for 

construction, as it is adjacent to 

801 W Bay Street, which is 

intended for initial occupation 

of the graduate campus, Florida 

Semiconductor Institute, and 

administrative offices. This 

flagship Class A building will be a minimum of 60,000 square feet and include an investment of at least 

$80,000,000. The Property shall be limited to use for a higher education campus, including but not 

limited to such features as classrooms, research, laboratory, office and clinic uses, as well as residences, 

administration, retail, food, beverage, parking, recreation, and other uses and services, all supporting 

the campus. Design of the building will begin within six months from closing, after which permitting 

applications must be submitted within 24 months. Horizontal construction will commence no more than 

six months after receiving permits, with vertical construction commencing six to eighteen months 

thereafter. 

 

Site B consists of five (5) separate, 

unimproved parcels totaling approximately 

1.22 acres held by the Combined Northbank 

CRA for redevelopment (titled in the City of 

Jacksonville) and bounded by Forsyth, Lee, 

and Bay Streets and LaVilla Center Drive to 

the west. This  will be the second site to see 

construction and will be, at a minimum, a 

20,000-square-foot, Class A building with a 

minimum investment of $20,000,000, which 

must include retail on the first floor facing 

the Emerald Trail, which runs on the west 

side of Lee Street. With the same permitted 



Staff Report to Resolution 2025-02-01 

3 

 

uses as Site A, design must begin no more than six years following closing, and construction must 

commence no more than seven years from closing. 

 
The Disposition 

The Property will be used to facilitate development of a higher education campus in Downtown 

Jacksonville consistent with the discussion in the CRA Plan regarding the LaVilla Catalyst site area. 

Through the creation of a higher educational campus within Downtown, Downtown will be positioned to 

provide a highly trained workforce to businesses seeking to locate within Downtown and the region. 

This use is consistent with the BID Plan goals and objectives described below and the commitments to 

development on site and establishment of the Downtown Jacksonville campus warrant the disposition 

without additional cash consideration. Appraisals have been ordered for the site by DIA and should be 

available before Committee. 
 

If the subject Resolution 2025-02-01 is approved by the RE&PD Committee, and subsequently by the DIA 

Board, a public notice for the disposition of the 801 W Bay Street Property will be published to allow 

other bidders the chance to propose under the terms and conditions provided in the Exhibit C, 

“Essential Terms of Disposition Notice” to the Resolution. Such terms and conditions also require other 

proposers to use the site for a higher educational campus, commence design within 6 months of closing 

and meet minimum capital investment requirements and construct and complete buildings of a 

minimum size on the sites, demonstrate the requisite experience for such acquisition and use, and also 

demonstrate access to capital for the project. Additional terms and conditions provide City protections if 

such development activity does not follow following conveyance to the winning proposer, whether to 

UF or an alternative bidder. 

 

As a negotiated disposition, the Resolution also contains the terms (set forth in Exhibit B to Resolution 

2025-02-05) upon which DIA agrees to convey the property to UF, if UF’s proposal provides the 

greatest value and benefit to the CRA and City. Among other requirements, UF must commence 

programs on the site within the later of six months after closing or January 15, 2026. UF has committed 

to operating a minimum of two academic programs with at least 50 students enrolled in the 801 W Bay 

building by the end of 2026, in addition to other Campus Uses. The deed will contain a reverter as well 

as a restriction on use for a higher education campus and a restriction on transfer. A performance 

schedule outlines the execution of the RDA, the closing, and growth of campus programs. Closing is 

expected to occur simultaneously with the City’s acquisition of the property but not later than 

December 20, 2026. 

 

BID Strategy and CRA Plan: 

In context of the Downtown Northbank CRA, the disposition of Sites A and B to UF satisfies the BID and 

CRA plan and statutory requirements in the following ways.  

 

Redevelopment Goal 1: Increase…job growth to reinforce Downtown as the region’s epicenter for 

business.  

Through the creation of an educational campus of a top tier university within Downtown, Downtown 

will be positioned to provide a highly trained workforce to businesses seeking to locate within 



Staff Report to Resolution 2025-02-01 

4 

 

Downtown and the region. Further, the location of a major research institute within the proposed 

campus will further solidify Downtown as the region’s epicenter for business. 

 

Strategic Objectives: 

• Improve the occupancy rates of existing Downtown commercial office buildings. 

• Grow or maintain the Downtown workforce each year by adding new permanent jobs 

and/or retaining existing permanent jobs within Downtown. 

 

Redevelopment Goal 2: Increase rental and owner-occupied housing Downtown…  

The proposed campus will increase the demand for housing within the immediate vicinity as well as 

throughout Downtown. In addition, some student housing is envisioned to be part of the campus or 

developed nearby. 

  

Strategic Objectives:  

• Actively pursue a minimum of 8,140 built and occupied multi-family dwelling units by 2030; 

and strive to induce construction of 425 multifamily dwelling units per year, on average.  

• Improve the breadth and diversity of housing options across Downtown Jacksonville to 

provide all types and varied price ranges of rental and owner-occupied opportunities, 

including mixed-income and mixed-use structures.  

 

Redevelopment Goal No. 3: Increase and diversify the number and type of retail, food and beverage, 

and entertainment establishments within Downtown.  

The proposed campus will include multiple mixed-use buildings that include publicly accessible food and 

beverage or other retail establishments.  

 

Strategic Objectives:  

• Increase the number of retail, food and beverage, and entertainment establishments that 

are open for business weekends and other times outside of weekday business hours.  

• Pursue the addition of one or more new neighborhood restaurant/entertainment venues in 

each District by 2025 and a second by 2030.  

 

Disposal of property in a Community Redevelopment Area must adhere to Florida statute 163.380, 

which allows the Combined Northbank CRA to “sell, lease, dispose of, or otherwise transfer real property 

or any interest therein acquired by it for community redevelopment in a community redevelopment 

area,…and may enter into contracts with respect thereto for…educational, or other uses, in accordance 

with the community redevelopment plan, subject to such covenants, conditions, and restrictions, 

including covenants running with the land, as it deems necessary or desirable to assist in preventing the 

development or spread of future slums or blighted areas or to otherwise carry out the purposes of this 

part.” The second part of the statute requires that the property “be sold or transferred at a value 

determined to be in the public interest for uses in accordance with the community redevelopment plan,” 

which have been outlined above.  

 

Importantly, the statute provides the following, “In determining the value of real property as being in the 



Staff Report to Resolution 2025-02-01 

5 

 

public interest for uses in accordance with the community redevelopment plan, the county, municipality, 

or community redevelopment agency shall take into account and give consideration to the long-term 

benefits to be achieved by the county, municipality, or community redevelopment agency resulting from 

incurring short-term losses or costs in the disposal of such real property; the uses provided in such plan; 

the restrictions upon, and the covenants, conditions, and obligations assumed by, the purchaser or lessee 

or by the county, municipality, or community redevelopment agency retaining the property; and the 

objectives of such plan for the prevention of the recurrence of slum or blighted areas. In the event the 

value of such real property being disposed of is for less than the fair value, such disposition shall require 

the approval of the governing body, which approval may only be given following a duly noticed public 

hearing.”  

 

The community benefits of establishing the University of Florida graduate campus are anticipated to 

provide long-term benefits that outweigh any short-term monetary losses that may be incurred through 

the transfer of the property at no cost to UF. Furthermore, sites A and B are currently vacant,  tax 

exempt and a maintenance and risk liability for the City.  

 

Summary of Terms and Conditions of Disposition to UF: 

• Sites A and B must be used by the winning bidder for a higher educational campus, including 

such features as classrooms, research, laboratory, office and clinic uses, as well as residences, 

administration, retail, food, beverage, parking, recreation and other uses and services, all 

supporting the campus and the deed of conveyance will include such a restriction. 

• The Total Capital Investment and square footage minimums may be combined and the 

$100,000,000 investment and 80,000 total gross square footage reallocated between the 

parcels; however both parcels shall include occupiable buildings at buildout with a minimum 

square footage on each Site of 20,000 square feet, and may also include other improvements 

such as landscaping, passive parks and structured parking that contribute to campus programs 

and activity. For example, Developer may elect to construct 60,000 square feet of building 

improvements and other campus improvements with a minimum Capital Investment of 

$80,000,000 on one Site and 20,000 square feet of building improvements and other campus 

improvements on the other Site with a minimum Capital Investment of $20,000,000 in 

horizontal and vertical improvements related to such building(s). 

• Developer will be provided an access agreement to begin due diligence prior to execution of the 

Redevelopment Agreement, and following the execution of the Redevelopment Agreement the 

Developer will have an additional period, if needed, to have a cumulative total of one hundred 

eighty (180) calendar days from the grant of access to inspect and perform tests on the sites. 

• All improvements on the sites shall comply with the Downtown Zoning Overlay, subject to any 

deviation or variation as may be required for the improvements, with final approval by the 

Downtown Development Review Board (“DDRB”), or the COJ City Council as may be required. 

• The City agrees to convey all Parcels in “as-is” condition by way of a quit claim deed for fee 

simple interest in the property. 

• Developer to pay all doc stamps as required by law. 

• Conveyance will follow the Due Diligence period and approval by City Council and execution of 

the Redevelopment Agreement and associated documents by all parties, upon a mutually 



Staff Report to Resolution 2025-02-01 

6 

 

agreeable date but no later than December 20, 2025. 

• The Deed will include a reverter of Sites A and B in favor of the City in the event Developer fails 

to commence construction on Site A for its intended use as set forth herein within a period of 5 

years after the closing (subject to force majeure) and a reverter of Site B only if after timely 

commencement of construction on Site A, Developer fails to commence horizontal construction 

for the building meeting the minimum requirements on Site B for its intended use within a 

period of seven (7) years after closing (subject to force majeure). The Property to be deed 

restricted against further transfer without the approval of DIA except as may be otherwise set 

forth in the Redevelopment Agreement. 

• The Redevelopment Agreement or deed shall include a mutually agreeable right of repurchase 

to allow the City to re-acquire the Property if there is a cessation of Campus Uses, and it 

becomes dilapidated as defined between the parties. 

• The design will comply with the Downtown Overlay Standards as enacted within the Jacksonville 

Municipal Code as well as the DDRB's development guidelines, except as may otherwise be 

approved by the DDRB and allowed by code. The design is subject to further review and 

approval of the Downtown Investment Authority for consistency with its BID and CRA Plan and 

of the DIA and COJ for consistency with associated adopted studies and plans. 

 

UF Performance Schedule Summary: 

• Developer to enter into the RDA within 45 days following City Council approval. 

• Conveyance of the parcels to occur within thirty days of satisfaction of the conditions to closing, 

but not sooner than the earlier of the execution date of the Redevelopment Agreement and 

completion of Due Diligence. 

• Developer must commence design of a least one Class A educational building on Site A 

comprising the minimum required square footage within six (6) months of closing and proceed 

diligently using commercially reasonable efforts to complete applications for permitting of 

horizontal and vertical construction of such building(s) within 24 months of closing.  

• Commencement of Construction of Horizontal Improvements on Site A must commence no later 

than six months following Developer’s receipt of necessary permits and approvals for such work.  

• Commencement of Construction of Vertical Improvements must commence on the Property 

within six months of completion of horizontal improvements but in no event no later than 

eighteen (18) months following Developer’s receipt of necessary permits and approvals for such 

Vertical Improvement work.  

• Substantial Completion of the Construction of the initial 60,000 (or greater) of Vertical 

Improvements on Site A (subject to the right to reallocate the square footage between the Sites 

as set forth above) shall be diligently pursued to completion using commercially reasonable 

efforts to achieve Substantial Completion no later than 3 years after vertical commencement.  

• Developer must commence design of a least one Class A educational building on Site B 

comprising the minimum required square footage thereon within six (6) years of closing and 

proceed diligently using commercially reasonable efforts to complete applications for permitting 

of horizontal and vertical construction of such building(s).  

• Commencement of Construction of Horizontal Improvements on Site B must commence no later 

than seven (7) years following closing.  



Staff Report to Resolution 2025-02-01 

7 

 

• Commencement of Construction of Vertical Improvements must commence on the Property 

within six months of completion of Horizontal improvements but in no event no later than 

eighteen (18) months following Developer’s receipt of necessary permits and approvals for such 

work.  

• Substantial Completion of the Construction of the required 20,000 square feet (or greater) of 

Vertical Improvements on Site B (subject to the right to reallocate the square footage between 

the Sites as set forth above) shall be diligently pursued to completion using commercially 

reasonable efforts to achieve Substantial Completion no later than ten (10) years following 

closing. 

• The foregoing deadlines will be subject to extensions of up to six (6) months granted by the 

DIA's Chief Executive Officer and an additional up to six (6) months by the DIA Board for both 

Site A and Site B independently without additional City approval upon reasonable cause shown. 

In addition, extensions shall be available for force majeure. Such extension of the 

Commencement Date shall also apply to the date of Substantial Completion of either Site A or 

Site B, so that a single extension provided to Commencement will apply to Substantial 

Completion on that same Site.  

• Following entry into the Redevelopment Agreement the Developer will provide project updates 

to DIA every six (6) months, and the DIA reserves the right to inspect the Property with not less 

than 48 hours notice to Developer, and not more than once per month prior to Substantial 

Completion of any improvements. 



TAB III.D 

RESOLUTION 2025-02-02 CONVENTION CENTER DISPOSITION OF OPTION 



Convention Center/UF 
 

1 
 

RESOLUTION 2025-02-02 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

(“DIA”) INSTRUCTING ITS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO”) TO 

ISSUE A 30-DAY NOTICE OF DISPOSITION IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

FLORIDA STATUTES AND THE NEGOTIATED DISPOSITION POLICY 

APPROVED BY ORDINANCE 2022-372-E; AUTHORIZING THE 

PUBLICATION OF A NOTICE OF DISPOSITION FOR AN OPTION TO 

ACQUIRE THE FEE SIMPLE TO APPROXIMATELY 14.71 ACRES OF 

CITY-OWNED PROPERTY IMPROVED BY A SURFACE PARKING LOT 

AND CONVENTION CENTER EXHIBIT HALL CONSTRUCTED IN 

APPROXIMATELY 1987 AS DEPICTED ON EXHIBIT A ATTACHED 

HERETO AND A PORTION OF THE PARCEL IDENTIFIED BY DUVAL 

COUNTY TAX PARCEL NUMBER 074887 0000, (THE “CONVENTION 

CENTER PARCEL”) EXCLUDING FROM SUCH TAX PARCEL THE 

HISTORICALLY DESIGNATED 1919 TRAIN STATION AND 

ASSOCIATED LAND  CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 2.13 ACRES 

AS WELL AS APPROXIMATELY 2.04 ACRES ADJACENT TO SITE’S 

SOUTHERN BOUNDARY RESERVED TO THE CITY FOR FUTURE 

PASSENGER RAIL EXPANSION BOTH AS DEPICTED ON EXHIBIT B; 

EXPRESSING THE INTENTION, ABSENT HIGHER RESPONSIVE 

OFFERS, TO DISPOSE OF SAID PROPERTY IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

THE NEGOTIATED TERMS ATTACHED HERETO AS EXHIBIT C, AND 

ESTABLISHING THE TERMS OF THE PUBLISHED NOTICE OF 

DISPOSITION ATTACHED HERETO AS EXHIBIT D; AND FINDING 

THAT THIS RESOLUTION FURTHERS THE BUSINESS INVESTMENT 

AND DEVELOPMENT (“BID”) PLAN, INCLUDING THE COMMUNITY 

REDEVELOPMENT AREA PLAN; AUTHORIZING THE CEO OF THE 

DIA TO TAKE ALL ACTION NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THE 

PURPOSES OF THIS RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, via Ordinance 2012-0364-E, the City Council created the Downtown 

Investment Authority, designating the DIA as the City’s Community Redevelopment Agency for 

the Combined Northbank Downtown Community Redevelopment Area and authorizing it to 

approve and negotiate economic development agreements and dispose of City-owned property; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, DIA is the designated Community Redevelopment Agency for the 

Northbank CRA, for which a Business Investment and Development Plan, inclusive of a 

Community Redevelopment Plan, (“BID/CRA Plan”) was adopted by Ordinance 2014-560-E and 

updated by Ordinance 2022-372-E; and 



Convention Center/UF 
 

2 
 

 

WHEREAS, Section 55.108 of the Jacksonville Code of Ordinances grants certain powers 

and duties to the DIA, including: 

 

Interpreting the BID/CRA Plan and approving development and redevelopment projects 

within Downtown. 

 

Implementing the BID/CRA Plan, negotiating and approving downtown development and 

redevelopment agreements, grant agreements, license agreements, and lease agreements.  

 

Planning and proposing Projects and Public facilities within Downtown; and 

 

Subject to Section 122.434, Ordinance Code (Procedure for disposition of Community 

Development Property), hold, control, manage, lease, sell, dedicate, grant, or otherwise 

dispose of any of the City’s Downtown assets and properties managed by the DIA, or any 

interest therein. 

 

WHEREAS, the City owns approximately 18.88 acres of real property which is identified 

by Duval County Tax Parcel Number RE# 074887 0000 within the Combined Downtown 

Northbank Community Redevelopment Area (“Northbank CRA”) which is currently used as the 

Prime Osborne Convention Center and is assigned to Public Buildings for property management; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has expressed a willingness to surplus the 14.71 acres of the 

foregoing property improved by a surface parking lot and convention center exhibit hall 

constructed in approximately 1987 and constituting a portion of the parcel identified by Duval 

County Tax Parcel Number 074887 0000, as depicted on Exhibit A attached hereto (the 

“Convention Center Parcel”)and make it available for redevelopment in the future, at which point 

the Convention Center Parcel becomes an asset of the Northbank CRA and disposition follows the 

processes established by state law and local ordinances; and 

 

WHEREAS, University of Florida has shared with DIA an acquisition and master plan for 

improvements within the Downtown Northbank Community Redevelopment Area that envisions 

a University of Florida Campus on the Convention Center Parcel and surrounding parcels in 

LaVilla; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City requires the continued use of the Convention Center Parcel for at 

least five (5) years and the University of Florida plans to acquire and develop several nearby 

parcels prior to closing on and commencing redevelopment of the Convention Center Parcel; and 

 

WHEREAS, University of Florida has proposed to acquire and improve the Convention 

Center Parcel in accordance with the Jacksonville Campus Master Plan, with multiple Class A 



Convention Center/UF 
 

3 
 

facilities to be used as part of a higher educational campus including but not limited to such 

features as: (i) higher educational classrooms, research, laboratory, office and clinic uses, as well 

as residences, administration, retail, food and beverage,  parking, recreation and other uses and 

services, all supporting the campus; and (ii) passenger rail supporting uses , all as integral 

components of the broader master plan proposed; and   

 

WHEREAS, the DIA finds that such University of Florida Jacksonville Campus is 

consistent with the Conceptual Master Plan and the adopted vision for the LaVilla and Convention 

Center Catalyst sites contained in the adopted BID Plan for the Downtown Northbank CRA as 

well as the adopted LaVilla Neighborhood Development Strategy; and 

 

WHEREAS, DIA entered negotiation with University of Florida regarding the terms of 

the disposition and redevelopment in accordance with DIA’s approved negotiated disposition 

process and the essential terms of the redevelopment proposal including certain of University of 

Florida's obligations and conditions to closing on the Convention Center Parcel are set forth in the 

Term Sheet attached as Exhibit C; and 

 

WHEREAS, DIA has established the terms upon which a public notice of disposition will 

be published as set forth in Exhibit D; and  

 

WHEREAS, to determine fair value for the Convention Center Parcel pursuant to Florida 

Statutes Chapter 163.380(2), and as required by City of Jacksonville Code of Ordinances 

§122.432, the DIA has engaged an appraiser to appraise the various parcels involved in the 

disposition; and  

 

WHEREAS, the development of the University of Florida Jacksonville Campus creates 

higher education opportunities expected to attract top tier students from around the world where 

such development will generate interest in development of a long underutilized historic area of 

Downtown Jacksonville, draw firms into the area creating new employment opportunities, and put 

City-owned properties to use for the overall benefit of the local community; and 

 

WHEREAS, the DIA finds that the proposed disposition and redevelopment proposal 

further the following Redevelopment Goal and Strategic Objectives found in the BID/CRA Plan: 

 

Redevelopment Goal 1: Increase…job growth to reinforce Downtown as the region’s 

epicenter for business. 

 

Through the creation of an educational campus of a top tier university within Downtown, 

Downtown will be positioned to provide a highly trained workforce to businesses seeking 

to locate within Downtown and the region. Further, the location of a major research 

institute within the proposed campus will further solidify Downtown as the region’s 

epicenter for business. 



Convention Center/UF 
 

4 
 

 

Redevelopment Goal 2: Increase rental and owner-occupied housing Downtown… 

 

The proposed campus will increase the demand for housing within the immediate vicinity 

as well as throughout Downtown. In addition, some student housing is envisioned to be 

part of the campus or developed nearby. 

 

Strategic Objectives: 

• Actively pursue a minimum of 8,140 built and occupied multi-family dwelling units 

by 2030; and strive to induce construction of 425 multifamily dwelling units per year, 

on average. 

• Improve the breadth and diversity of housing options across Downtown Jacksonville 

to provide all types and varied price ranges of rental and owner-occupied 

opportunities, including mixed-income and mixed-use structures. 

 

Redevelopment Goal No. 3: Increase and diversify the number and type of retail, food 

and beverage, and entertainment establishments within Downtown. 

  

The proposed campus will include multiple mixed-use buildings that include publicly 

accessible food and beverage or other retail establishments. 

  

 Strategic Objectives: 

• Increase the number of retail, food and beverage, and entertainment establishments that 

are open for business weekends and other times outside of weekday business hours. 

• Pursue the addition of one or more new neighborhood restaurant/entertainment venues 

in each District by 2025 and a second by 2030. 

  

WHEREAS, at a publicly noticed meeting held on February 13, 2025, the DIA Retail 

Enhancement and Property Disposition Committee (“REPD”) recommended that the DIA Board 

adopt Resolution 2025-02-02; and 

 

WHEREAS, upon adoption of this Resolution, a 30-day public notice for the solicitation 

of proposals pursuant to Section 163.380(3)(a), Florida Statutes, and Sections 122.434(a) and (b), 

Jacksonville Ordinance Code, will be issued. 

  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment Authority: 

  

Section 1. The recitals set forth above are true and correct and are hereby incorporated 

herein by this reference.   

 

Section 2.   The DIA has determined that in furtherance of its plan to facilitate 

development in the Downtown Northbank Community Redevelopment Area the Convention 



Convention Center/UF 
 

5 
 

Center Parcel should be developed for use as a University of Florida Campus in accordance with 

the terms outlined in Exhibit C, attached herein, unless a responsive proposal of greater value is 

received, and that the commitments of the University of Florida regarding development of the 

property constitute fair value for the land. 

 

Section 3.  The DIA instructs the Chief Executive Officer of the Downtown Investment 

Authority to take all action necessary to effectuate the thirty (30) day Notice of Disposition for the 

Convention Center Parcel in accordance with its Negotiated Notice of Disposition Process and 

pursuant to the terms set forth in Exhibit D and consistent with Florida Statutes and the Ordinance 

Code.  

 

Section 4. Proposals received, if any, will be reviewed by the DIA Chief Executive 

Officer, who will make a recommendation to the DIA Board regarding any responsive alternate 

proposals received. 

 

Section 5. If no alternate responsive and qualified proposals are received, or if they are 

determined by the CEO to be lower in value or unresponsive, the DIA authorizes its CEO to 

finalize negotiation of a Redevelopment Agreement with University of Florida substantially in 

accordance with the terms set forth on Exhibit C, and including such additional dispositions as 

may be approved and authorized by Resolution, and file legislation seeking approval of the 

disposition and Redevelopment Agreement and associated documents with City Council. 

 

Section 6. The DIA Board hereby authorizes the CEO of the Downtown Investment 

Authority to take all action necessary to effectuate the purposes of this Resolution. 

 

Section 7.    This Resolution, 2025-02-02, shall become effective on the date it is signed 

by the Chair of the DIA Board. 

  

 

 

WITNESS:      DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

 

 

______________________            _______________ 

           Patrick Krechowski, Chairman  Date 

 

 

VOTE:  In Favor: ______ Opposed: ______ Abstained: ______         



Convention Center/UF 
 

6 
 

     

Exhibit A to Resolution 2025-02-02 

 

Approximately 14.71 acres of City-owned property improved by a surface parking lot and 

convention center exhibit hall constructed in approximately 1987 as depicted below and consisting 

of a portion of the parcel identified by Duval County tax parcel number 074887 0000, (the 

“Convention Center Parcel”) located in the LaVilla District within the Downtown Northbank 

Community Redevelopment Area of Downtown Jacksonville. 

 

The Convention Center Parcel as depicted below 

 

 



7 
ACTIVE:35403513.9 

 

 

  

 

Exhibit B to Resolution 2025-02-02 

 

Train Station Exclusion from RE# 074887 0000 consisting of approximately 2.13 acres: 

 

 
 

 



8 
ACTIVE:35403513.9 

 

 

  

Railroad Expansion exclusion from RE# 074887 0000 consisting of approximately 2.04 acres:  

 

 
  



9 
ACTIVE:35403513.9 

 

 

  

Exhibit C 

Term Sheet 

 

Resolution 2025-02-02 

 

Developer:  University of Florida 

 

The Convention 

Center Parcel:  A 14.71 acre, plus or minus, parcel of land as depicted on the foregoing Exhibit A site plan 

(“the “Convention Center Parcel”) to be conveyed following award of an option to 

acquire the Convention Center Parcel pursuant to a publicly noticed disposition 

consistent with the closing conditions below including negotiation of a Redevelopment 

Agreement consistent with the terms set forth herein and approval by the Jacksonville 

City Council of legislation authorizing the same. 

 

Use Limitation:  The Convention Center Parcel  shall be limited to use for a higher educational campus, 

including but not limited to  such features as: (i) classrooms, research, laboratory, office 

and clinic uses, as well as residences, administration, retail, food, beverage,  parking, 

recreation and other uses and services, all supporting the campus (“Campus Uses”); and 

(ii) passenger rail supporting uses and the deed of conveyance will include such a 

restriction. 

 

Purchase Price: The consideration for the Convention Center Parcel shall be the Developer’s commitment 

to development on the Convention Center Parcel as described below and there shall be 

no cash purchase price paid for the land. 

 

The Site A and B Projects: 

 To include the design and construction of one or more Class A-buildings on Site A 

identified by Duval County Tax Parcel Number 074487-0020  and one or more Class A 

Building on Site B identified by Duval County Tax Parcel Numbers 074836-0000, 074837-

0000, 074838-0000, 074839-0000 and 074840-0000 with a minimum of 80,000 square 

feet of gross square feet of building space in the aggregate and with a minimum capital 

investment of $100 million on Sites A and B in the aggregate.  

 

The Convention Center  

Parcel Project: 

 Design and construction of a higher education campus eventually expected to require 

the entire parcel at buildout, The initial project will consist of  at least one Class A building 

on the Convention Center Parcel and any adjacent contiguous parcels acquired by 

Developer, meeting the minimum requirements below in accordance with the 

Jacksonville Campus Master Plan, to be used as part of an educational campus including 

but not limited to  such features as: (i)  higher educational classrooms, research, 

laboratory, office and clinic uses, as well as residences, administration, retail, food, 

beverage, parking, recreation and other uses and services, all supporting the campus; 

and (ii) passenger rail supporting uses , all as integral components of the broader master 



10 
ACTIVE:35403513.9 

 

 

  

plan proposed. The first building to be designed and constructed on the Convention 

Center Parcel shall be designed and constructed in accordance with the Performance 

Schedule set forth below and shall represent a minimum of 40,000 square feet of initial 

improvements consistent with the standards of the remainder of the campus and a 

minimum capital investment of at least $40 million for construction of such building, any 

parking facility and related horizontal improvements. Thereafter, it is anticipated that 

Developer will complete the design and construction of other facilities contemplated in 

the master plan as growth of the campus demands. It is anticipated that full buildout may 

take up to 15 years or more following closing on the Convention Center Parcel.  All 

improvements on the Convention Center Parcel shall comply with the Downtown Zoning 

Overlay, subject to any deviation or variation as may be required for the improvements, 

with final approval by the Downtown Development Review Board (“DDRB”), or the COJ 

City Council as may be required. The Property shall be limited to use as set forth above. 

 

 

Capital 

Investment: Capital Investment shall include hard costs incurred for site improvement and 

construction of the buildings and soft costs for architectural and engineering. However, 

Capital Investment shall not include cost of tenant improvements for third party tenants 

unrelated to proposed owner or its affiliates. 

 

 

Shared Parking: The Redevelopment Agreement or Option Agreement defined below will include 

provisions related to shared parking for the Convention Center Parcel and the adjacent 

train station.  Such arrangement may include construction of a structured parking facility 

on the Convention Center Parcel, the reconveyance by Developer to the City of a portion 

of the Convention Center Parcel for construction of a shared parking facility if Developer 

does not construct a structured parking facility on the Convention Center Parcel, or such 

other provisions mutually acceptable to Developer and the City.  

Option Agreement: 

 An Option Agreement authorizing the Developer to close and take title to the Convention 

Center Parcel upon satisfaction of the Preconditions to Closing, will be executed and 

provided to Developer following the approval by City Council and execution of the 

Redevelopment Agreement and completion of Due Diligence at the time of initial closing 

on other campus parcels. The Option Agreement will terminate if Developer has not 

satisfied the preconditions to exercise within 20 years from the Effective Date of the 

Option Agreement, provided that closing may occur two (2) years after the expiration of 

such period to accommodate required notice to the City and DIA. 

 

Preconditions  

to Closing:   Developer may not exercise the option to close until five years have elapsed since the 

effective date of the Redevelopment Agreement and Option Agreement, and until 

Developer has completed construction of the minimum required improvements on Sites 

A and B in accordance with Performance Schedule therefor contained in the 

Redevelopment Agreement. Developer shall provide the City and DIA with a minimum 



11 
ACTIVE:35403513.9 

 

 

  

two (2) years advance notice of intention to exercise the option on the Convention 

Center Parcel to accommodate booking reservations in the current facility. Closing will 

occur upon a mutually agreeable date but no later than 25 months following Developer’s 

notice of intent to exercise the option.  The Redevelopment Agreement may contain 

certain additional conditions to closing as may be agreed upon by the parties.  No closing 

on any parcel shall occur until the Developer has completed its due diligence and agreed 

to move forward without termination or the Due Diligence Period has expired. 

 

Redevelopment  

Agreement: The Redevelopment Agreement (sometimes referred to as the “RDA”) will establish, inter 

alia, the essential terms of the conveyance of the Property, the Developer’s rights and 

responsibilities with respect to design and use, the Developer’s and the City’s obligations 

with respect to construction of infrastructure improvements, if any, site remediation, 

improvements on the Property and other terms relevant to development of the Property 

including rights of reversion in favor of the DIA and the City if development activity does 

not occur after closing as agreed upon by the parties.  The RDA will become effective 

upon its execution following approval by COJ, and final University of Florida Board of 

Trustee approval, with an outside date for execution by Developer of forty-five  (45) days 

following the effective date of the legislation (which date shall be set forth in the 

legislation). While this term sheet summarizes certain of the terms and conditions that 

will be contained in the RDA, it is not a complete statement of all such terms and 

conditions. Additional terms and conditions essential to implementation of the master 

plan will also be included in the RDA.  

 

Site  

Investigation:  The City will grant Developer early access to the Convention Center Parcel to conduct 

inspections prior to execution of the Redevelopment Agreement.  In addition, following 

the execution of the Redevelopment Agreement the Developer will have an additional 

period, if needed, to have a cumulative total of one hundred eighty (180) calendar days 

from the grant of access  (the “Due Diligence Period”) to inspect and perform tests on 

the Convention Center Parcel and any other LaVilla parcels awarded to Developer 

through disposition or included in the campus master plan pursuant to a scope of 

work approved by Developer and the DIA to determine its suitability for the campus, and 

to investigate the quality and marketability of the title of the fee simple interest it will 

receive from the City. Upon providing written notice to the DIA, the Developer may 

terminate the Redevelopment Agreement and the Convention Center Parcel Project any 

time within the Due Diligence Period without cause and without incurring any obligations 

under the Redevelopment Agreement. If no written termination notice is delivered by 

Developer to the DIA prior to the expiration of the Due Diligence Period, all remaining 

terms found in the Redevelopment Agreement shall be in effect. 

 

Environmental: City will provide access to the Convention Center Parcel for any required investigation 

but shall not be liable for environmental issues that arise by actions taken by the 

Developer or its agents during inspection or following conveyance of the Convention 



12 
ACTIVE:35403513.9 

 

 

  

Center Parcel, including liability for any damage caused by Developer or its contractors 

during construction. 

 

AS IS conveyance: Except for any representations and warranties or as otherwise may be agreed upon by 

the parties in the Redevelopment Agreement, the City agrees to convey the Convention 

Center Parcel in “as-is” condition and is not undertaking any obligation, financial or 

otherwise, to remediate the sites, clear title, or otherwise.  

 

Form of Deed: The City will convey title by Quit Claim Deed as required by the Ordinance Code, unless 

waived. 

 

Documentary  

Stamps: The City is precluded by law from the payment of Documentary stamp taxes. Such taxes, 

if any, will be paid by Developer or someone on Developer’s behalf. 

 

Survey: DIA to provide Developer with a survey map and prepared legal description for the 

Property on or before the RDA execution date. If Developer desires a stamped survey 

depicting all improvements and easements, etc. the Developer shall obtain the same at 

its cost and expense. 

 

Title Commitment: DIA shall obtain and deliver to Developer a title commitment for the Property on or 

before the RDA execution date. Title insurance, if desired, shall be issued at closing at 

Developer’s expense. 

 

Appraisal: DIA shall obtain an appraisal of the Convention Center Parcel at DIA’s expense as required 

for disposition and shall make the same available to Developer on or before execution of 

the RDA.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City will deed the Convention Center Parcel 

to Developer for no monetary consideration in recognition of the other obligations of 

Developer set forth in the RDA. 

 

Restriction on  

Further Transfer:  Property to be deed restricted against further transfer without the approval of DIA 

except as may be otherwise set forth in the Redevelopment Agreement (such as 

conveyance to university direct-support organizations (as defined in Section 1004.28, 

Florida Statutes), university health services support organizations (as defined in Section 

1004.29, Florida Statutes), and their subsidiaries). 

 

Reverter:   The Deed will include a reverter of the Convention Center Parcel in favor of the City in 

the event Developer fails to commence construction on the Convention Center Project 

within a period of 3 years after the closing of the acquisition of the Convention Center 

Parcel under the Option Agreement (subject to force majeure)  In addition, the Property 

will be restricted to Campus Uses and passenger rail related uses and subject to the 

restrictions on transfer set forth herein.   

 



13 
ACTIVE:35403513.9 

 

 

  

Right of repurchase: The Redevelopment Agreement or deed shall include a mutually agreeable right of 

repurchase to allow the City to re-acquire the Property if there is a cessation of Campus 

Uses, and it becomes dilapidated as defined between the parties. 

 

Entitlements:  Mobility Credits will be provided to Developer if Developer earns the same through its 

design in accordance with the criteria for the Mobility Fee Credit established in the 

adopted BID Strategy.  Stormwater Credits may be available for purchase by Developer 

in accordance with the ordinance governing the same once the quantity of credits 

required is known and subject to the availability of credits in the City or Downtown 

Stormwater Credit Bank. The DIA will make available for future allocation to the 

Developer, should the Developer exercise their option to acquire the Convention Center 

Parcel, and pursuant to its authority via Chapter 55, Jacksonville Code of Ordinances, 

forty thousand (40,000) square feet of government/institutional for use on the 

Convention Center Parcel. Future allocation(s) of entitlements will be formalized via an 

Allocation of Development Rights Agreement, or functional equivalent thereof. At or 

prior to commencing design of the Convention Center Parcel, Developer will request, and 

DIA will allocate the required entitlements pursuant to a development plan for the 

Convention Center Parcel.  Any unused entitlements previously allocated for use on the 

Convention Center Parcel remaining after the last Certificate of Occupancy or functional 

equivalent on the Convention Center Parcel will return to the DIA for its use and future 

allocation throughout the Central Business District without any further action by DIA. 

 

Design: a) The Developer will design each building with the goal of creating educational campus 

buildings incorporating design and use considerations capable of attracting students 

and researchers for decades following their completion. The buildings will be 

designed with the intent to serve an important and functional purpose contributing 

to that which defines the City as a distinctive and leading urban research and learning 

campus and will remain visually and functionally beneficial with the passage of time. 

b) The design will comply with the Downtown Overlay Standards as enacted within the 

Jacksonville Municipal Code as well as the DDRB's development guidelines, except as 

may otherwise be approved by the DDRB and allowed by code. The design is subject 

to further review and approval of the Downtown Investment Authority for 

consistency with its BID and CRA Plan and of the DIA and COJ for consistency with 

associated adopted studies and plans. 

c) In collaboration with the City’s Chief Resiliency Officer and the Florida Institute for 

Built Environment Resilience, the design may include resiliency features, including to 

the extent practicable the design recommendations set forth in Resilient Jacksonville 

published in October 2023 and its update published in October 2024. 

d) Parking and landscaping will comply with the City's standard as found in the 

Downtown Design Standards, except as otherwise approved through deviations or 

variances.   

 

  



14 
ACTIVE:35403513.9 

 

 

  

Performance  

Schedule: 

a) The Redevelopment Agreement will be entered into by the Developer, DIA and the 

City within forty-five (45) days following City Council approval legislation authorizing 

the same. Due Diligence period of one hundred eighty (180) days as defined above 

with termination rights as found in the Redevelopment Agreement. 

b) Developer must commence design of a least one Class A educational building on the 

Convention Center Parcel comprising the minimum required square footage within 

six (6) months of closing of the acquisition of the Convention Center Parcel under the 

Option Agreement and proceed diligently using commercially reasonable efforts to 

complete applications for permitting of horizontal and vertical construction of the 

such building(s) within 18 months of closing of the acquisition of the Convention 

Center Parcel under the Option Agreement. 

c) Commencement of Construction of Horizontal Improvements on the Convention 

Center Parcel must commence no later than six (6) months following Developer’s 

receipt of necessary permits and approvals for such work, or the closing date, 

whichever occurs last. 

d) Commencement of Construction of Vertical Improvements must commence on the 

Convention Center Parcel within six (6) months of completion of horizontal 

improvements but in no event no later than eighteen (18) months following 

Developer’s receipt of necessary permits and approvals for such work or the closing 

date, whichever occurs last. 

e) Substantial Completion of the Construction of the initial building meeting the 

minimum requirements for size and investment on the Convention Center Parcel 

shall be diligently pursued to completion using commercially reasonable efforts to 

achieve Substantial Completion no later than 3 years after vertical commencement 

thereof.  

f) The foregoing deadlines will be subject to extensions of up to six (6) months granted 

by the DIA's Chief Executive Officer and an additional up to six (6) months by the DIA 

Board without additional City approval upon reasonable cause shown. In addition, 

extensions shall be available for force majeure. Such extension of the 

Commencement Date shall also apply to the date of Substantial Completion, so that 

a single extension provided will apply to both simultaneously 

g) Following entry into the Redevelopment Agreement the Developer will provide 

project updates to DIA every six (6) months, and the DIA reserves the right to inspect 

the Property with not less than 48 hours notice to Developer, and not more than 

once per month prior to Substantial Completion of any improvements. 

h) Provisions of this Term Sheet are intended to guide the parties in negotiating the 

Redevelopment Agreement and any other documents that may be necessary to give 

effect to the manifest intent of the parties expressed herein, but no party shall be 

bound unless and until a fully executed Redevelopment Agreement is approved and 

entered into. 

 

 



15 
ACTIVE:35403513.9  

Exhibit D to Resolution 2025-01-02 

Essential Terms of Disposition Notice 

1. Property Interest considered for disposition regarding an approximately 14.71 acre portion of

RE# 074887 0000 (the “Convention Center Parcel“) :

a. Option Agreement to acquire fees simple title, exercisable no sooner than 5 years from

execution and only following completion of construction  of affiliated campus facilities

with a minimum capital investment of $80 million and consisting of at least 60,000 gross

square feet and following commencement of construction of additional affiliated campus

facilities with a minimum capital investment of $20 million and consisting of at least

20,000 gross square feet. Option to expire twenty (20) years from execution of the Option

Agreement if preconditons to exercise have not been satisfied, provided that closing may

occur two (2) years after the expiration of such period to accommodate required notice

to the City and DIA.

b. Upon exercise of Option, fee simple title by Quit Claim Deed, unless waived by Ordinance.

Fee Simple title, in “as is” condition, subject to any representations and warranties in the

Redevelopment Agreement and also subject to covenants, easements and restrictions of

record.

2. Use: The Property shall be limited to use for both higher educational campus and passenger rail

related uses and the deed of conveyance will include such a restriction.

3. Minimum capital investment on the Convention Center Parcel  of $40 million.

4. Minimum 40,000 gross square feet of new Class A building space in the initial building to be

developed on the Convention Center Parcel and any adjacent contiguous parcel(s) acquired by

Developer, with a minimum Capital Investment of at least $40 million for construction of such

building, any parking facility, and the horizontal improvements related to each.

5. The Redevelopment Agreement or deed shall include a mutually agreeable right of repurchase to

allow the City to re-acquire the Property if there is a cessation of Campus Uses, and it becomes

dilapidated as defined between the parties.

6. Redevelopment Agreement to be executed within forty-five (45) days following City Council

approval thereof.

7. New construction must comply with Downtown Zoning Overlay including approval of any

deviation or variance as may be required for the improvements.

8. Deed to contain a reverter if construction not commenced on the Property within 3 years after

closing of the acquisition of the Convention Center Parcel under the Option Agreement.

9. If conveyance is to a non-profit or tax-exempt entity, Property to be deed restricted against

further transfer without the approval of DIA except to approved affiliates.

10. Developer must demonstrate successful track record of the development and operation of similar

facilities.

11. Developer to demonstrate current and previous capacity and capability to raise debt and equity

funds necessary for project financing.

12. Proposal must identify if Developer or proposed owner is exempt from payment of ad valorem

taxes or if taxes will be paid on the proposed improvements to be constructed on the parcel.



16 
ACTIVE:35403513.9 

 

 

  

13. Developer must commence design of a least one Class A building to be constructed on the 

Convention Center Parcel within six (6) months of closing on the Convention Center Parcel and 

proceed diligently using commercially reasonable efforts to complete applications for permitting 

of the initial horizontal and vertical construction within 18 months of the acquisition of the 

Convention Center Parcel under the Option Agreement. 

14. Commencement of Construction of Horizontal Improvements on the Convention Center Parcel 

must commence no later than six months following receipt of applicable permits and approvals. 

15. Commencement of Construction of Vertical Improvements must commence on the Convention 

Center Parcel within six months of completion of horizontal improvements but in no event later 

than 18 months following receipt of applicable permits and approvals. 

16. Substantial Completion of the Construction of the initial Vertical Improvements on the 

Convention Center Parcel shall be no later than 3 years following Commencement of Construction 

of such Vertical Improvements. 

17. The foregoing deadlines will be subject to extensions of up to six (6) months granted by the DIA's 

Chief Executive Officer and an additional up to six (6) months by the DIA Board without additional 

City approval upon reasonable cause shown. In addition, extensions shall be available for force 

majeure. Such extension of the Commencement Date shall also apply to the date of Substantial 

Completion, so that a single extension provided will apply to both simultaneously. 

 

 

 



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

RESOLUTION 2025-02-02 CONVENTION CENTER DISPOSITION OF OPTION     
STAFF REPORT 



Staff Report to Resolution 2025-02-02 

1 

 

CRA NEGOTIATED PROPERTY DISPOSITION 

Convention Center Property to UF 

 

Staff Report for DIA RE&PD Committee  

 

February 7, 2025 

 

Property: 1000 W Bay Street 

Parcels(s):                  074887 0000 
Acres:               Approximately 14.71 
 

Project: University of Florida Graduate Campus  

 

Request: Negotiated Disposition 

  

Consideration for disposition:                              No cash purchase price- commitments of  

                                                                            UF to develop sites and establish campus  

 

 

Project Background: 

 

In February 2023, the University of Florida (“UF”) announced intentions to locate a new graduate campus 

at a then undetermined location in Downtown Jacksonville that would bring as many as 1,500 students 

and approximately 80 professors within an approximate five-year period from opening. Although degree 

and class offerings have not been finalized, early reports indicate the new graduate campus will focus on 

advanced studies in artificial intelligence, data analytics, computer science (concentrating on AI and 

cybersecurity), business management, law, and biomedical and health sciences, and semiconductor 

research. The campus is projected to cover 22 acres as it reaches its full capacity. A key component of the 

campus will be the Florida Semiconductor Institute, dedicated to advancing research and development in 

semiconductor technology, a critical area for national security and economic competitiveness. The 

institute has already secured $80 million in state funding, with additional federal support anticipated. 

 

The establishment of the Jacksonville campus is supported by significant funding from various sources. 

The state of Florida has committed $150 million, while the city of Jacksonville approved $50 million in 

Ordinance 2023-114, with an additional $50 million proposed. Private donors have also contributed $50 

million to the project. This investment is expected to have a substantial economic impact on the region, 

fostering innovation, creating job opportunities, and attracting talent to Jacksonville. 

 

In December 2024, the University announced that the LaVilla District had been selected for the location 

of the campus with focus on the parcels including and surrounding Prime Osborne Convention Center, 

most of which are City-owned. The site was selected in part due to other available parcels of land in the 

area that create the opportunity for quick establishment and rapid growth for the campus.  

 

The Property: 



Staff Report to Resolution 2025-02-02 

2 

 

 

An Option will be provided to 
the University of Florida to 
acquire approximately 14.71 
acres of the convention center 
parcel ( a potion of the tax 
parcel to the right) after 
separating 2.13 acres 
containing the Historic Train 
Station and retaining 
approximately 2 acres on the 
South side of the parcel for 
future passenger rail operation 
depicted in surveys below. The 
convention center parcel is 
integral to the master planned 
campus in LaVilla. The parcel, improved by a surface parking lot and exhibit hall constructed in 
1987, will be the last parcel to see new construction. 

The Disposition 

The Convention Center Parcel will be used to 

facilitate development of a higher education 

campus in Downtown Jacksonville consistent 

with the discussion in the CRA Plan regarding 

the LaVilla Catalyst site area. Through the 

creation of a higher educational campus 

within Downtown, Downtown will be 

positioned to provide a highly trained workforce 

to businesses seeking to locate within Downtown 

and the region. This use is consistent with the BID 

Plan goals and objectives described below and the 

commitments to development on site and 

establishment of the Downtown Jacksonville 

campus warrant the disposition without additional 

cash consideration. An appraisal has been ordered 

for the site by DIA and should be available before 

Committee. 

 

If the subject Resolution 2025-02-02 is approved by the RE&PD Committee, and subsequently by the DIA 

Board, a public notice for the disposition of the Convention Center parcel will be published to allow 



Staff Report to Resolution 2025-02-02 

3 

 

other bidders the chance to propose under the terms and conditions provided in the Exhibit C, “Essential 

Terms of Disposition Notice” to the Resolution which would provide an option to acquire the property in 

the future. Such terms and conditions also require other proposers to use the site for a higher educational 

campus or passenger rail related uses, demonstrate the requisite experience for such acquisition and use, 

and also demonstrate access to capital for the project as well as commit to construction of an initial 

building of at least 40,000 square feet with a capital investment of $40 million and only after completion 

of development on Site A.  Additional terms and conditions provide City protections if such development 

activity does not follow following conveyance to the winning proposer, whether to UF or an alternative 

bidder. 

 

As a negotiated disposition, the Resolution also contains the terms (set forth in Exhibit B to Resolution 

2025-02-05) upon which the City agrees to provide the option to acquire to UF, if UF’s proposal provides 

the greatest value and benefit to the CRA and City. Among other requirements, UF may not exercise the 

Option for 5 years and until construction of the building on Site A has been completed. The deed will 

contain a reverter as well as a restriction on use for a higher education campus and a restriction on 

transfer. A performance schedule outlines the execution of the RDA, the closing, and growth of campus 

programs. Closing is expected to occur simultaneously with the City’s acquisition of the property but not 

later than December 20, 2026. The Convention Center Parcel shall be limited to use for a higher 

educational campus, including but not limited to such features as classrooms, research, laboratory, office 

and clinic uses, as well as residences, administration, retail, food, beverage, parking, recreation and other 

uses and services, all supporting the campus; and passenger rail supporting uses. Design and construction 

of a higher education campus is eventually expected to require the entire parcel at buildout, however the 

initial project will consist of at least one Class A building totaling not less than 40,000 square feet and 

investment of not less than $40,000,000. It is anticipated that full buildout of the parcel may take up to 

fifteen (15) years but may not begin until five (5) years after the execution of the Redevelopment 

Agreement. Additionally, Developer shall provide the City and DIA with a minimum two (2) years advance 

notice of intention to exercise the option on the Convention Center Parcel to accommodate booking 

reservations in the current facility. 

 

BID Strategy and CRA Plan: 

In context of the Downtown Northbank CRA, the disposition of City owned parcels satisfies the BID and 

CRA plan and statutory requirements in the following ways.  

 

Redevelopment Goal 1: Increase…job growth to reinforce Downtown as the region’s epicenter for 

business.  

Through the creation of an educational campus of a top tier university within Downtown, Downtown will 

be positioned to provide a highly trained workforce to businesses seeking to locate within Downtown and 

the region. Further, the location of a major research institute within the proposed campus will further 

solidify Downtown as the region’s epicenter for business. 

 

Strategic Objectives: 

• Improve the occupancy rates of existing Downtown commercial office buildings. 

• Grow or maintain the Downtown workforce each year by adding new permanent jobs and/or 



Staff Report to Resolution 2025-02-02 

4 

 

retaining existing permanent jobs within Downtown. 

 

Redevelopment Goal 2: Increase rental and owner-occupied housing Downtown…  

The proposed campus will increase the demand for housing within the immediate vicinity as well as 

throughout Downtown. In addition, some student housing is envisioned to be part of the campus or 

developed nearby. 

  

Strategic Objectives:  

• Actively pursue a minimum of 8,140 built and occupied multi-family dwelling units by 2030; 

and strive to induce construction of 425 multifamily dwelling units per year, on average.  

• Improve the breadth and diversity of housing options across Downtown Jacksonville to 

provide all types and varied price ranges of rental and owner-occupied opportunities, 

including mixed-income and mixed-use structures.  

 

Redevelopment Goal No. 3: Increase and diversify the number and type of retail, food and beverage, 

and entertainment establishments within Downtown.  

The proposed campus will include multiple mixed-use buildings that include publicly accessible food and 

beverage or other retail establishments.  

 

Strategic Objectives:  

• Increase the number of retail, food and beverage, and entertainment establishments that are 

open for business weekends and other times outside of weekday business hours.  

• Pursue the addition of one or more new neighborhood restaurant/entertainment venues in 

each District by 2025 and a second by 2030.  

 

Disposal of property in a Community Redevelopment Area must adhere to Florida statute 163.380, which 

allows the Combined Northbank CRA to “sell, lease, dispose of, or otherwise transfer real property or any 

interest therein acquired by it for community redevelopment in a community redevelopment area,…and 

may enter into contracts with respect thereto for…educational, or other uses, in accordance with the 

community redevelopment plan, subject to such covenants, conditions, and restrictions, including 

covenants running with the land, as it deems necessary or desirable to assist in preventing the 

development or spread of future slums or blighted areas or to otherwise carry out the purposes of this 

part.” The second part of the ordinance requires that the property “be sold or transferred at a value 

determined to be in the public interest for uses in accordance with the community redevelopment plan,” 

which have been outlined above.  

 

Importantly, the statute provides the following, “In determining the value of real property as being in the 

public interest for uses in accordance with the community redevelopment plan, the county, municipality, 

or community redevelopment agency shall take into account and give consideration to the long-term 

benefits to be achieved by the county, municipality, or community redevelopment agency resulting from 

incurring short-term losses or costs in the disposal of such real property; the uses provided in such plan; 

the restrictions upon, and the covenants, conditions, and obligations assumed by, the purchaser or lessee 

or by the county, municipality, or community redevelopment agency retaining the property; and the 



Staff Report to Resolution 2025-02-02 

5 

 

objectives of such plan for the prevention of the recurrence of slum or blighted areas. In the event the value 

of such real property being disposed of is for less than the fair value, such disposition shall require the 

approval of the governing body, which approval may only be given following a duly noticed public hearing.”  

 

The community benefits of establishing the University of Florida graduate campus are anticipated to 

provide long-term benefits that outweigh any short-term monetary losses that may be incurred through 

the transfer of the property at no cost to UF. The aging Convention Center has been under consideration 

for replacement for some time and is approaching the end of its useful life without substantial 

improvements. Both sort term and long term plans for replacement are under consideration. 

 

Summary of Terms and Conditions of Disposition to UF: 

• The Convention Center Parcel must be used by the winning bidder for a higher educational 

campus, including such features as: (i) classrooms, research, laboratory, office and clinic uses, as 

well as residences, administration, retail, food, beverage, parking, recreation and other uses and 

services, all supporting the campus and (ii) passenger rail supporting uses. The deed of 

conveyance will include such restrictions. 

• The first building to be designed and constructed on the Convention Center Parcel shall be 

designed and constructed in accordance with the Performance Schedule set forth below and shall 

represent a minimum of 40,000 square feet of initial improvements consistent with the standards 

of the remainder of the campus and a minimum capital investment of at least $40 million for 

construction of such building, any parking facility and related horizontal improvements.  

• Developer may not exercise the option to acquire the property until five years have elapsed since 

the effective date of the Option Agreement and until Developer has completed construction of 

the minimum required improvements on Sites A and be under construction with the 

improvements on Site B in accordance with Performance Schedule therefor contained in the 

Redevelopment Agreement.  

• Developer shall provide the City and DIA with a minimum two (2) years advance notice of 

intention to exercise the option on the Convention Center Parcel to accommodate booking 

reservations in the current facility. Closing will occur upon a mutually agreeable date but no later 

than 25 months following Developer’s notice of intent to exercise the option. 

• The City will grant Developer early access to the Convention Center Parcel to conduct inspections 

prior to execution of the Redevelopment Agreement. In addition, following the execution of the 

Redevelopment Agreement the Developer will have an additional period, if needed, to have a 

cumulative total of one hundred eighty (180) calendar days from the grant of access (the “Due 

Diligence Period”) to inspect and perform tests on the Convention Center parcel and any other 

LaVilla parcels awarded to Developer through disposition or included in the campus master plan 

pursuant to a scope of work approved by Developer and the DIA to determine its suitability for 

the Project, and to investigate the quality and marketability of the title of the fee simple interest 

it will receive from the City. 

• The City agrees to convey the Convention Center Parcel in “as-is” condition by way of a quit claim 

deed for fee simple interest in the property. 

• Developer to pay all doc stamps as required by law. 

• Conveyance will follow the Due Diligence period and approval by City Council and execution of 



Staff Report to Resolution 2025-02-02 

6 

 

the Redevelopment Agreement and associated documents by all parties, upon a mutually 

agreeable date but no sooner than five (5) years after the execution of the Redevelopment 

Agreement. 

• The Deed will include a reverter of the Convention Center Parcel in favor of the City in the event 

Developer fails to commence construction on the Convention Center Project within a period of 3 

years after the closing of the acquisition of the Convention Center Parcel under the Option 

Agreement (subject to force majeure) In addition, the Property will be restricted to Campus Uses 

and passenger rail related uses and subject to a restrictions on transfer. 

• The Redevelopment Agreement or deed shall include a mutually agreeable right of repurchase to 

allow the City to re-acquire the Property if there is a cessation of Campus Uses, and it becomes 

dilapidated as defined between the parties. 

• The design will comply with the Downtown Overlay Standards as enacted within the Jacksonville 

Municipal Code as well as the DDRB's development guidelines, except as may otherwise be 

approved by the DDRB and allowed by code. The design is subject to further review and approval 

of the Downtown Investment Authority for consistency with its BID and CRA Plan and of the DIA 

and COJ for consistency with associated adopted studies and plans. 

 

UF Performance Schedule Summary: 

 

• The Redevelopment Agreement will be entered into by the Developer, DIA and the City within 

forty-five (45) days following City Council approval legislation authorizing the same. Due 

Diligence period of one hundred eighty (180) days as defined above with termination rights as 

found in the Redevelopment Agreement.  

• Developer must commence design of a least one Class A educational building on the Convention 

Center Parcel comprising the minimum required square footage within six (6) months of closing 

of the acquisition of the Convention Center Parcel under the Option Agreement and proceed 

diligently using commercially reasonable efforts to complete applications for permitting of 

horizontal and vertical construction of the such building(s) within 18 months of closing of the 

acquisition of the Convention Center Parcel under the Option Agreement.  

• Commencement of Construction of Horizontal Improvements on the Convention Center Parcel 

must commence no later than six (6) months following Developer’s receipt of necessary permits 

and approvals for such work, or the closing date, whichever occurs last.  

• Commencement of Construction of Vertical Improvements must commence on the Convention 

Center Parcel within six (6) months of completion of horizontal improvements but in no event 

no later than eighteen (18) months following Developer’s receipt of necessary permits and 

approvals for such work or the closing date, whichever occurs last.  

• Substantial Completion of the Construction of the initial building meeting the minimum 

requirements for size and investment on the Convention Center Parcel shall be diligently 

pursued to completion using commercially reasonable efforts to achieve Substantial Completion 

no later than 3 years after vertical commencement thereof.  

• The foregoing deadlines will be subject to extensions of up to six (6) months granted by the 

DIA's Chief Executive Officer and an additional up to six (6) months by the DIA Board without 

additional City approval upon reasonable cause shown. In addition, extensions shall be available 



Staff Report to Resolution 2025-02-02 

7 

 

for force majeure. Such extension of the Commencement Date shall also apply to the date of 

Substantial Completion,  



TAB III.E 

RESOLUTION 2025-02-03 TRAIN STATION DISPOSITION OF OPTION 



Train Station/UF 
 

1 
 

RESOLUTION 2025-02-03 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

(“DIA”) INSTRUCTING ITS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO”) TO 

ISSUE A 30-DAY NOTICE OF DISPOSITION IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

FLORIDA STATUTES AND THE NEGOTIATED DISPOSITION POLICY 

APPROVED BY ORDINANCE 2022-372-E; AUTHORIZING THE 

PUBLICATION OF A NOTICE OF DISPOSITION FOR AN OPTION TO 

ACQUIRE THE FEE SIMPLE TO APPROXIMATELY 2.13 ACRES OF 

CITY-OWNED PROPERTY IMPROVED BY AN HISTORICALLY 

DESIGNATED LANDMARK 1919 TRAIN STATION CURRENTLY USED 

IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE CONVENTION CENTER AS DEPICTED 

ON EXHIBIT A ATTACHED HERETO AND A PORTION OF THE 

PARCEL IDENTIFIED BY DUVAL COUNTY TAX PARCEL NUMBER 

074887 0000, (THE “TRAIN STATION PARCEL”) EXCLUDING FROM 

SUCH TAX PARCEL THE CONVENTION CENTER EXHIBITON HALL 

AND PARKING CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 14.71 ACRES AS 

WELL AS APPROXIMATELY 2.04 ACRES ADJACENT TO SITE’S 

WESTERN BOUNDARY RESERVED TO THE CITY FOR FUTURE 

PASSENGER RAIL EXPANSION BOTH AS DEPICTED ON EXHIBIT B; 

EXPRESSING THE INTENTION, ABSENT HIGHER RESPONSIVE 

OFFERS, TO DISPOSE OF SAID PROPERTY IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

THE NEGOTIATED TERMS ATTACHED HERETO AS EXHIBIT C, AND 

ESTABLISHING THE TERMS OF THE PUBLISHED NOTICE OF 

DISPOSITION ATTACHED HERETO AS EXHIBIT D; AND FINDING 

THAT THIS RESOLUTION FURTHERS THE BUSINESS INVESTMENT 

AND DEVELOPMENT (“BID”) PLAN, INCLUDING THE COMMUNITY 

REDEVELOPMENT AREA PLAN; AUTHORIZING THE CEO OF THE 

DIA TO TAKE ALL ACTION NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THE 

PURPOSES OF THIS RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, via Ordinance 2012-0364-E, the City Council created the Downtown 

Investment Authority, designating the DIA as the City’s Community Redevelopment Agency for 

the Combined Northbank Downtown Community Redevelopment Area and authorizing it to 

approve and negotiate economic development agreements and dispose of City-owned property; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, DIA is the designated Community Redevelopment Agency for the 

Northbank CRA, for which a Business Investment and Development Plan, inclusive of a 

Community Redevelopment Plan, (“BID/CRA Plan”) was adopted by Ordinance 2014-560-E and 

updated by Ordinance 2022-372-E; and 



Train Station/UF 
 

2 
 

 

WHEREAS, Section 55.108 of the Jacksonville Code of Ordinances grants certain powers 

and duties to the DIA, including: 

 

Interpreting the BID/CRA Plan and approving development and redevelopment projects 

within Downtown. 

 

Implementing the BID/CRA Plan, and negotiating and approving downtown development 

and redevelopment agreements, grant agreements, license agreements, and lease 

agreements.  

 

Planning and proposing Projects and Public facilities within Downtown; and 

 

Subject to Section 122.434, Ordinance Code (Procedure for disposition of Community 

Development Property), hold, control, manage, lease, sell, dedicate, grant, or otherwise 

dispose of any of the City’s Downtown assets and properties managed by the DIA, or any 

interest therein. 

 

WHEREAS, the City owns approximately 18.88 acres of real property which is identified 

by Duval County Tax Parcel Number RE# 074887 0000 within the Combined Downtown 

Northbank Community Redevelopment Area (“Northbank CRA”) which is currently used as the 

Prime Osborne Convention Center and is assigned to Public Buildings for property management ; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has expressed a willingness to surplus 2.13 acres of the foregoing 

property improved by an historically designated landmark 1919 train station currently used in 

conjunction with the Convention Center and constituting a portion of the parcel identified by Duval 

County Tax Parcel Number 074887 0000, as depicted on Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Train 

Station Parcel”)and make it available for redevelopment in the future, at which point the Train 

Station Parcel becomes an asset of the Northbank CRA and disposition follows the processes 

established by state law and local ordinances; and 

 

WHEREAS, University of Florida has shared with DIA an acquisition and master plan for 

improvements within the Downtown Northbank Community Redevelopment Area that envisions 

a University of Florida Campus on the Train Station Parcel and surrounding parcels in LaVilla; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City requires the continued use of the Train Station Parcel for at least five 

(5) years and the University of Florida plans to acquire and develop several nearby parcels prior 

to closing on and commencing redevelopment of the Train Station Parcel; and 

 



Train Station/UF 
 

3 
 

WHEREAS, University of Florida has proposed to acquire and improve inter alia, the 

Train Station Parcel in accordance with the Jacksonville Campus Master Plan, with multiple Class 

A facilities to be used as part of a higher educational campus including but not limited to such 

features as: (i) higher educational classrooms, research, laboratory, office and clinic uses, as well 

as residences, administration, retail, food and beverage, parking, recreation and other uses and 

services, all supporting the campus; and (ii)passenger rail supporting uses , all as integral 

components of the broader master plan proposed; and   

 

WHEREAS, the DIA finds that such University of Florida Jacksonville Campus is 

consistent with the Conceptual Master Plan and the adopted vision for the LaVilla and Convention 

Center Catalyst sites contained in the adopted BID Plan for the Downtown Northbank CRA as 

well as the adopted LaVilla Neighborhood Development Strategy; and 

 

WHEREAS, DIA entered negotiation with University of Florida regarding the terms of 

the disposition and redevelopment in accordance with DIA’s approved negotiated disposition 

process and the essential terms of the redevelopment proposal including certain of University of 

Florida's obligations and conditions to closing on the Train Station Parcel are set forth in the Term 

Sheet attached as Exhibit C; and 

 

WHEREAS, DIA has established the terms upon which a public notice of disposition will 

be published as set forth in Exhibit D; and  

 

WHEREAS, to determine fair value for the Train Station Parcel pursuant to Florida 

Statutes Chapter 163.380(2), and as required by City of Jacksonville Code of Ordinances 

§122.432, the DIA has engaged an appraiser to appraise the various parcels involved in the 

disposition; and  

 

WHEREAS, development of the University of Florida Jacksonville Campus creates higher 

education opportunities expected to attract top tier students from around the world where such 

development will generate interest in development of a long underutilized historic area of 

Downtown Jacksonville, draw firms into the area creating new employment opportunities, and put 

City-owned properties to use for the overall benefit of the local community; and 

 

WHEREAS, the DIA finds that the proposed disposition and redevelopment proposal 

further the following Redevelopment Goal and Strategic Objectives found in the BID/CRA Plan: 

 

Redevelopment Goal 1: Increase…job growth to reinforce Downtown as the region’s 

epicenter for business. 

 

Through the creation of an educational campus of a top tier university within Downtown, 

Downtown will be positioned to provide a highly trained workforce to businesses seeking 

to locate within Downtown and the region. Further, the location of a major research 



Train Station/UF 
 

4 
 

institute within the proposed campus will further solidify Downtown as the region’s 

epicenter for business. 

 

Redevelopment Goal 2: Increase rental and owner-occupied housing Downtown… 

 

The proposed campus will increase the demand for housing within the immediate vicinity 

as well as throughout Downtown. In addition, some student housing is envisioned to be 

part of the campus or developed nearby. 

 

Strategic Objectives: 

• Actively pursue a minimum of 8,140 built and occupied multi-family dwelling units 

by 2030; and strive to induce construction of 425 multifamily dwelling units per year, 

on average. 

• Improve the breadth and diversity of housing options across Downtown Jacksonville 

to provide all types and varied price ranges of rental and owner-occupied 

opportunities, including mixed-income and mixed-use structures. 

 

Redevelopment Goal No. 3: Increase and diversify the number and type of retail, food 

and beverage, and entertainment establishments within Downtown. 

  

The proposed campus will include multiple mixed-use buildings that include publicly 

accessible food and beverage or other retail establishments. 

  

 Strategic Objectives: 

• Increase the number of retail, food and beverage, and entertainment establishments that 

are open for business weekends and other times outside of weekday business hours. 

• Pursue the addition of one or more new neighborhood restaurant/entertainment venues 

in each District by 2025 and a second by 2030. 

  

WHEREAS, at a publicly noticed meeting held on February 13, 2025, the DIA Retail 

Enhancement and Property Disposition Committee (“REPD”) recommended that the DIA Board 

adopt Resolution 2025-02-02; and 

 

WHEREAS, upon adoption of this Resolution, a 30-day public notice for the solicitation 

of proposals pursuant to Section 163.380(3)(a), Florida Statutes, and Sections 122.434(a) and (b), 

Jacksonville Ordinance Code, will be issued. 

  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment Authority: 

  

Section 1. The recitals set forth above are true and correct and are hereby incorporated 

herein by this reference.   

 



Train Station/UF 
 

5 
 

Section 2.   The DIA has determined that in furtherance of its plan to facilitate 

development in the Downtown Northbank Community Redevelopment Area the Train Station 

Parcel should be developed for use as a University of Florida Campus in accordance with the terms 

outlined in Exhibit C, attached herein, unless a responsive proposal of greater value is received, 

and that the commitments of the University of Florida regarding development of the property 

constitute fair value for the land. 

 

Section 3.  The DIA instructs the Chief Executive Officer of the Downtown Investment 

Authority to take all action necessary to effectuate the thirty (30) day Notice of Disposition for the 

Train Station Parcel in accordance with its Negotiated Notice of Disposition Process and pursuant 

to the terms set forth in Exhibit D and consistent with Florida Statutes and the Ordinance Code.  

 

Section 4. Proposals received, if any, will be reviewed by the DIA Chief Executive 

Officer, who will make a recommendation to the DIA Board regarding any responsive alternate 

proposals received. 

 

Section 5. If no alternate responsive and qualified proposals are received, or if they are 

determined by the CEO to be lower in value or unresponsive, the DIA authorizes its CEO to 

finalize negotiation of a Redevelopment Agreement with University of Florida substantially in 

accordance with the terms set forth on Exhibit C, and including such additional dispositions as 

may be approved and authorized by Resolution, and file legislation seeking approval of the 

disposition and Redevelopment Agreement and associated documents with City Council. 

 

Section 6. The DIA Board hereby authorizes the CEO of the Downtown Investment 

Authority to take all action necessary to effectuate the purposes of this Resolution. 

 

Section 7.    This Resolution, 2025-02-03, shall become effective on the date it is signed 

by the Chair of the DIA Board. 

  

 

 

 

 

WITNESS:      DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

 

______________________            _______________ 

           Patrick Krechowski, Esq., Chairman  Date 

 

 

 

VOTE:  In Favor: ______ Opposed: ______ Abstained: ______         



Train Station/UF 
 

6 
 

     

Exhibit A to Resolution 2025-02-03 

Train Station Parcel- a portion of  RE# 074887 0000 consisting of approximately 2.13 acres: 

 
 

 



7 
ACTIVE:35403513.9 

 

 

  

 

Exhibit B to Resolution 2025-02-03 

Convention Center exclusion from RE# 074887 0000: Approximately 14.71  acres of City-owned 

property improved by a surface parking lot and convention center exhibit hall constructed in 

approximately 1987 as depicted below and consisting of a portion of the parcel identified by Duval 

County tax parcel number 074887 0000, (the “Convention Center Parcel”) located in the LaVilla 

District within the Downtown Northbank Community Redevelopment Area of Downtown 

Jacksonville. 

 

Convention Center parcel depicted above 



8 
ACTIVE:35403513.9 

 

 

  

Railroad Expansion exclusion from RE# 074887 0000 consisting of approximately 2.04 acres: 

 

 
Reserved Rail Parcel depicted above  



9 
ACTIVE:35403513.9 

 

 

  

Exhibit C 

Term Sheet 

 

Resolution 2025-02-03 

 

Developer:  University of Florida 

 

The Train Station Parcel:  A 2.13 acre, plus or minus, parcel of land as depicted on the foregoing Exhibit 

A site plan (“the “Train Station Parcel”) to be conveyed following award of an option to 

acquire the Train Station Parcel pursuant to a publicly noticed disposition consistent with 

the closing conditions below including negotiation of a Redevelopment Agreement 

consistent with the terms set forth herein and approval by the Jacksonville City Council 

of legislation authorizing the same. 

 

Use limitation:  The Train Station Parcel  shall be limited to use for a higher educational campus, including 

but not limited to  such features as: (i) classrooms, research, laboratory, office and clinic 

uses, as well as residences, administration, retail, food, beverage,  parking, recreation 

and other uses and services, all supporting the campus (“Campus Uses”) ; and (ii) 

passenger rail supporting uses  and the deed of conveyance will include such a restriction. 

 

Purchase Price: The consideration for the Train Station Parcel shall be the Developer’s commitment to 

development on the Train Station Parcel as described below and there shall be no cash 

purchase price paid for the land. 

 

The Site A Project: To include the design and construction of one or more Class A-buildings on Site A 

identified by Duval County Tax Parcel Number 074487-0020  with a minimum of 60,000 

square feet of gross square feet of occupiable space in the aggregate and with a minimum 

capital investment of $80 million on Site A.  

 

The Train Station Parcel Project:   Design and construction of renovations to the Train Station 

Parcel, consistent with all applicable historic preservation codes and required approvals, 

to facilitate adaptive reuse of the Train Station Parcel, including for multiple food and 

beverage establishments and other retail venues that are all open to the public, and to 

include a train station ticket booth for future passenger rail service. With a minimum 

capital investment of $5 million for such renovations. The Train Station Parcel may also 

include Campus Uses that do not interfere with principal public use as a food, beverage 

and retail destination and operations of a public-facing train station.  All improvements 

on the Property shall comply with the Downtown Zoning Overlay, subject to any 

deviation or variation as may be required for the improvements, with final approval by 

the Downtown Development Review Board (“DDRB”), or the COJ City Council as may be 

required. 

 

 

  



10 
ACTIVE:35403513.9 

 

 

  

Option Agreement: 

 An Option Agreement authorizing the Developer to close and take title to the Train 

Station Parcel upon satisfaction of the Preconditons to Closing will be executed and 

provided to Developer following  the approval by City Council and execution of the 

Redevelopment Agreement and completion of Due Diligence at the time of initial closing 

on other campus parcels.  The Option Agreement will terminate if Developer has not 

satisfied the preconditions to exercise within 20 years from the Effective Date of the 

Option Agreement, provided that closing may occur two (2) years after the expiration of 

such period to accommodate required notice to the City and DIA. 

 

Preconditions  

to Closing:   Developer may not exercise the option to close until five years have elapsed since the 

effective date of the Redevelopment Agreement and Option Agreement, and until 

Developer has completed construction of at least 60,000 square feet of improvements 

and at least $80 million on capital investment on Site A and/or Site B in accordance with 

Performance Schedule therefor contained in the Redevelopment Agreement. Developer 

shall provide the City and DIA with a minimum two (2) years advance notice of intention 

to exercise the option on the Train Station Parcel to accommodate booking reservations 

in the current facility. Closing will occur upon a mutually agreeable date but no later than 

25 months following Developer’s notice of intent to exercise the option.  The 

Redevelopment Agreement may contain certain additional conditions to closing as may 

be agreed upon by the parties.  No closing on any parcel shall occur until the Developer 

has completed its due diligence and agreed to move forward without termination or the 

Due Diligence Period has expired. 

 

Redevelopment  

Agreement: The Redevelopment Agreement (sometimes referred to as the “RDA”) will establish, inter 

alia, the essential terms of the conveyance of the Property, the Developer’s rights and 

responsibilities with respect to design and use, the Developer’s and the City’s obligations 

with respect to construction of infrastructure improvements, if any, site remediation, 

improvements on the Property and other terms relevant to development of the Property 

including rights of reversion in favor of the DIA and the City if development activity does 

not occur after closing as agreed upon by the parties.  The RDA will become effective 

upon its execution following approval by COJ, and final University of Florida Board of 

Trustee approval, with an outside date for execution by Developer of forty-five  (45) days 

following the effective date of the legislation (which date shall be set forth in the 

legislation). While this term sheet summarizes certain of the terms and conditions that 

will be contained in the RDA, it is not a complete statement of all such terms and 

conditions. Additional terms and conditions essential to implementation of the master 

plan will also be included in the RDA.  

 

Site  

Investigation:  The City will grant Developer early access to the Train Station Parcel to conduct 

inspections prior to execution of the Redevelopment Agreement.  In addition, following 

the execution of the Redevelopment Agreement the Developer will have an additional 



11 
ACTIVE:35403513.9 

 

 

  

period, if needed, to have a cumulative total of one hundred eighty (180) calendar days 

from the grant of access (the “Due Diligence Period”) to inspect and perform tests on the 

Train Station parcel and any other LaVilla parcels awarded to Developer through 

disposition or included in the campus master plan pursuant to a scope of work 

approved by Developer and the DIA to determine its suitability for the Project, and to 

investigate the quality and marketability of the title of the fee simple interest it will 

receive from the City. Upon providing written notice to the DIA, the Developer may 

terminate the Redevelopment Agreement and the Train Station Parcel Project any time 

within the Due Diligence Period without cause and without incurring any obligations 

under the Redevelopment Agreement. If no written termination notice is delivered by 

Developer to the DIA prior to the expiration of the Due Diligence Period, all remaining 

terms found in the Redevelopment Agreement shall be in effect. 

 

Environmental: City will provide access to the Train Station Parcel for any required investigation but shall 

not be liable for environmental issues that arise by actions taken by the Developer or its 

agents during inspection or following conveyance of the Train Station Parcel, including 

liability for any damage caused by Developer or its contractors during construction. 

 

AS IS conveyance: Except for any representations and warranties or as otherwise may be agreed upon by 

the parties in the Redevelopment Agreement, the City agrees to convey the Train Station 

Parcel in “as-is” condition and is not undertaking any obligation, financial or otherwise, 

to remediate the sites, clear title, or otherwise.  

 

Form of Deed: The City will convey title by Quit Claim Deed as required by the Ordinance Code, unless 

waived. 

 

Documentary  

Stamps: The City is precluded by law from the payment of Documentary stamp taxes. Such taxes, 

if any, will be paid by Developer or someone on Developer’s behalf. 

 

Survey: DIA to provide Developer with a survey map and prepared legal description for the 

Property on or before the RDA execution date. If Developer desires a stamped survey 

depicting all improvements and easements, etc. the Developer shall obtain the same at 

its cost and expense. 

 

Title Commitment: DIA shall obtain and deliver to Developer a title commitment for the Property on or 

before the RDA execution date. Title insurance, if desired, shall be issued at closing at 

Developer’s expense. 

 

Appraisal: DIA shall obtain an appraisal of the Train Station Parcel at DIA’s expense as required for 

disposition and shall make the same available to Developer on or before execution of the 

RDA.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City will deed the Train Station Parcel to 

Developer for no monetary consideration in recognition of the other obligations of 

Developer set forth in the RDA. 

 



12 
ACTIVE:35403513.9 

 

 

  

Restriction on  

Further Transfer:  Property to be deed restricted against further transfer without the approval of DIA 

except as may be otherwise set forth in the Redevelopment Agreement (such as 

conveyance to university direct-support organizations (as defined in Section 1004.28, 

Florida Statutes), university health services support organizations (as defined in Section 

1004.29, Florida Statutes), and their subsidiaries). 

 

Reverter:   The Deed will include a reverter of the Train Station Parcel in favor of the City in the event 

Developer fails to commence construction on the Train Station Parcel within a period of 

1 year after the closing of the acquisition of the Train Station Parcel under the Option 

Agreement (subject to force majeure).  In addition, the Property will be restricted to 

Campus Uses and passenger rail related uses and subject to the restrictions on transfer 

set forth herein.   

 

Right of repurchase: The Redevelopment Agreement or deed shall include a mutually agreeable right of 

repurchase to allow the City to re-acquire the Property if there is a cessation of Campus 

Uses, and it becomes dilapidated as defined between the parties. 

 

Entitlements:  Mobility Credits will be provided to Developer if Developer earns the same through its 

design in accordance with the criteria for the Mobility Fee Credit established in the 

adopted BID Strategy.  Stormwater Credits may be available for purchase by Developer 

in accordance with the ordinance governing the same once the quantity of credits 

required is known and subject to the availability of credits in the City or Downtown 

Stormwater Credit Bank. The historic Union Terminal Building is comprised of 32,336 

square feet of existing government/institutional entitlements. Should the Developer 

exercise their option to purchase the Train Station Parcel, at or prior to commencing 

design of the Train Station Parcel, Developer will provide to the DIA a development plan. 

The development may convert existing Train Station Parcel entitlements utilizing the 

conversion rates in Table L-2: CBD Land Use Transportation / Trade-off Matrix in 

furtherance of their development plan consistent with the permitted use above and 

applicable historic approvals. Should additional entitlements be necessary, Developer 

will request and DIA will allocate the required additional entitlements, with that 

allocation formalized via an Allocation of Development Rights Agreement, or functional 

equivalent thereof. 

 

Design: a) The Developer will design renovations to the Train Station Parcel consistent with 

applicable Historic Preservation requirements, for adaptive reuse with the goal of 

creating a vibrant retail, food and beverage hub as the focal point for the educational 

campus and historic LaVilla neighborhood. 

b) The design will comply with the Downtown Overlay Standards as enacted within the 

Jacksonville Municipal Code as well as the DDRB's development guidelines, except as 

may otherwise be approved by the DDRB and allowed by code. The design is subject 

to further review and approval of the Downtown Investment Authority for 

consistency with its BID and CRA Plan and of the DIA and COJ for consistency with 

associated adopted studies and plans. 



13 
ACTIVE:35403513.9 

 

 

  

c) In collaboration with the City’s Chief Resiliency Officer and the Florida Institute for 

Built Environment Resilience, the design may include resiliency features, including to 

the extent practicable the design recommendations set forth in Resilient Jacksonville 

published in October 2023 and its update published in October 2024. 

d) Parking and landscaping will comply with the City's standard as found in the 

Downtown Design Standards, except as otherwise approved through deviations or 

variances.   

 

Performance  

Schedule: 

a) The Redevelopment Agreement will be entered into by the Developer, DIA and the 

City within forty-five (45) days following City Council approval legislation authorizing 

the same. Due Diligence period of one hundred eighty (180) days as defined above 

with termination rights as found in the Redevelopment Agreement. 

b) Developer must commence design of the Train Station Parcel renovations within six 

(6) months of closing of the acquisition of the Train Station Parcel under the Option 

Agreement and proceed diligently using commercially reasonable efforts to 

complete applications for permitting of all renovations within 18 months of closing. 

c) Commencement of renovations to the Train Station Parcel must commence no later 

than six months following Developer’s receipt of necessary permits and approvals for 

such work. 

d) Substantial Completion of the renovations of the Train Station Parcel shall be 

diligently pursued to completion using commercially reasonable efforts to achieve 

Substantial Completion no later than 2 years after commencement thereof.  

e) The foregoing deadlines will be subject to extensions of up to six (6) months granted 

by the DIA's Chief Executive Officer and an additional up to six (6) months by the DIA 

Board without additional City approval upon reasonable cause shown. In addition, 

extensions shall be available for force majeure. Such extension of the 

Commencement Date shall also apply to the date of Substantial Completion, so that 

a single extension provided will apply to both simultaneously 

f) Following entry into the Redevelopment Agreement the Developer will provide 

project updates to DIA every six (6) months, and the DIA reserves the right to inspect 

the Property with not less than 48 hours notice to Developer, and not more than 

once per month prior to Substantial Completion of any improvements. 

g) Provisions of this Term Sheet are intended to guide the parties in negotiating the 

Redevelopment Agreement and any other documents that may be necessary to give 

effect to the manifest intent of the parties expressed herein, but no party shall be 

bound unless and until a fully executed Redevelopment Agreement is approved and 

entered into. 

 

 



14 
ACTIVE:35403513.9  

Exhibit D to Resolution 2025-02-03 
Essential Terms of Disposition Notice 

1. Property Interest considered for disposition regarding an approximately 2.13 acre portion of

RE# 074887 0000 (the “Train Station Parcel“) :

a. Option Agreement to acquire fees simple title, exercisable no sooner than 5 years from

execution and only following development of affiliated campus facilities with a minimum

capital investment of $80 million and consisting of at least 60,000 gross square feet.

Option to expire twenty (20) years from execution of the Option Agreement if

preconditions to exercise have not been satisfied, provided that closing may occur two

(2) years after the expiration of such period to accommodate required notice to the City

and DIA.

b. Upon exercise of Option, fee simple title by Quit Claim Deed, unless waived by Ordinance.

Fee Simple title, in “as is” condition, subject to any representations and warranties in the

Redevelopment Agreement and also subject to covenants, easements and restrictions of

record.

2. The Train Station is a designated Historic Landmark and all renovations and use must comply

with applicable historic preservation codes and requirements.

3. Use: The Property shall be limited to use for a higher educational campus, public retail, food and

beverage, and passenger rail related uses.

4. Minimum capital investment on the Train Station Parcel  of $ 5 million.

5. The Redevelopment Agreement or deed shall include a mutually agreeable right of repurchase to

allow the City to re-acquire the Property if there is a cessation of Campus Uses, and it becomes

dilapidated as defined between the parties.

6. Redevelopment Agreement to be executed within forty-five (45) days following City Council

approval thereof.

7. Construction must comply with applicable historic requirements and approvals as well as

Downtown Zoning Overlay including approval of any deviation or variance as may be required for

the improvements.

8. Deed to contain a reverter if renovation of the Train Station Parcel to include food and beverage

establishments, is not commenced on the Property within 2 years after closing of the acquisition

of the Train Station Parcel under the Option Agreement.

9. If conveyance is to a non-profit or tax-exempt entity, Property to be deed restricted against

further transfer without the approval of DIA except to approved affiliates.

10. Developer must demonstrate successful track record of the development and operation of similar

facilities.

11. Developer to demonstrate current and previous capacity and capability to raise debt and equity

funds necessary for project financing.

12. Proposal must identify if Developer or proposed owner is exempt from payment of ad valorem

taxes or if taxes will be paid on the proposed improvements to be constructed on the parcel.

13. Developer must commence design of renovations to facilitate the proposed adaptive reuse within

six (6) months of closing on the Train Station Parcel and proceed diligently using commercially

reasonable efforts to complete applications for permitting of the initial horizontal and vertical



15 
ACTIVE:35403513.9 

 

 

  

construction within 18 months of closing on of the acquisition of the Train Station Parcel under 

the Option Agreement. 

14. Commencement of authorized and permitted renovations on the Property must commence no 

later than six months following receipt of applicable permits and approvals. 

15. Substantial Completion of the authorized and permitted renovations shall be no later than 2 years 

following Commencement of such renovations. 

16. The foregoing deadlines will be subject to extensions of up to six (6) months granted by the DIA's 

Chief Executive Officer and an additional up to six (6) months by the DIA Board without additional 

City approval upon reasonable cause shown. In addition, extensions shall be available for force 

majeure. Such extension of the Commencement Date shall also apply to the date of Substantial 

Completion, so that a single extension provided will apply to both simultaneously. 

 

 

 



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

RESOLUTION 2025-02-03 TRAIN STATION DISPOSITION OF OPTION                 
STAFF REPORT 



Staff Report to Resolution 2025-02-03 

1 

 

CRA NEGOTIATED PROPERTY DISPOSITION 

Historic Train Station 

 

Staff Report for DIA RE&PD Committee  

 

February 17, 2025 

 

Property: 1000 W Bay Street 

Parcels(s):                  074887 0000 
Acres:                Approximately 2.13 

 

Project: University of Florida Graduate Campus  

 

Program Request:  Negotiated Disposition 

 

Consideration for disposition:                           No cash purchase price  - commitments of  

                                         UF to renovate the property, operate it                                                                                             

for public food and beverage 

establishments as well as future     

passenger rail uses, and its commitment 

to establish campus 

 

  

Project Background: 

In February 2023, the University of Florida (“UF”) announced intentions to locate a new graduate campus 

at a then undetermined location in Downtown Jacksonville that would bring as many as 1,500 students 

and approximately 80 professors within an approximate five-year period from opening. Although degree 

and class offerings have not been finalized, early reports indicate the new graduate campus will focus on 

advanced studies in artificial intelligence, data analytics, computer science (concentrating on AI and 

cybersecurity), business management, law, and biomedical and health sciences, and semiconductor 

research. The campus is projected to cover 22 acres as it reaches its full capacity. A key component of the 

campus will be the Florida Semiconductor Institute, dedicated to advancing research and development in 

semiconductor technology, a critical area for national security and economic competitiveness. The 

institute has already secured $80 million in state funding, with additional federal support anticipated. 

 

The establishment of the Jacksonville campus is supported by significant funding from various sources. 

The state of Florida has committed $150 million, while the city of Jacksonville approved $50 million in 

Ordinance 2023-114, with an additional $50 million proposed. Private donors have also contributed $50 

million to the project. This investment is expected to have a substantial economic impact on the region, 

fostering innovation, creating job opportunities, and attracting talent to Jacksonville. 

 

In December 2024, the University announced that the LaVilla District had been selected for the location 
of the campus with focus on the parcels including and surrounding Prime Osborne Convention Center. 
most of which are City-owned. The site was selected in part due to the character of the historic Train 



Staff Report to Resolution 2025-02-03 

2 

 

Station and the opportunity for its adaptive reuse into a modern, bustling, publicly accessible “Union 
Terminal” accommodating both future passenger rail uses and  food and beverage establishments that 
would activate the neighborhood and campus. 
 

The Property: 

The historic terminal and entrance grounds, 
totaling approximately 2.13 acres, will be 
separated from the large parcel to preserve 
the history and re-introduce original uses on 
this property. The disposition will prohibit 
demolition and require adherence to all 
historic landmark regulations. It includes the 
footprint of the historic building as well as the 
entrance fountain and frontage on Lee and 
Bay Streets. 
 

The Disposition 

The disposition provides an option to acquire 
the Train Station Parcel. The Historically 
Designated Landmark train station, completed in 1919 will be transformed back to a Union 

Station with multiple food and 
beverage establishments and 
other retail venues that will all 
be open to the public and to 
accommodate future 
passenger rail.  
 
This use is consistent with the 
BID Plan goals and objectives 
described below and the 
commitments  to restoration 
of the historic facility and its 

adaptive re-use, as well as establishment of the Downtown Jacksonville campus warrant the 
disposition without additional cash consideration. An appraisal has been ordered for the site by 
DIA and should be available before Committee. 
 

If the subject Resolution 2025-02-05 is approved by the RE&PD Committee, and subsequently by the DIA 

Board, a public notice for the disposition of the Train Station Parcel will be published to allow other 

bidders the chance to propose under the terms and conditions provided in the Exhibit C, “Essential Terms 

of Disposition Notice” to the Resolution. Such terms and conditions would provide an option to acquire 

the property in the future, require other proposers to renovate the property for use as a public food and 

beverage venue along with passenger rail related use and to invest a minimum of $5 million to do so, 

comply with all requirements of historic designation and permitting, demonstrate the requisite 

experience for such acquisition and use, and also demonstrate access to capital for the project. Additional 



Staff Report to Resolution 2025-02-03 

3 

 

terms and conditions provide City protections if such development activity does not follow following 

conveyance to the winning proposer, whether to UF or an alternative bidder. 

 

As a negotiated disposition, the Resolution also contains the terms (set forth in Exhibit B to Resolution 

2025-02-05) upon which DIA agrees to convey the property to UF, if UF’s proposal provides the greatest 

value and benefit to the CRA. Among other requirements, if the Option is exercised, the deed will contain 

a reverter as well as a restriction on use for a higher education campus, passenger rail related uses and a 

food and beverage venue as well as a restriction on transfer. A performance schedule outlines the 

execution of the RDA, the closing, and timeline for exercise of the Option and renovations. In addition to 

the public spaces, the terminal will have some campus uses for the University of Florida. The 

option to take title of the station may be exercised no sooner than five (5) years from execution 

of the Redevelopment Agreement and only after UF completes construction of at least 60,000 

square feet of improvements and at least $80 million on capital investment on Site A and/or Site 

B in accordance with Performance Schedule therefor contained in the Redevelopment 

Agreement. Additionally, Developer shall provide the City and DIA with a minimum two (2) years 

advance notice of intention to exercise the option on the Train Station Parcel to accommodate 

booking reservations in the current facility. In renovating the station, UF will invest no less than 

$5,000,000. 

 

 

BID Strategy and CRA Plan: 

In context of the Downtown Northbank CRA, the disposition of City owned parcels satisfies the BID and 

CRA plan and statutory requirements in the following ways.  

 

Redevelopment Goal 1: Increase…job growth to reinforce Downtown as the region’s epicenter for 

business.  

Through the creation of an educational campus of a top tier university within Downtown, Downtown will 

be positioned to provide a highly trained workforce to businesses seeking to locate within Downtown and 

the region. Further, the location of a major research institute within the proposed campus will further 

solidify Downtown as the region’s epicenter for business. 

 

Strategic Objectives: 

• Improve the occupancy rates of existing Downtown commercial office buildings. 

• Grow or maintain the Downtown workforce each year by adding new permanent jobs and/or 

retaining existing permanent jobs within Downtown. 

 

Redevelopment Goal 2: Increase rental and owner-occupied housing Downtown…  

The proposed campus will increase the demand for housing within the immediate vicinity as well as 

throughout Downtown. In addition, some student housing is envisioned to be part of the campus or 

developed nearby. 

  

Strategic Objectives:  



Staff Report to Resolution 2025-02-03 

4 

 

• Actively pursue a minimum of 8,140 built and occupied multi-family dwelling units by 2030; 

and strive to induce construction of 425 multifamily dwelling units per year, on average.  

• Improve the breadth and diversity of housing options across Downtown Jacksonville to 

provide all types and varied price ranges of rental and owner-occupied opportunities, 

including mixed-income and mixed-use structures.  

 

Redevelopment Goal No. 3: Increase and diversify the number and type of retail, food and beverage, 

and entertainment establishments within Downtown.  

The proposed campus will include multiple mixed-use buildings that include publicly accessible food and 

beverage or other retail establishments.  

 

Strategic Objectives:  

• Increase the number of retail, food and beverage, and entertainment establishments that are 

open for business weekends and other times outside of weekday business hours.  

• Pursue the addition of one or more new neighborhood restaurant/entertainment venues in 

each District by 2025 and a second by 2030.  

 

Disposal of property in a Community Redevelopment Area must adhere to Florida statute 163.380, which 

allows the Combined Northbank CRA to “sell, lease, dispose of, or otherwise transfer real property or any 

interest therein acquired by it for community redevelopment in a community redevelopment area,…and 

may enter into contracts with respect thereto for…educational, or other uses, in accordance with the 

community redevelopment plan, subject to such covenants, conditions, and restrictions, including 

covenants running with the land, as it deems necessary or desirable to assist in preventing the 

development or spread of future slums or blighted areas or to otherwise carry out the purposes of this 

part.” The second part of the ordinance requires that the property “be sold or transferred at a value 

determined to be in the public interest for uses in accordance with the community redevelopment plan,” 

which have been outlined above.  

 

Importantly, the statute provides the following, “In determining the value of real property as being in the 

public interest for uses in accordance with the community redevelopment plan, the county, municipality, 

or community redevelopment agency shall take into account and give consideration to the long-term 

benefits to be achieved by the county, municipality, or community redevelopment agency resulting from 

incurring short-term losses or costs in the disposal of such real property; the uses provided in such plan; 

the restrictions upon, and the covenants, conditions, and obligations assumed by, the purchaser or lessee 

or by the county, municipality, or community redevelopment agency retaining the property; and the 

objectives of such plan for the prevention of the recurrence of slum or blighted areas. In the event the value 

of such real property being disposed of is for less than the fair value, such disposition shall require the 

approval of the governing body, which approval may only be given following a duly noticed public hearing.”  

 

The community benefits of establishing the University of Florida graduate campus are anticipated to 

provide long-term benefits that outweigh any short-term monetary losses that may be incurred through 

the transfer of the property at no cost to UF. Restoration of the historic former train station to it former 

vibrancy, consistently open to the public, providing needed food and beverage establishments  in the 



Staff Report to Resolution 2025-02-03 

5 

 

neighborhood and along the Emerald Trail, and facilitation of future passenger rail uses is of great benefit 

to the City and the CRA’s long term vision for the area. UF would assume the cost of restoration as well as 

long- term responsibility for maintenance and operation of the facility. 

 

Summary of Terms and Conditions of Disposition to UF: 

• The train station must be used by the winning bidder for the food, beverage and retail , as well as 

passenger rail uses described above, all open to the public,  with ancillary higher educational 

campus uses.  The deed of conveyance will include such restrictions. 

• The Total Capital Investment for the renovation of the train station will be no less than $5 Million. 

• Developer may not exercise the option to close until five years have elapsed since the effective 

date of the Redevelopment Agreement and Option Agreement, and until Developer has 

completed construction of at least 60,000 square feet of improvements and at least $80 million 

on capital investment on Site A and/or Site B in accordance with Performance Schedule therefor 

contained in the Redevelopment Agreement. 

• Developer shall provide the City and DIA with a minimum two (2) years advance notice of 

intention to exercise the option on the Train Station Parcel to accommodate booking reservations 

in the current facility. Closing will occur upon a mutually agreeable date but no later than 25 

months following Developer’s notice of intent to exercise the option. 

• The City will grant Developer early access to the Train Station Parcel to conduct inspections prior 

to execution of the Redevelopment Agreement. In addition, following the execution of the 

Redevelopment Agreement the Developer will have an additional period, if needed, to have a 

cumulative total of one hundred eighty (180) calendar days from the grant of access (the “Due 

Diligence Period”) to inspect and perform tests on the Train Station parcel and any other LaVilla 

parcels awarded to Developer through disposition or included in the campus master plan 

pursuant to a scope of work approved by Developer and the DIA to determine its suitability for 

the Project, and to investigate the quality and marketability of the title of the fee simple interest 

it will receive from the City. 

• The City agrees to convey the train station in “as-is” condition by way of a quit claim deed for fee 

simple interest in the property. 

• Developer to pay all doc stamps as required by law. 

• Conveyance will follow the Due Diligence period and approval by City Council and execution of 

the Redevelopment Agreement and associated documents by all parties, upon a mutually 

agreeable date but no sooner than five (5) years after the execution of the Redevelopment 

Agreement. 

• The Deed will include a reverter of the Train Station Parcel in favor of the City in the event 

Developer fails to commence renovations on the Train Station Parcel within a period of 1 year 

after the closing of the acquisition of the Train Station Parcel under the Option Agreement 

(subject to force majeure). In addition, the Property will be restricted to public food and beverage, 

Campus Uses and passenger rail related uses and subject to a restriction on transfer.  

• The Redevelopment Agreement or deed shall include a mutually agreeable right of repurchase to 

allow the City to re-acquire the Property if there is a cessation of Campus Uses, and it becomes 

dilapidated as defined between the parties. 

• The design will comply with the Downtown Overlay Standards as enacted within the Jacksonville 



Staff Report to Resolution 2025-02-03 

6 

 

Municipal Code as well as the DDRB's development guidelines, except as may otherwise be 

approved by the DDRB and allowed by code. The design is subject to further review and approval 

of the Downtown Investment Authority for consistency with its BID and CRA Plan and of the DIA 

and COJ for consistency with associated adopted studies and plans. 

 

UF Performance Schedule Summary: 

 
• The Redevelopment Agreement will be entered into by the Developer, DIA and the City within 

forty-five (45) days following City Council approval legislation authorizing the same. Due 

Diligence period of one hundred eighty (180) days with termination rights as found in the 

Redevelopment Agreement.  

• Developer must commence design of the Train Station Parcel renovations within six (6) months 

of closing of the acquisition of the Train Station Parcel under the Option Agreement and proceed 

diligently using commercially reasonable efforts to complete applications for permitting of all 

renovations within 18 months of closing.  

• Commencement of renovations to the Train Station Parcel must commence no later than six 

months following Developer’s receipt of necessary permits and approvals for such work.  

• Substantial Completion of the renovations of the Train Station Parcel shall be diligently pursued 

to completion using commercially reasonable efforts to achieve Substantial Completion no later 

than 2 years after commencement thereof.  

• The foregoing deadlines will be subject to extensions of up to six (6) months granted by the 

DIA's Chief Executive Officer and an additional up to six (6) months by the DIA Board without 

additional City approval upon reasonable cause shown. In addition, extensions shall be available 

for force majeure. Such extension of the Commencement Date shall also apply to the date of 

Substantial Completion, so that a single extension provided will apply to both simultaneously. 

 



TAB III.F 

RESOLUTION 2025-02-04 GATEWAY ACQUISITION AND DISPOSITIONS 



RESOLUTION 2025-02-04 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

(“DIA”) INSTRUCTING ITS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO”) TO 

ACQUIRE AN APPROXIMATELY 2.85 ACRE PARCEL WITH 

IMPROVEMENTS LOCATED AT 801 W BAY STREET IN THE LAVILLA 

DISTRICT OF DOWNTOWN JACKSONVILLE WITHIN THE COMBINED 

DOWNTOWN NORTHBANK REDEVELOPMENT AREA AS FURTHER 

IDENTIFIED IN EXHIBIT A TO THIS RESOLUTION (“801 W BAY 

STREET”) USING CURRENTLY UNDEVELOPED CRA PROPERTY AS 

CONSIDERATION FOR SUCH ACQUISITION, AND AUTHORIZING THE 

PUBLICATION OF A NOTICE OF DISPOSITION OF THE FEE SIMPLE 

INTEREST IN AN APPROXIMATELY 1.0 ACRE PARCEL OF CITY-

OWNED REAL PROPERTY LOCATED IN THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF 

RIVERFRONT PLAZA AS FURTHER IDENTIFIED IN EXHIBIT B 

ATTACHED HERETO (“RIVERFRONT PLAZA DEVELOPMENT PAD B”) 

AND INCLUDING AN OPTION TO ACQUIRE THE FEE SIMPLE INTEREST 

IN AN APPROXIMATELY 1.7 ACRE PARCEL OF CITY-OWNED REAL 

PROPERTY LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE OF THE MAIN STREET 

BRIDGE IMPROVED BY A SURFACE PARKING LOT AS FURTHER 

IDENTIFIED IN EXHIBIT C TO THIS RESOLUTION (“EAST LANDING 

LOT”), EXPRESSING THE INTENTION, ABSENT HIGHER RESPONSIVE 

OFFERS, TO DISPOSE OF THE RIVERFRONT PLAZA DEVELOPMENT 

PAD B PROPERTY AND THE EAST LANDING LOT PROPERTY IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH THE NEGOTIATED TERMS ATTACHED HERETO 

AS EXHIBIT D, AND ESTABLISHING THE TERMS FOR PUBLISHED 

NOTICE OF DISPOSITION ATTACHED HERETO AS EXHIBIT E; AND 

FINDING THAT THIS RESOLUTION FURTHERS THE BUSINESS 

INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT (“BID”) PLAN, INCLUDING THE 

COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AREA (“CRA”) PLAN; AUTHORIZING 

THE CEO OF THE DIA TO TAKE ALL ACTION NECESSARY TO 

EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES OF THIS RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR 

AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, via Ordinance 2012-0364-E, the City Council created the Downtown 

Investment Authority, designating the DIA as the City’s Community Redevelopment Agency for the 

Combined Northbank Downtown Community Redevelopment Area and authorizing it to approve and 

negotiate economic development agreements and dispose of City-Owned property; and 

 

WHEREAS, DIA is the designated Community Redevelopment Agency for the Northbank 

CRA, for which a Business Investment and Development Plan, inclusive of a Community 

Redevelopment Plan, (“BID/CRA Plan”) was adopted by Ordinance 2014-560-E and updated by 

Ordinance 2022-372-E; and 

 



 

Page 2 of 25  

WHEREAS, Section 55.108 of the Jacksonville Code of Ordinances grants certain powers 

and duties to the DIA, including: 

 

Interpreting the BID/CRA Plan and approving development and redevelopment projects 

within Downtown; 

 

Implementing the BID/CRA Plan, negotiating and approving downtown development and 

redevelopment agreements, grant agreements, license agreements, and lease agreements;  

 

Planning and proposing Projects and Public facilities within Downtown; and 

 

Subject to Section 122.434, Ordinance Code (Procedure for disposition of Community 

Development Property), hold, control, manage, lease, sell, dedicate, grant, or otherwise 

dispose of any of the City’s Downtown assets and properties managed by the DIA, or any 

interest therein. 

 

WHEREAS, City has negotiated with the University of Florida (“UF”) to make a substantial 

investment in Downtown Jacksonville for the creation of a multi-building campus for graduate studies 

on multiple parcels in Downtown Jacksonville and UF has identified the LaVilla District of the 

Combined Downtown Northbank Redevelopment Area as the most suitable area for the new campus, 

and  

 

WHEREAS, the DIA seeks to facilitate the assemblage of properties that will fulfill this 

important effort for the benefit of Jacksonville; and 

 

WHEREAS,  property owned by 801 Bay St LLC, a Gateway Companies LLC related entity 

(“Gateway”) located at 801 W. Bay Street and further identified by Duval County Tax Parcel Number 

RE# 074487 0010 as depicted in Exhibit A, is identified as the most suitable site in the LaVilla District 

for UF to move quickly in establishing classrooms to hold initial class sessions as part of the overall 

campus development effort; and 

 

WHEREAS, the DIA seeks to acquire the 801 W Bay Street property and pursue a negotiated 

disposition of the site to UF under a separate noticed disposition and redevelopment agreement, and 

 

WHEREAS, the City owns an approximately 1.0-acre vacant site within the northeast corner 

of Riverfront Plaza, comprising a portion of Duval County Tax Parcel Numbers 074457 1100 and 

074445 0700, hereto referred to as the “Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B,” with boundaries to be 

determined, and identified for commercial development as depicted in Exhibit B to this Resolution; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City owns approximately 1.7 acres of real property identified by portions of 

Duval County Tax Parcel Numbers RE# 074445 0000 and 074444 9000 (the “East Landing Lot”) as 

depicted in Exhibit C to this Resolution; and   



 

Page 3 of 25  

 

WHEREAS, the underlying parcels that comprise the East Landing Lot are encumbered by a 

number of building restrictions including but not limited to a fifty (50) foot setback from the bulkhead, 

a thirty (30) foot existing sewer line that may not be moved, a fifty (50) foot easement along the Main 

Street Bridge in favor of  FDOT, an existing off ramp that can be removed at an estimated cost from 

2020 of $3.25 million or more, an easement in favor of the Hyatt, and stepped height restrictions from 

the St. Johns River; and,   

 

WHEREAS, the 801 W Bay Street property has been targeted for acquisition to facilitate 

development of a higher education campus in Downtown Jacksonville putting the long vacant 

property to immediate use. Through the creation of a higher educational campus within Downtown, 

Downtown will be positioned to provide a highly trained workforce to businesses seeking to locate 

within Downtown and the region; and. 

 

WHEREAS, DIA has negotiated to acquire the 801 W Bay Street property from Gateway 

with such conveyance conditional on Gateway being the winning bidder on the subject disposition of 

Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B and option to acquire the East Landing Lot Parcel (in the 

absence of a competing offer of greater value) for uses consistent with the terms and conditions 

outlined herein as Exhibit D, which would enable Gateway to pursue development plans in the City 

Center District in conjunction with broader development plans in the North Core District, and the 

LaVilla District of the Combined Downtown Northbank Redevelopment Area; and  

 

WHEREAS, in order to determine fair market value for each property as required by City of 

Jacksonville Code of Ordinances §122.432, the DIA will obtain appraisals of the parcels involved in 

the subject acquisition, disposition, and option thereof; and  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Florida Statutes Chapter 163.380(2) a disposition of a Community 

Redevelopment Agency must determine “fair value” which takes into account additional factors not 

traditionally considered as part of fair market value; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City anticipates the fair value of the 801 W Bay Street property improved 

with a vacant 38,378 square foot building will exceed the fair value of the unimproved Riverfront 

Plaza Development Pad and East Landing Lot with various development limitations; and 

 

WHEREAS, the negotiated terms for the City’s acquisition of the 801 W Bay Street property 

and disposition of the Riverfront Plaza Development Pad and the option to acquire the East Landing 

Lot, in accordance with DIA’s approved negotiated disposition process, is attached hereto as Exhibit 

D; and  

 

WHEREAS, the terms upon which a public notice of disposition of the Riverfront Plaza 

Development Pad and option to acquire the East Landing Lot will be published as set forth in Exhibit 

E; and  

 



 

Page 4 of 25  

WHEREAS, the DIA finds that the proposed acquisition furthers the following 

Redevelopment Goal and Strategic Objectives currently found in the BID/CRA Plan: 

 

Redevelopment Goal No. 1 | Increase…job growth to reinforce Downtown as the region’s 

epicenter for business. 

 

Strategic Objectives: 

• Improve the occupancy rates of existing Downtown commercial office buildings. 

• Grow or maintain the Downtown workforce each year by adding new permanent 

jobs and/or retaining existing permanent jobs within Downtown. 

 

WHEREAS, the DIA finds that the proposed disposition and redevelopment proposal 

furthers the following Redevelopment Goals and Strategic Objectives currently found in the 

BID/CRA Plan: 

 

Redevelopment Goal No. 2 | Increase rental and owner-occupied housing Downtown 

targeting diverse populations identified as seeking a more urban lifestyle. 

 

Strategic Objectives: 

• Actively pursue a minimum of 8,140 built and occupied multi-family dwelling 

units by 2030; and strive to induce construction of 425 multifamily dwelling units 

per year, on average. 

• Improve the breadth and diversity of housing options across Downtown 

Jacksonville to provide all types and varied price ranges of rental and owner-

occupied opportunities, including mixed-income and mixed-use structures. 

• Contribute to resiliency in the design and construction of new residential buildings 

and flexibility in response to changing residential demand for unit sizes, home 

workspaces, amenities, and future conversion of parking. 

 

Redevelopment Goal No. 3 | Increase and diversify the number and type of retail, food 

and beverage, and entertainment establishments within Downtown. 

 

Strategic Objectives: 

• Encourage growth of outdoor dining and entertainment options, most specifically 

within designated food and beverage districts and on the waterfront.  

• Increase the number of retail, food and beverage, and entertainment establishments 

that are open for business weekends and other times outside of weekday business 

hours. 

• Pursue the addition of one or more new neighborhood restaurant/entertainment 

venues in each District by 2025 and a second by 2030. 

 

Redevelopment Goal No. 4 | Increase the vibrancy of Downtown for residents and 

visitors through arts, culture, history, sports, theater, events, parks, and attractions. 

 



 

Page 5 of 25  

Strategic Objectives:  

• Create and promote a consistent brand for Downtown Jacksonville that conveys a 

sense of excitement and, within the boundary of Downtown Jacksonville, foster 

distinct neighborhood identities that evoke a unique sense of place by 

incorporating adopted neighborhood brand in building features or streetscape.  

• Support the expansion, renovation, and improvement of existing and creation of 

new, diverse civic attractions, cultural venues, theaters, and parks that provide a 

mix of activities and attract a broad range of demographics.  

• Increase the number of daily visits to Downtown Jacksonville. 

 

Redevelopment Goal No. 5 | Improve the safety, accessibility, and wellness of Downtown 

Jacksonville and cleanliness and maintenance of public spaces for residents, workers, 

and visitors. 

 

Strategic Objectives: 

• Support and enforce proper cleaning, maintenance, and repair of public spaces by 

assuming responsibility for maintenance of public spaces. 

• Promote wellness by facilitating healthy choices for food, outdoor venues for 

dining and gathering, and encouraging WELL-certified buildings.  

 

Redevelopment Goal | No. 6 Improve the walkability/bike-ability of Downtown and 

pedestrian and bicycle connectivity between Downtown and adjacent neighborhoods and 

the St. Johns River. 

 

Strategic Objectives: 

• Improve public access to and from the St. Johns River for pedestrians and 

bicyclists when considering adjacent private development as well as when 

designing public improvements. Provide access to and from the Southbank and 

Northbank Riverwalk at regular intervals across adjacent riverfront parcels.  

• Optimize the design of downtown streets for pedestrians; require sidewalks of 

sufficient width to ensure an adequate pedestrian clear zone; reduce travel lane 

widths to reduce vehicle speed. Increase shade on sidewalks and in public spaces 

in accordance with design standards and plant shade trees wherever feasible and 

trees in excess of those required by code.  

• Support the creation of wide, visible dedicated bike lanes or cycle tracks on 

designated streets; Install and maintain interesting and safe bicycle racks in 

appropriate locations throughout Downtown.  

• Enforce the requirement to bring buildings forward to the existing or new 

sidewalk edge to create a sense of enclosure for adjacent sidewalks and streets. 

• Create a compact and walkable Downtown through requiring a mixture of uses in 

each district so that housing, activities, retail, and other businesses are within 

useful walking distance, requiring buildings to have active facades at street level 

through a mixture of restaurants (including cafes with outdoor seating), retail, and 



 

Page 6 of 25  

services, and by requiring direct doorways and access to the street. Minimize 

blank walls and surface parking.  

 

Redevelopment Goal No. 7 | Capitalize on the aesthetic beauty of the St. John’s River, 

value its health and respect its natural force, and maximize interactive and recreational 

opportunities for residents and visitors to create waterfront experiences unique to 

Downtown Jacksonville. 

 

Strategic Objectives: 

• Ensure that the riverfront includes a variety of immersive environments, ranging 

from passive enjoyment of the River to active entertainment areas by balancing 

public and private ownership and use and requiring activation of private riverfront 

developments with restaurants, shops, and attractions, all linked by the Riverwalk  

• Ensure the riverfront is accessible both physically and visually for residents and 

visitors of all ages, abilities, and incomes beyond minimum code requirements.  

• Maintain guidelines and zoning criteria for the design and orientation of buildings 

and improvements that take into account surrounding buildings, structures, 

viewscapes, public access, and waterways; design and orientation shall actively 

engage with the River, the Riverwalk, and riverfront.  

• Improve maintenance of all waterway access points, improve, or provide lighting 

and signage of access points from roadways and waterways.  

• Achieve at least one new restaurant/entertainment site directly accessible by boat 

by 2025, and a minimum of three (3) by 2030.  
 

 WHEREAS, the proposed acquisition will facilitate the creation of higher education 

opportunities expected to attract top-tier students from around the world, generate interest in the 

development of a long underutilized historic area of Downtown Jacksonville, and draw firms into the 

area creating new employment opportunities; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed disposition and redevelopment will return currently vacant sites to 

productive taxable use, as well as providing amenities and security for the adjacent park and 

contributing funding to its ongoing maintenance; and 

 

WHEREAS, the development proposed on Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B adheres to 

the Perkins & Will plans for Riverfront Plaza and incorporates design elements supported by the 

public input process, and 

 

WHEREAS, at a publicly noticed meeting held on February 13, 2025, the DIA Retail 

Enhancement and Property Disposition Committee (“REPD”) recommended that the DIA Board     

adopt Resolution 2025-02-04; and 

 

WHEREAS, upon adoption of this Resolution, a 30-day notice for the solicitation of 

proposals pursuant to Section 163.380(3)(a), Florida Statutes, and Sections 122.434(a) and (b), 

Jacksonville Ordinance Code, will be issued; and 



 

Page 7 of 25  

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment Authority: 

 

 Section 1. The recitals set forth above are true and correct and are hereby incorporated 

herein by this reference.   

 

Section 2.  The DIA instructs the Chief Executive Officer of the Downtown Investment 

Authority to take all necessary actions necessary to effectuate the thirty (30) day Notice of Disposition 

for the Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B property including an option on the East Landing Lot 

property in accordance with its Negotiated Notice of Disposition Process and pursuant to the terms 

set forth in Exhibit C and consistent with Florida Statutes and the Ordinance Code. 

 

Section 3. Proposals received, if any, will be reviewed by the DIA Chief Executive 

Officer, who will make a recommendation to the DIA Board regarding any responsive alternate 

proposals received. 

 

Section 4. If no alternate responsive and qualified proposals are received, or if they are 

determined by the CEO to be lower in value or unresponsive, the DIA authorizes its CEO to finalize 

negotiation of a Redevelopment Agreement with Gateway substantially in accordance with the terms 

set forth on Exhibit D, and file legislation seeking approval of the acquisition,  disposition and 

Redevelopment Agreement and associated documents with City Council. 

 

Section 5. The DIA Board hereby authorizes the CEO of the Downtown Investment 

Authority to take all action necessary to effectuate the purposes of this Resolution. 

 

Section 6.    This Resolution, 2025-02-04, shall become effective on the date it is signed by 

the Chair of the DIA Board. 

  

 

WITNESS:   DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

 

 

______________________ ________________________________       _______________ 

        Patrick Krechowski, Esq., Chairman        Date 

 

 

VOTE:  In Favor: ____ Opposed:  ____ Abstained: ____  



 

Page 8 of 25  

Exhibit A to Resolution 2025-02-04 

 

THE “801 W BAY STREET” PROPERTY 

 

 
 

An approximately 2.85-acre parcel of land located at 801 W Bay Street in the LaVilla district of 

Downtown Jacksonville within the Combined Downtown Northbank Redevelopment Area, as further 

identified by Duval County Tax Parcel Number RE# 074487 0010, improved with a two-story 

building of approximately 38,378 square feet and a surface parking lot. 

  



 

Page 9 of 25  

Exhibit B to Resolution 2025-02-04 

 

“RIVERFRONT PLAZA DEVELOPMENT PAD B” 

 

(Dimensions shown are approximate until finalized by survey.) 

 

 

An approximately 1.0-acre site of City owned property located in the northeast corner Riverfront 

Plaza in the City Center District of Downtown Jacksonville within the Combined Downtown 

Northbank Redevelopment Area including portions of parcels identified by Duval County Property 

Appraiser RE #s 074457-1100 and 074445-0700, with approximately 270 feet of frontage along 

Independent Drive which starts at the northeastern most corner after accounting for the  30 foot 

setback from the Main Street Bridge and approximately 184 feet of depth into the park where the 

western and southern edges of the parcel abut Phase II Riverfront Plaza Park development. The 30-

foot setback from the edge of the western side of the Main Street Bridge will be subject to a permanent 

easement with FDOT. 

 

Air rights above bike/ped path along the southern boundary of the parcel and immediately adjacent 

to the eastern boundary not to exceed eighty feet in width by twenty-five feet depth over the park 

with minimum clearance of eighteen feet above the bike/ped path. 

  



 

Page 10 of 25  

Exhibit B to Resolution 2025-02-04 (Cont.) 

 

 



 

Page 11 of 25  

Exhibit C to Resolution 2025-02-04 

 

“EAST LANDING LOT” 

 

(Dimensions shown are approximate and will be finalized by survey.) 

 

 

 

 
 

An approximately 1.7-acre site of City owned property located east of the Main Street Bridge off-

ramp on the north side of the St. John’s River in the City Center District of Downtown Jacksonville 

within the Combined Downtown Northbank Redevelopment Area. The site includes portions of 

parcels identified by RE#s 074445 0000 and 074444 9000 along with the area found underneath the  

off ramp to Independent Drive E, should the winning bidder choose to remove that ramp at its own 

expense, with DIA assistance limited only to assistance in communication and negotiation with 

FDOT. Portions of adjacent City owned parcels identified by RE#s 074445 0600 and 074445 0500 

and limited rights of use to adjacent City owned areas to also be made available to winning proposer 

via easement or use agreement subject to existing easements and use by FDOT, JEA, JTA, and any 

others. The 2,614 square-foot-City owned parcel with RE# 074444 9020 adjacent to the southeast  

corner of the larger parcel may also be included in the disposition, subject to negotiation with the 

winning bidder. 

 



 

Page 12 of 25  

There will be  a minimum 50-foot setback from the eastern edge of the Main Street Bridge and the 

off  ramp after the split, which will be retained by the City both of which are subject to a permanent 

easement with FDOT and not subject to conveyance but may be further negotiated for limited use 

through easement or other use agreement. 

 

Note: The parcel identified with RE#s 074445 0000 terminates at the bulkhead adjacent to the St. 

John’s River. The City will retain the first 50 feet of the property in the area along the full width of 

the parcel running east to west.  

  



 

Page 13 of 25  

Exhibit D to Resolution 2025-02-04 

 

TERM SHEET FOR THE ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY LOCATED  

AT 801 W BAY STREET AND DISPOSITION OF  

RIVERFRONT PLAZA DEVELOPMENT PARCEL B  

AND OPTION TO ACQUIRE EAST LANDING LOT 

 

 

Developer: Gateway Companies, LLC (“Gateway” or “Developer”), or affiliated 

entity controlled by the Gateway, to convey the 801 W Bay Property 

to the City for further conveyance to UF. 

 

801 W BAY STREET 

Property: 

 

 

Property identified by Duval County Tax Parcel Number RE# 074487 

0010 consisting of approximately 2.85 acres of land and an 

approximately 38,000 square foot office building, (“801 W Bay 

Street”).  

 

The 801 W Bay Street property is depicted in Exhibit A to Resolution 

2025-02-04 and is subject to a final survey. 

 

Acquisition Consideration: City to acquire fee simple title to the 801 W Bay Street property and, 

in consideration, City will provide City owned vacant land of 

approximately equal value to Gateway. City owned property 

identified includes fee simple title to Riverfront Plaza Development 

Pad B via quit claim deed subject to the additional terms and 

conditions found herein for the development of that site, together 

with an exclusive option for Gateway to acquire of the East Landing 

Lot in its sole discretion, also subject to the terms and conditions 

relating to that site as found herein. 

 

Terms for the Acquisition and 

Development of 801 W Bay 

Street: 

 

1. Conveyance of the 801 W Bay Street property to City is 

subject to Gateway being the winning bidder on disposition 

and option on City owned property, detailed herein, unless 

alternative consideration from City is accepted by Gateway 

in its sole discretion. 

2. Conveyance of the 801 W Bay Street property from 

Gateway to the City and conveyance of the Riverfront Plaza 

Development Pad B from the City to Gateway and 

execution of the Option Agreement for the East Landing 

Lot by Gateway (allowing for exercising the option at a 

later date) to occur simultaneously.  

3. Gateway to provide City with an access agreement within 

10 days of DIA approval of this Resolution to conduct due 

diligence on the 801 W Bay Street property as a condition 



 

Page 14 of 25  

of pursuing this land swap transaction. Due diligence to be 

completed to City’s satisfaction within (200) days of 

receiving access. 

4. Gateway to pay all doc stamps and other closing costs as 

required by law. 

5. Gateway will not undertake any modification or 

improvement to the 801 W Bay Street property but will 

convey the site to the City “as is.” 

 

Use of 801 W Bay Street  

Property: 

The City shall have the right to make any legal use of the 801 W 

Bay Street property including further conveyance at City’s 

discretion. 

 

RIVERFRONT PLAZA DEVELOPMENT PAD B 

Property: Approximately 1.0 acres of City owned property located in the City 

Center District of Downtown Jacksonville within the Combined 

Downtown Northbank Redevelopment Area in the northeast 

corner of Riverfront Plaza with approximately 270 feet of frontage 

on Independent Drive which starts at the northeastern-most 

corner after accounting for the  30 foot setback from the Main 

Street Bridge and approximately 184 feet of depth from 

Independent Drive toward the River where the western and 

southern edges of the parcel abut Phase II Riverfront Plaza Park 

development. The 30-foot setback from the edge of the western 

side of the Main Street Bridge will be subject to a permanent 

easement with FDOT (“Riverfront Development Pad B”). The site is 

further identified as including parts of Duval County Tax Parcel 

Numbers RE #s: 074457-1100 and 074445-0700. 

 

Air rights above bike/ped path along the southern boundary of the 

parcel and immediately adjacent to the eastern boundary not to 

exceed eighty feet in width by twenty-five feet depth over the park 

with minimum clearance of eighteen feet above the bike/ped path. 

 

There will be a 30’ setback from the edge of the western side of 

the Main Street Bridge that will not be subject to conveyance.  

 

The Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B property (as identified in 

the site plans for Riverfront Plaza prepared by Perkins & Will) is 

depicted in Exhibit B to Resolution 2025-02-04 and is subject to a 

final survey. 

  

Purchase Price: Gateway to take fee simple title to Riverfront Plaza Development 

Pad B via quit claim deed, together with an exclusive option for 

Gateway to acquire fee simple interest in the East Landing Lot in its 

sole discretion, and in consideration will provide City with fee simple 



 

Page 15 of 25  

title to the 801 W Bay Street property, all subject to the additional 

terms and conditions found herein, or as may be further negotiated 

and detailed in the RDA, for the development of each site. 

 

Terms for the Acquisition and 

Development of Riverfront Plaza 

Development Pad B:  

DIA to provide Gateway with an access agreement to conduct due 

diligence on Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B within ten days 

of approval of this Resolution by the DIA Board as a condition of 

pursuing this land swap transaction. Due diligence to be completed 

to Gateway’s satisfaction within (200) days of receiving access. 

 

Upon acquisition, Gateway shall agree to design and develop the 

subject property (the “Riverfront Plaza Development Project”) to 

include the following (all dimensions and counts are approximate 

unless stated otherwise): 

1. Minimum 130, Maximum 170 key, 4+ star or luxury boutique 

hotel as further defined in the RDA. 

2. Minimum 50, Maximum 150 residential units which may be 

rental, condominium, or transient rental at Gateway’s 

discretion. 

3. Air rights above bike/ped path along the southern boundary 

of the parcel and immediately adjacent to the eastern 

boundary not to exceed eighty feet in width by twenty-five 

feet depth over the park with minimum clearance of 

eighteen feet above the bike/ped path. 

4. Minimum 5,000 SF “Sky View Terrace” located above the 

garage facing the park and open to the public. 

5. Minimum of two full-service restaurants  providing a 

minimum of 7,500 SF adjacent to the Sky View Terrace, 

although minimum square footage may be broken down into 

more than two restaurants. 

6. Building area for leasable and occupiable spaces may be no 

taller than 17 floors above a podium for parking garage which 

has a maximum height of two floors above grade at 

Independent drive, building height not to exceed 240 feet 

which does not include screening of mechanical apparatus or 

antennas attached to the roof. 

7. Maximum building width of 80 feet perpendicular to the river 

in the tower adjacent to Main Street bridge. 

8. Maximum building height of building parallel to Independent 

Drive not to exceed seven floors above the podium.  

9. Gateway to impose a room surcharge on all hotel rooms and 

transient rentals and remit the same to the City to be used 

exclusively for maintenance and programming of Riverfront 

Plaza. 

10. Gateway to integrate access through its podium to the City-

owned beer garden to be located in phase II of Riverfront 



 

Page 16 of 25  

Plaza for back-of-house operations.  

11. Activated frontage on Independent Drive of not less than 

66% which may include visibility to hotel lobby, retail, 

bar/lounge/restaurant, or similar uses, which may be set 

back from Independent Drive by the circular hotel drop off 

area. 

12. Design to minimize exclusive, non-public spaces facing 

Riverfront Plaza at lower levels. 

13. Incentives and requirements for minimum capital 

expenditures and related terms to be negotiated at a later 

date. 

14. Building location and massing to be materially consistent 

with Figure 1 below: 

 

Figure 1: Building Location and Massing 

 
 

Limitation on Use of the 

Riverfront Plaza Development 

Pad B: 

Residential, hotel, food and beverage, retail and ancillary uses are 

permitted. The Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B will be deed 

restricted to prevent use that would be exempt from payment of 

property taxes, except with respect to any publicly dedicated and 

accepted park or recreation areas. Other mutually agreed upon uses 

will be excluded including but not limited to select service hotels, 

commercial self-storage units, gas stations, and commercial car 

washes with such limitations also recorded in the deed. 

  

Performance  

Schedule: 

a. The Redevelopment Agreement will be entered into by 

Gateway and the City within 30 days following the effective 

date of the legislation authorizing the City's entry. 



 

Page 17 of 25  

b. Closing: Upon a mutually agreeable date within 30 days 

following the end of the Due Diligence Period but no later than 

December 20, 2025. 

c. Design of The Riverfront Plaza Development Project must 

commence within three (3) months of the closing. 

d. Within 6 months of closing, Developer will submit applications 

to DDRB for conceptual approval and apply to DIA for incentive 

approvals. 

e. Within 15 months of the later of conceptual approval by DDRB 

or City Council approval of legislation relating to incentives, 

Developer to commence horizontal or below grade 

construction. 

f. Construction shall proceed diligently without stoppage until 

substantial completion of the project. 

g. Substantial Completion no later than 3 years after construction 

commencement. 

h. The foregoing deadlines will be subject to extensions of up 

to six (6) months granted by the DIA's Chief Executive 

Officer and an additional up to six (6) months by the DIA 

Board without additional City approval upon reasonable 

cause shown. In addition, extensions shall be available for 

force majeure. Such extension of the Commencement 

Date shall also apply to the date of Substantial Completion 

so that a single extension provided to Commencement will 

apply to Substantial Completion. 
  

EAST LANDING LOT  

Property: An approximately 1.7-acre site of City owned property located east 

of the Main Street Bridge off-ramp on the north side of the St. John’s 

River in the City Center District of Downtown Jacksonville within the 

Combined Downtown Northbank Redevelopment Area.  

 

The site includes portions of parcels identified by RE#s 074445 0000 

and 074444 9000 along with the area found underneath the off 

ramp to Independent Drive E, should Gateway choose to remove 

that ramp at its own expense, with DIA assistance limited only to 

assistance in communication and negotiation with FDOT. Limited 

right of use to portions of adjacent City owned parcels identified by 

RE#s 074445 0600 and 074445 0500 and adjacent City owned areas 

to also be made available to winning bidder via easement or use 

agreement subject to existing easements and use by FDOT, JEA, JTA, 

the Hyatt Hotel and any others. The 2,614 square-foot City owned 

parcel with RE# 074444 9020 adjacent to the southeast  corner of 

the larger parcel may also be included in the disposition, subject to 

negotiation.  



 

Page 18 of 25  

 

If Developer chooses to not remove the off ramp to Independent 

Drive E, the parcel size of the East Landing Lot will reduce 

accordingly, including by the required 50-foot set back from the 

ramp required by FDOT. The decision to remove or not remove the 

ramp must be made prior to exercising the option to acquire the 

East Landing Lot. 

 

The site is depicted in Exhibit C to Resolution 2025-02-04 and is 

subject to a final survey (“East Landing Lot”). 

  

Purchase Price: Gateway to receive an exclusive option to acquire the East Landing 

Lot in its sole discretion, in addition to fee simple title to Riverfront 

Plaza Development Pad B via quit claim deed, and in consideration 

will provide City with fee simple title to the 801 W Bay Street 

property, all subject to the additional terms and conditions found 

herein for the development of each site. 

  

Option Terms for the Acquisition 

and Development of Option to 

Acquire East Landing Lot: 

In addition to fee simple conveyance of Riverfront Plaza 

Development Pad B to Gateway, City will also provide Gateway with 

an exclusive option to acquire fee simple title to the East Landing 

Lot at its sole discretion for no additional consideration (other than 

the conveyance of 801 W Bay). The Option Agreement will be 

executed and provided to Developer upon closing on Riverfront 

Plaza Parcel B. The Option Agreement will terminate if Gateway has 

not satisfied the preconditions to exercise within five (5) years from 

the Effective Date of the Option Agreement. 

 

The Option Agreement will include the following terms: 

1. To be eligible to exercise the terms of the Option Agreement, 

Gateway shall have documented commencement of vertical 

construction on the  Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B 

Improvements to the satisfaction of the DIA in its sole 

discretion. 

2. Development plans to include a minimum 75,000 square foot 

mixed-use building, with not less than one 4,000 square foot 

restaurant facing the St. John’s River, although minimum 

square footage may be broken down into more than one 

restaurant, and minimum 75 parking spaces open to the 

public. 

3. Total minimum capital expenditures of not less than 

$25,000,000 including architectural and engineering, site 

work, and hard costs of construction and also including cost 

to remove the down ramp to Independent Drive E if so 

chosen. 

4. Upon election by Gateway, following satisfaction of initial 



 

Page 19 of 25  

conditions to exercise the option, City will convey fee-simple 

interest in the property by quit claim deed with no further 

consideration required, although Gateway to be responsible 

for paying all doc stamps and other closing costs as required 

by law. 

5. Gateway to commence horizontal improvements within one 

year from the exercise of the Option Agreement and 

continue to completion with no impermissible delay.  

6. Development of the East Landing Lot must take into 

consideration, at minimum, a fifty-foot setback requirement 

of the City from the bulkhead which land is retained by the 

City for Riverwalk purposes, fifty foot set-back from the 

eastern edge of the Main Street Bridge and down ramps, 

which setback area is retained by the City and  30-foot utility 

easement that bisects the property, and other easements or 

use agreements as may be in place. 

7. Approval, permitting, and removal of the off ramp from the 

Main Street Bridge to Independent Drive East to be 

undertaken at developer’s sole cost and expense, if 

Developer elects to proceed with such removal. Otherwise, 

the parcel to be conveyed to Developer will be reduced and 

the City will retain ownership of the land under and within 

the required setback from such ramp. 

8. Other terms and conditions of conveyance, including any 

incentives and related terms, to be negotiated at a later date. 

 

Use of the East Landing Lot: 

 

Any use consistent with the adopted BID and CRA Plan for 

Downtown and the Downtown Overlay is permitted other than 

mutually agreed upon uses including but not limited to select 

service hotels, commercial self-storage units, gas stations, and 

commercial car washes with such limitations also recorded in the 

deed. The East Landing Lot property will also be deed restricted to 

prevent use that would be exempt from payment of property taxes, 

except with respect to any publicly dedicated and accepted park or 

recreation areas. 

  

 

ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL PROPERTIES 

Redevelopment  

Agreement: 

The Redevelopment Agreement (“RDA”) will establish, inter alia,  

the essential terms of the conveyance of the Riverfront Plaza 

Development Pad B property and the option for Gateway to acquire 

the East Landing Lot property with the rights and obligations of the 

parties thereto, and other terms relevant to the City acquisition of 

the 801 W Bay Street property.  

 



 

Page 20 of 25  

The RDA will become effective upon its execution following 

approval by City Council with an outside date for execution by 

Gateway of thirty (30) days following the effective date of the 

legislation (which date shall be set forth in the legislation). Its terms 

will govern the period prior to closing on the property swap as well 

as other rights and responsibilities of the parties throughout the 

term of the RDA. 

 

Site Investigation:  

 

Prior the execution of the Redevelopment Agreement, each party 

will provide access agreements that provide the counterparty with 

the right to conduct due diligence on site of the relevant properties 

for a period of (200) calendar days (“Due Diligence Period”) to 

inspect and perform tests to determine their suitability for their 

intended use, and to investigate the quality and marketability of the 

title. Upon notice to the counterparty thereto, either Gateway or 

the City/DIA may terminate the Redevelopment Agreement any 

time within the Due Diligence Period if the property it will receive is 

unsuitable for its intended use or title is unmarketable without 

incurring any obligations under the Redevelopment Agreement. 

Such cancellation shall apply to the conveyance of all parcels 

relevant to the RDA. 

 

Environmental Due Diligence: 

 

Each party shall provide the other with temporary access 

agreements to conduct such site and environmental investigations 

or testing it may elect to perform on the parcels to be received. Such 

agreements shall contain standard insurance, indemnity, and 

restoration provisions. Following closing, each party shall be 

responsible for any remediation required on the property acquired. 

 

Conveyance “AS IS”: 

 

Except for any representations and warranties or as otherwise may 

be agreed upon by the parties in the Redevelopment Agreement, 

the City agrees to convey The Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B 

property and the East Landing Lot parcel in “as-is” condition and is 

not undertaking any obligation, financial or otherwise, to remediate 

the sites, clear title, or otherwise improve any parcel. 

 

Form of Deed: 

 

The City will convey title by Quit Claim Deed as required by the 

Ordinance Code, unless waived. 

 

Documentary Stamps: 

 

The City is precluded by law from the payment of Documentary 

stamp taxes. Such taxes, if any, will be paid by Gateway or other 

representatives of the counterparty. 

 

Survey: 

 

Each party to provide the counterparty with a survey map and 

prepared legal description for their respective parcel(s)on or before 

the RDA execution date. If either party desires a stamped survey 



 

Page 21 of 25  

depicting all improvements and easements, etc. such party shall 

obtain the same at its cost and expense. 

 

 

Title Commitment: 

 

Each party shall obtain and deliver to the counterparty a title 

commitment for their respective parcels on or before the RDA 

execution date. Title insurance, if desired, shall be issued at closing 

at the insured party’s expense. 

 

Appraisal: 

 

DIA shall obtain appraisals of the 801 West Bay property, Riverfront 

Plaza Development Pad B property, and the East Landing Lot 

property, as required for acquisition and disposition at DIA’s 

expense and shall make the same available to Gateway on or before 

execution of the RDA.   

 

Restriction on Further Transfer: 

 

Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B property, and the East Landing 

Lot property, to be deed restricted until completion of vertical 

construction against further transfer other than to affiliates, joint 

venture partners, and lenders without the approval of DIA except as 

may be otherwise set forth in the Redevelopment Agreement. 

 

Right of Repurchase and 

Reverter:   

 

The Deed on the Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B property will 

include a right of repurchase in favor of the City at a mutually agreed 

upon price to be documented in the RDA in the event Gateway fails 

to commence horizontal construction for its intended use as set 

forth herein within a period of forty-two (42) months after the 

closing (subject to approved extensions and force majeure). In 

addition, the Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B property will be 

restricted to the uses and subject to the restrictions on transfer set 

forth herein. 

 

Following the exercise of its option and closing on the East Landing 

Lot property, the deed will include right of repurchase in favor of 

the City at a mutually agreed upon price to be documented in the 

RDA in the event Gateway fails to commence horizontal 

improvements within a period not to exceed two (2) years following 

closing on acquisition of the property (subject to approved 

extensions and force majeure). In addition, the East Landing Lot 

property will be restricted to the uses and subject to the restrictions 

on transfer set forth herein. 

 

Entitlements:  

 

No entitlements shall be assigned or provided to Gateway as part of 

this agreement for either the Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B 

or the East Landing Lot property. Requests for new Stormwater 

credits, and Mobility Fee credits, for any development proposed on 

Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B or the East Landing Lot 

property will be processed in accordance with the applicable 



 

Page 22 of 25  

Ordinance Code and BID plan requirements and criteria, including 

applicable fees. 

 

Design: 

 

All development proposed on the Riverfront Plaza Development Pad 

B, or the East Landing Lot shall comply with the adopted BID and 

CRA Plan, the Downtown Zoning Overlay, applicable design 

standards and other City codes and shall obtain DDRB approval. 

 

Permits: 

 

Each party shall be responsible for all permits required for any work 

contemplated by the Redevelopment Agreement. 

 

  



 

Page 23 of 25  

 Exhibit E to Resolution 2025-02-04 

 

TERM SHEET FOR THE PUBLIC NOTICED DISPOSITION OF  

RIVERFRONT PLAZA DEVELOPMENT PARCEL B  

AND OPTION TO ACQUIRE EAST LANDING LOT 

 

 

Essential Terms of Disposition Notice 

1. Property interest considered for disposition by Quit Claim Deed: Fee Simple title, in “as is” condition, 

subject to any representations and warranties in the Redevelopment Agreement and also subject to  

covenants, easements and restrictions of record, to: 

a. Approximately 1.0 acres of City owned property located in the City Center District of Downtown 

Jacksonville within the Combined Downtown Northbank Redevelopment Area in the northeast 

corner of Riverfront Plaza with approximately 270 feet of frontage on Independent Drive which 

starts at the northeastern-most corner after accounting for the  30 foot setback from the Main 

Street Bridge and approximately 184 feet of depth from Independent Drive toward the River where 

the western and southern edges of the parcel abut Phase II Riverfront Plaza Park development 

(“Riverfront Development Pad B”). The site is further identified as including parts of Duval County 

Tax Parcel Numbers RE #s: 074457-1100 and 074445-0700., and  

b. Air rights above bike/ped path along the southern boundary of the parcel and immediately 

adjacent to the eastern boundary not to exceed eighty feet in width by twenty-five feet depth 

over the park with minimum clearance of eighteen feet above the bike/ped path as depicted in 

the Perkins & Will design available in the DIA office. 

 

2. Property interest considered for disposition by Quit Claim Deed upon exercise of an Option Agreement:  

Option to acquire Fee Simple title, in “as is” condition, subject to any representations and warranties 

in the Redevelopment Agreement and also subject to  covenants, easements and restrictions of record, 

to an approximately 1.7-acre site of City owned property located east of the Main Street Bridge off-

ramp on the north side of the St. John’s River in the City Center District of Downtown Jacksonville within 

the Combined Downtown Northbank Redevelopment Area.  

a. The site includes portions of parcels identified by RE#s 074445 0000 and 074444 9000 along with 

the area found underneath the off ramp to Independent Drive E, should bidder choose to remove 

that ramp at its own expense. Limited right of use to portions of adjacent City owned parcels 

identified by RE#s 074445 0600 and 074445 0500 and adjacent City owned areas to also be made 

available to winning bidder via easement or use agreement subject to existing easements and use 

by FDOT, JEA, JTA, the Hyatt Hotel and any others. The 2,614 square-foot City owned parcel with 

RE# 074444 9020 adjacent to the southeast  corner of the larger parcel may also be included in 

the disposition, subject to negotiation.  

b. If bidder chooses at the time of exercise of the option to not remove the off ramp to Independent 

Drive E, the parcel size of the East Landing Lot will reduce accordingly, including by the required 

50-foot set back from the ramp required by FDOT. The decision to remove or not remove the ramp 

must be made prior to exercising the option to acquire the East Landing Lot. 



 

Page 24 of 25  

c. The site is depicted in Exhibit C to Resolution 2025-02-04 and is subject to a final survey (“East 

Landing Lot”). 

3. Terms for Development:  

a. Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B: One maximum seventeen (17) story over two story podium, 

up to 240 feet tall, class A building consisting of no fewer than 130 and no more than 170 4+ star 

or luxury boutique hotel keys, at least 50 but no more than 150 residential units, at least 5,000 SF 

terrace located above the garage facing the park and open to the public, no fewer than two 

restaurants, adjacent to the public terrace, open to the public, totaling in the aggregate 7,500 SF 

or more. Maximum building width of 80 feet perpendicular to the river in the tower which shall be 

parallel and adjacent to the Main Street bridge on the site. Maximum building height of building 

parallel to Independent Drive not to exceed seven floors above the podium. 

b. East Landing Lot: To be eligible to exercise the terms of the Option Agreement, bidder shall have 

documented commencement of vertical construction on the  Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B 

Improvements to the satisfaction of the DIA in its sole discretion. Development plans for East 

Landing Lot to include a minimum 75,000 square foot mixed-use building, with not less than one 

restaurant totaling in the aggregate 4,000 square feet facing the St. John’s River and minimum 75 

parking spaces open to the public. Total minimum capital expenditures of not less than $25,000,000 

including architectural and engineering, site work, and hard costs of construction and also including 

cost to remove the down ramp to Independent Drive, E if so chosen. 

4. Restriction on Use:  

a. Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B: Residential, hotel, food and beverage, retail and ancillary uses 

are permitted. The Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B will be deed restricted to prevent use that 

would be exempt from payment of property taxes, except with respect to any publicly dedicated 

and accepted park or recreation areas. Other mutually agreed upon uses will be excluded including 

but not limited to select service hotels, commercial self-storage units, gas stations, and commercial 

car washes with such limitations also recorded in the deed. 

b. East Landing Lot: Any use consistent with the adopted BID and CRA Plan for Downtown and the 

Downtown Overlay is permitted other than mutually agreed upon uses including but not limited to 

select service hotels, commercial self-storage units, gas stations, and commercial car washes with 

such limitations also recorded in the deed. The East Landing Lot property will also be deed 

restricted to prevent use that would be exempt from payment of property taxes, except with 

respect to any publicly dedicated and accepted park or recreation areas. . 

5. Developer must convey to City an existing, habitable office space of at least 36,000 square feet and 

with at least 1.25 acres of land capable of further/additional development in the Southern portion of 

the LaVilla District near the Convention Center or in the alternative provide cash consideration to City 

sufficient to acquire the 801 West Bay parcel. 

6. Proposal must include purchase price offered, if any, in addition to the required land parcels. 

7. Bidder must demonstrate successful track record of the development and operation of similar facilities. 

8. Bidder to demonstrate current and previous capacity and capability to raise debt and equity funds 

necessary for project financing. 

9. Closing and conveyance of swap parcels must occur no later than December 20, 2025. 



 

Page 25 of 25  

10. Performance Timeline Commitments: 

a. Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B: Within 6 months of closing, Developer will submit applications 

to DDRB for conceptual approval and apply to DIA for incentive approvals, if desired. Within 15 

months of the later of conceptual approval and City Council approval of any legislation relating to 

incentives, Developer to commence horizontal or below grade construction. Construction shall 

proceed diligently without stoppage until substantial completion of the project, Substantial 

Completion no later than 3 years after commencement. 

b. East Landing Lot: Bidder to commence horizontal improvements within one year from the exercise 

of the Option Agreement and continue to completion with no impermissible delay. 

11. Right of repurchase in favor of the City if horizontal construction not started within 42 months from 

closing on Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B and if not started within two years of closing on the East 

Landing Lot. 

12. Clear marketable title to the swap parcel(s) must be provided to the City. 

 



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

RESOLUTION 2025-02-04 GATEWAY ACQUISITION AND DISPOSITIONS           
STAFF REPORT 



 

1 

 

CRA PROPERTY ACQUISITION AND NEGOTIATED PROPERTY DISPOSITION 

801 W Bay Street to City of Jacksonville 

Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B and East Landing Lot to Gateway 

RESOLUTION 2025-02-04 

 

Staff Report for DIA RE&PD Committee 

 

February 7, 2025 

 

Properties: 801 W Bay Street  

 Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B 

 East Landing Lot to Gateway 

 

Project: Property Swap and Gateway Riverfront Development 

 

Request: Property Swap including an Acquisition and Negotiated Disposition 

  

Project: 

DIA seeks to acquire property owned by 801 Bay St LLC, a Gateway Companies LLC related entity 

(“Gateway”) located at 801 W. Bay Street and further identified by Duval County Tax Parcel Number RE# 

074487 0010 as captured in the image below. It will be the intention of the DIA, if approved by the RE&PD 

Committee and the DIA Board, and subject to a public disposition process, to then further transfer the 

property to the University of Florida (“UF”) as the initial site for UF to establish its graduate campus in 

Downtown Jacksonville. 

 

Figure 1 - 801 W. Bay Street 

 
 

The former Interline building located at 801 W. Bay Street, located in the LaVilla District, of the Combined 

Downtown Northbank Community Redevelopment Area, includes an office building of approximately 



 

2 

 

39,000 square feet. In addition, approximately 2.0 acres of the 2.85-acre site is improved with 

ingress/egress drives and surface parking which can be further developed as growth needs dictate. 

 

In consideration of acquiring the 801 W. Bay Street Property, DIA proposes to pursue a negotiated 

disposition of the approximately 1-acre site known Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B, and to provide 

an  option to acquire the East Landing Lot as captured in the images below, subject to terms and conditions 

defined in Exhibit D to Resolution 2025-02-04. 

 

Figure 2 - Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B 

 
 

Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B consists of approximately 1.0 acres of City owned property located 

in the northeast corner of Riverfront Plaza with approximately 270 feet of frontage on Independent Drive 

in its northeastern-most corner after accounting for the 30 foot setback from the Main Street Bridge and 

approximately 184 feet of depth from Independent Drive toward the River where the western and 

southern edges of the parcel abut Phase II Riverfront Plaza Park development. The 30-foot setback from 

the edge of the western side of the Main Street Bridge will be subject to a permanent easement with 

FDOT (“Riverfront Development Pad B”) and may be negotiated for use as an ingress-egress drive but is 

not included in the disposition. The site is further identified as including parts of Duval County Tax Parcel 

Numbers RE #s: 074457-1100 and 074445-0700. 

 

Gateway provided a preliminary rendering of how they plan to develop this site closely following the plans 

and the model presented by Perkins & Will when designing Riverfront Plaza and taking into consideration 

public input gathered as part of that process (See Figure 3 below). The essential components of the mixed-

use property include a two-three story garage with only two stories above grade on top of which will be 

a two-tier, L-shaped building with the maximum 17-story tower (above podium) portion of the 

improvements aligned parallel and adjacent to the 30-foot setback from the Main Street Bridge, and the 

maximum 5-story portion (above podium) of the property to be parallel and adjacent to Independent 

Drive. Elements of the development facing Riverfront Plaza park are to be maximized for public benefit 



 

3 

 

including a minimum 5,000 SF “Sky View Terrace” with not less than two restaurants adjacent totaling not 

less than 7,500 square feet. Property uses also include a 4+ star or luxury boutique type hotel with 130 to 

170 keys, and a minimum of 50 and maximum of 150 residential units which may be a combination of 

rental, condominium, or transient rental at Gateway’s discretion. Additional terms and conditions are 

summarized below. The development engages with the pedestrian ramp to the Main Street Bridge and to 

the Beer Garden found underneath the ramp, providing access through the garage podium to be 

constructed for the improvements. Not less than 66% of the frontage along Independent Drive will be 

activated with hotel lobby, bar, or other retail components. 

 

Figure 3 – Rendering depicting massing (not design aesthetic) - of the Development Proposed for the 

Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B

 
 

Figure 4 - East Landing Lot 

 



 

4 

 

The East Landing lot is complicated by a number of factors. As shown in Figure 4, the overall site provides 

approximately 1.7 acres although the parcel as shown contemplates removal of the down ramp to 

Independent Drive E and then incorporates a portion of that area into the development site. The 

demolition of that ramp is at the option of the Developer at its expense with demolition estimated at $3.2 

million in a study performed in 2020. The site, as drawn, also takes into consideration a 50-foot set back 

from the river, which will remain under City ownership, and a required 50-foot setback from the Main 

Street Bridge that will be subject to an easement with FDOT but owned by the City. If the down ramp to 

Independent Drive E is not removed, a setback will follow that ramp to its intersection with Independent 

Dr E, further limiting the land available for development. The site is further complicated and limited by a 

30-foot-wide sanitary sewer easement that bisects the property at a somewhat diagonal angle from west 

to east. On the west side of the property, the easement is approximately 45 feet from the 50-foot set back 

line from the bulkhead and 75-feet from the 50-foot set back line from the bulkhead on the east side of 

the site. Use in this space is limited to a 45-foot height restriction. A Portions of the east side of the 

property  are subject to a non-exclusive permanent easement in favor of the Hyatt hotel providing access 

to their garage and back of house operations found on the property immediately to the east of the subject 

site. Figure 5 below estimates the location of the setback from the Main Street Bridge, including the 

removal of the down ramp to Independent Drive E, and the easement for the benefit of the Hyatt Hotel 

with the overall parcel outlined in red and easements outlined in yellow. 

 

Figure 5 – East Landing Lot with Setbacks and Easements Approximated 

 
 

The adjacent areas to the east and northeast outside of the approximated parcel size (red lines) will 

remain under City ownership but would be available for negotiated use by easement or other use 

agreement with the Developer as they are suitable for vehicular parking and ingress/egress at certain 

points. 

 

Acquisition of this site is provided as an option to the Developer as part of the overall disposition. No 

development plans have been provided to the DIA, and additional terms and conditions are summarized 

below. 



 

5 

 

 

The Acquisition and Disposition Swap 

The 801 W Bay Street property has been targeted for acquisition by DIA followed by disposition to UF, if 

UF is the winning bidder for that property under a separate negotiated disposition process. If the City is 

not successful in acquiring the 801 W Bay Street property through this land swap, it may pursue alternative 

means of acquiring the site including cash purchase under terms to be negotiated with the owner. Such 

funds could come from the sale of the proposed disposition sites, if a bidder other than Gateway proposes 

a higher and better use as would be determined by the RE&PD Committee and then the DIA Board, 

following the public notice of disposition. The City has no plans to develop or modify the 801 W Bay Street 

property in any way, although it reserves the right to make any legal use of the property including further 

conveyance at the City’s discretion.  

 

DIA has ordered an appraisal of the 801 W. Bay property and expects that appraisal to be available before 

Committee. According to the Property Appraiser 2024 Certified Just Market Value, the property is valued 

at $5,554,400.00. The owner has also ordered an appraisal of the property which reflects the development 

potential of the site and is substantially higher, although DIA would take exception to some values 

included in that appraisal.  

 

If the subject Resolution 2025-02-04 is approved by the RE&PD Committee, and subsequently by the 

DIA Board, a public notice for the disposition of Riverfront Plaza Pad B and a notice for the option to 

acquire a fee simple interest in the East Landing Lot will be published to allow other bidders the chance 

to propose under the terms and conditions provided in the Exhibit E to Resolution 2025-02-04, “Term 

Sheet For The Public Noticed Disposition Of Riverfront Plaza Development Parcel B And Option To Acquire 

East Landing Lot.” Such terms and conditions also require other proposers to use the site for the same 

minimum and maximum uses proposed by Gateway and detailed in Exhibit D and establish a capital 

investment minimum for East Landing Lot. Bidders must convey to City an existing, habitable office space 

of at least 36,000 square feet and with at least 1.25 acres of land capable of further/additional 

development in the Southern portion of the LaVilla District near the Convention Center or in the 

alternative provide cash consideration to City sufficient for the City to acquire the 801 West Bay parcel. 

Bidders must also demonstrate the requisite experience for such acquisition and use and also 

demonstrate access to capital for the project. Additional terms and conditions provide City protections if 

such development activity does not occur following conveyance to the winning proposer, whether to 

Gateway or an alternative bidder. 

 

As a negotiated disposition, the Resolution also contains the terms (set forth in Exhibit D to Resolution 

2025-02-04) upon which DIA agrees to convey the Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B property and 

the Option on the East Landing Lot to Gateway if Gateway’s proposal provides the greatest value and 

benefit to the CRA. Among other requirements for Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B, Gateway will build 

the project as described herein and close on the property no later than December 20, 2025. 

Commencement of horizontal improvements or below grade construction must occur within 15 months 

of the later of conceptual approval by DDRB or City Council approval of legislation relating to incentives. 

 

Gateway would also be provided with the option to acquire fee simple ownership of the East Landing Lot 
at its sole discretion with an exercise period limited to five (5) years from the Effective Date of an Option 



 

6 

 

Agreement executed simultaneous with closing on the swap. To be eligible to exercise the terms of the 
Option Agreement, Gateway shall have documented commencement of vertical construction on the 
Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B Improvements to the satisfaction of the DIA in its sole discretion. 
Development plans for the East Landing Lot to include a minimum 75,000 square foot mixed-use building, 
with not less than one 4,000 square foot restaurant facing the St. John’s River, although minimum square 
footage may be broken down into more than one restaurant, and minimum 75 parking spaces open to 
the public. Total minimum capital expenditures of not less than $25,000,000 are required. 
 
DIA has ordered appraisals on both the Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B and the East Landing Lot 
which are expected prior to Committee. These parcels are riverfront or river view and located in the heart 
of Downtown although combined they comprise less acreage, are significantly restricted in use, and are 
vacant undeveloped land when compared to the developed 801 W Bay parcel. Based on other appraisals 
Downtown and preliminary discussions we expect the values of these parcels as offered in the dispositions 
to be roughly equivalent to the 801 W Bay appraised value.  
 

BID Strategy and CRA Plan: 

In context of the Downtown Northbank CRA, the acquisition of the 801 W Bay Street property through 

this swap achieves the following Redevelopment Goal and Strategic Objectives currently found in the 

BID/CRA Plan: 

 

Redevelopment Goal No. 1 | Increase…job growth to reinforce Downtown as the region’s epicenter for 

business. 

 

Strategic Objectives: 

• Improve the occupancy rates of existing Downtown commercial office buildings. 

• Grow or maintain the Downtown workforce each year by adding new permanent jobs and/or 

retaining existing permanent jobs within Downtown. 

 

In context of the disposition of the Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B and the option on the East Landing 

Lot the following Redevelopment Goals and Strategic Objectives currently found in the BID/CRA Plan are 

achieved by this action: 

 

Redevelopment Goal No. 2 | Increase rental and owner-occupied housing Downtown targeting diverse 

populations identified as seeking a more urban lifestyle. 

 

Strategic Objectives: 

• Actively pursue a minimum of 8,140 built and occupied multi-family dwelling units by 2030; and 

strive to induce construction of 425 multifamily dwelling units per year, on average. 

• Improve the breadth and diversity of housing options across Downtown Jacksonville to provide 

all types and varied price ranges of rental and owner-occupied opportunities, including mixed-

income and mixed-use structures. 

• Contribute to resiliency in the design and construction of new residential buildings and flexibility 

in response to changing residential demand for unit sizes, home workspaces, amenities, and 

future conversion of parking. 

 



 

7 

 

Redevelopment Goal No. 3 | Increase and diversify the number and type of retail, food and beverage, 

and entertainment establishments within Downtown. 

 

Strategic Objectives: 

• Encourage growth of outdoor dining and entertainment options, most specifically within 

designated food and beverage districts and on the waterfront. 

• Increase the number of retail, food and beverage, and entertainment establishments that are 

open for business weekends and other times outside of weekday business hours. 

• Pursue the addition of one or more new neighborhood restaurant/entertainment venues in each 

District by 2025 and a second by 2030. 

 

Redevelopment Goal No. 4 | Increase the vibrancy of Downtown for residents and visitors through arts, 

culture, history, sports, theater, events, parks, and attractions. 

 

Strategic Objectives: 

• Create and promote a consistent brand for Downtown Jacksonville that conveys a sense of 

excitement and, within the boundary of Downtown Jacksonville, foster distinct neighborhood 

identities that evoke a unique sense of place by incorporating adopted neighborhood brand in 

building features or streetscape. 

• Support the expansion, renovation, and improvement of existing and creation of new, diverse 

civic attractions, cultural venues, theaters, and parks that provide a mix of activities and attract a 

broad range of demographics. 

• Increase the number of daily visits to Downtown Jacksonville. 

 

Redevelopment Goal No. 5 | Improve the safety, accessibility, and wellness of Downtown Jacksonville 

and cleanliness and maintenance of public spaces for residents, workers, and visitors. 

 

Strategic Objectives: 

• Support and enforce proper cleaning, maintenance, and repair of public spaces by assuming 

responsibility for maintenance of public spaces. 

• Promote wellness by facilitating healthy choices for food, outdoor venues for dining and 

gathering, and encouraging WELL-certified buildings. 

 

Redevelopment Goal No. 6 | Improve the walkability/bike-ability of Downtown and pedestrian and 

bicycle connectivity between Downtown and adjacent neighborhoods and the St. Johns River. 

 

Strategic Objectives: 

• Improve public access to and from the St. Johns River for pedestrians and bicyclists when 

considering adjacent private development as well as when designing public improvements. 

Provide access to and from the Southbank and Northbank Riverwalk at regular intervals across 

adjacent riverfront parcels. 

• Optimize the design of downtown streets for pedestrians; require sidewalks of sufficient width to 

ensure an adequate pedestrian clear zone; reduce travel lane widths to reduce vehicle speed. 



 

8 

 

Increase shade on sidewalks and in public spaces in accordance with design standards and plant 

shade trees wherever feasible and trees in excess of those required by code. 

• Support the creation of wide, visible dedicated bike lanes or cycle tracks on designated streets; 

Install and maintain interesting and safe bicycle racks in appropriate locations throughout 

Downtown. 

• Enforce the requirement to bring buildings forward to the existing or new sidewalk edge to create 

a sense of enclosure for adjacent sidewalks and streets. 

• Create a compact and walkable Downtown through requiring a mixture of uses in each district so 

that housing, activities, retail, and other businesses are within useful walking distance, requiring 

buildings to have active facades at street level through a mixture of restaurants (including cafes 

with outdoor seating), retail, and services, and by requiring direct doorways and access to the 

street. Minimize blank walls and surface parking. 

 

Redevelopment Goal No. 7 | Capitalize on the aesthetic beauty of the St. John’s River, value its health 

and respect its natural force, and maximize interactive and recreational opportunities for residents and 

visitors to create waterfront experiences unique to Downtown Jacksonville. 

 

Strategic Objectives: 

• Ensure that the riverfront includes a variety of immersive environments, ranging from passive 

enjoyment of the River to active entertainment areas by balancing public and private ownership 

and use and requiring activation of private riverfront developments with restaurants, shops, and 

attractions, all linked by the Riverwalk 

• Ensure the riverfront is accessible both physically and visually for residents and visitors of all ages, 

abilities, and incomes beyond minimum code requirements. 

• Maintain guidelines and zoning criteria for the design and orientation of buildings and 

improvements that take into account surrounding buildings, structures, viewscapes, public 

access, and waterways; design and orientation shall actively engage with the River, the Riverwalk, 

and riverfront. 

• Improve maintenance of all waterway access points, improve, or provide lighting and signage of 

access points from roadways and waterways. 

• Achieve at least one new restaurant/entertainment site directly accessible by boat by 2025, and 

a minimum of three (3) by 2030. 

 

Disposal of property in a Community Redevelopment Area must adhere to Florida statute 163.380, which 

allows the Combined Northbank CRA to “sell, lease, dispose of, or otherwise transfer real property or any 

interest therein acquired by it for community redevelopment in a community redevelopment area,…and 

may enter into contracts with respect thereto for…educational, or other uses, in accordance with the 

community redevelopment plan, subject to such covenants, conditions, and restrictions, including 

covenants running with the land, as it deems necessary or desirable to assist in preventing the 

development or spread of future slums or blighted areas or to otherwise carry out the purposes of this 

part.” The second part of the ordinance requires that the property “be sold or transferred at a value 

determined to be in the public interest for uses in accordance with the community redevelopment plan,” 

which have been outlined above.  



 

9 

 

 

Importantly, the statute provides the following, “In determining the value of real property as being in the 

public interest for uses in accordance with the community redevelopment plan, the county, municipality, 

or community redevelopment agency shall take into account and give consideration to the long-term 

benefits to be achieved by the county, municipality, or community redevelopment agency resulting from 

incurring short-term losses or costs in the disposal of such real property; the uses provided in such plan; 

the restrictions upon, and the covenants, conditions, and obligations assumed by, the purchaser or lessee 

or by the county, municipality, or community redevelopment agency retaining the property; and the 

objectives of such plan for the prevention of the recurrence of slum or blighted areas. In the event the value 

of such real property being disposed of is for less than the fair value, such disposition shall require the 

approval of the governing body, which approval may only be given following a duly noticed public hearing.”  

 

Although values of each parcel have not been finalized at the time of this writing, it is expected that the 

value of the unimproved Riverfront Plaza B and the East Landing Lot are approximately equivalent to the 

value of 801 W. Bay. 

 

Summary of Terms and Conditions for City Acquisition of 801 W. Bay Street from Gateway: 

• City to acquire fee simple title to the 801 W Bay Street property and, in consideration, City will 

provide City owned vacant land of approximately equal value to Gateway. 

• The acquisition is intended to be a land swap if Gateway is the prevailing bidder for the 

fee simple interest in the Riverfront Plaza Development Parcel B and option to acquire 

fee simple interest in the East Land Lot through the disposition process. Otherwise, 

alternative consideration from City for the property may be accepted by Gateway in its 

sole discretion.  

• Transfer of properties and associated rights between City and Gateway to occur simultaneously. 

• City to have a due diligence period that will not exceed 200 days and will be finalized in the RDA, 

if approved and awarded. 

• Gateway to convey the site “as is” and to pay doc stamps on the closing. 

 

Summary of Terms and Conditions of Disposition of Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B to Gateway: 

• Property interest considered for disposition by Quit Claim Deed: Fee Simple title, in “as is” 

condition. 

• In addition to the approximate 1-acre site in the northeast corner of Riverfront Plaza, air rights 

above bike/ped path along the southern boundary of the parcel and immediately adjacent to the 

eastern boundary not to exceed eighty feet in width by twenty-five feet depth with minimum 

clearance of eighteen feet above the bike/ped path to be conveyed. 

• Development to include one maximum seventeen (17) story class-A building over two story 

podium, up to 240 feet tall, consisting of no fewer than 130 and no more than 170 4+ star or 

luxury boutique hotel keys, at least 50 but no more than 150 residential units, at least 5,000 SF 

terrace located above the garage facing the park and open to the public, no fewer than two 

restaurants, adjacent to the public terrace, open to the public, totaling in the aggregate 7,500 SF 

or more.  

• Gateway to impose a room surcharge on all hotel rooms and transient rentals and remit the same 



 

10 

 

to the City to be used exclusively for maintenance and programming of Riverfront Plaza. 

• Maximum building width of 80 feet perpendicular to the river in the tower which shall be parallel 

and adjacent to the Main Street Bridge on the site. Maximum building height of building parallel 

to Independent Drive not to exceed seven floors above the podium.  

• Residential, hotel, food and beverage, retail and ancillary uses are permitted. The Riverfront Plaza 

Development Pad B will be deed restricted to prevent use that would be exempt from payment 

of property taxes, except with respect to any publicly dedicated and accepted park or recreation 

areas.  

• Other mutually agreed upon uses will be excluded including but not limited to select service 

hotels, commercial self-storage units, gas stations, and commercial car washes with such 

limitations also recorded in the deed 

• All improvements shall comply with the Downtown Zoning Overlay, subject to any deviation or 

variation as may be required for the improvements, with final approval by the Downtown 

Development Review Board (“DDRB”), or the COJ City Council as may be required. 

• Developer to pay all doc stamps as required by law. 

• Conveyance will follow the Due Diligence period and approval by City Council and execution of 

the Redevelopment Agreement and associated documents by all parties, upon a mutually 

agreeable date but no later than December 20, 2025. 

• The Property to be deed restricted against further transfer without the approval of DIA except as 

may be otherwise set forth in the Redevelopment Agreement. 

• Right of repurchase in favor of the City if horizontal construction not started within 42 months 

from closing on Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B and if not started within two years of closing 

on the East Landing Lot. 

 

Performance Schedule Summary for Riverfront Plaza Development Pad B: 

• Within 6 months of closing, Developer will submit applications to DDRB for conceptual approval 
and apply to DIA for incentive approvals, if desired.  

• Within 15 months of the later of conceptual approval and City Council approval of any 
legislation relating to incentives, Developer to commence horizontal or below grade 
construction.  

• Construction shall proceed diligently without stoppage until substantial completion of the 
project, Substantial Completion no later than 3 years after commencement.  

 

Summary of Terms and Conditions of Option to Acquire East Landing Lot: 

• Option to acquire Fee Simple title, in “as is” condition, subject to any representations and 

warranties in the Redevelopment Agreement and also subject to covenants, easements and 

restrictions of record. 

• Developer may negotiate removal of the down ramp to Independent Drive E with demolition to 

be undertaken at Developer’s expense. The decision to remove or not remove the ramp must be 

made prior to exercising the option to acquire the East Landing Lot. 

• Winning bidder must have commenced vertical construction on the Riverfront Plaza Development 

Pad B Improvements to the satisfaction of the DIA in its sole discretion as a precondition to 

exercising the Option Agreement.  

• Development plans to include a minimum 75,000 square foot mixed-use building, with not less 



 

11 

 

than one restaurant totaling in the aggregate 4,000 square feet facing the St. John’s River and 

minimum 75 parking spaces open to the public.  

• Total minimum capital expenditures of not less than $25,000,000. 

• Uses must adhere to the adopted BID and CRA Plan for Downtown and the Downtown Overlay 

but may not include select-service hotels, commercial self-storage units, gas stations, and 

commercial car washes with such limitations also recorded in the deed.  

• The property will also be deed restricted to prevent use that would be exempt from payment of 

property taxes, except with respect to any publicly dedicated and accepted park or recreation 

areas. 

• Developer to pay all doc stamps as required by law. 
 
Performance Schedule Summary for East Landing Lot: 

• The Option Agreement will be executed and provided to Developer upon closing on Riverfront 
Plaza Parcel B. The Option Agreement will terminate if winning bidder has not satisfied the 
preconditions to exercise and exercised the option within five (5) years from the Effective Date of 
the Option Agreement.  

• Winning bidder to commence horizontal improvements within one year from the exercise of the 
Option Agreement and continue to completion with no impermissible delay. 



TAB III.G 

RESOLUTION 2025-02-05 801 WEST BAY DISPOSITION 



801 West Bay/UF 
 

RESOLUTION 2025-02-05 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

(“DIA”) INSTRUCTING ITS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO”) TO 

ISSUE A 30-DAY NOTICE OF DISPOSITION IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

FLORIDA STATUTES AND THE NEGOTIATED DISPOSITION POLICY 

APPROVED BY ORDINANCE 2022-372-E; AUTHORIZING THE 

PUBLICATION OF A NOTICE OF DISPOSITION FOR THE FEE SIMPLE 

DISPOSITION OF APPROXIMATELY 2.85 ACRES CURRENTLY 

OWNED BY 801 BAY ST LLC AND IMPROVED WITH A SURFACE 

PARKING LOT AND APPROXIMATELY 39,000 SQUARE FOOT OFFICE 

BUILDING AND IDENTIFIED BY DUVAL COUNTY TAX PARCEL 

NUMBER 074487 0010 AND DEPICTED ON EXHIBIT A (THE “801 W BAY 

PARCEL”), WHICH PROPERTY IS PROPOSED TO BE CONVEYED TO 

THE CITY FOR REDEVELOPEMENT PURPOSES PURSUANT TO 

RESOLUTION 2025-02-04 AND WOULD UPON CONVEYANCE BECOME 

PROPERTY OF THE NORTHBANK COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT 

AGENCY; EXPRESSING THE INTENTION, ABSENT HIGHER 

RESPONSIVE OFFERS, TO DISPOSE OF THE 801 W BAY PARCEL IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH THE NEGOTIATED TERMS ATTACHED 

HERETO AS EXHIBIT B, AND ESTABLISHING THE TERMS OF THE 

PUBLISHED NOTICE OF DISPOSITION ATTACHED HERETO AS 

EXHIBIT C; AND FINDING THAT THIS RESOLUTION FURTHERS THE 

BUSINESS INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT (“BID”) PLAN, 

INCLUDING THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AREA PLAN; 

AUTHORIZING THE CEO OF THE DIA TO TAKE ALL ACTION 

NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES OF THIS 

RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, via Ordinance 2012-0364-E, the City Council created the Downtown 

Investment Authority, designating the DIA as the City’s Community Redevelopment Agency for 

the Combined Northbank Downtown Community Redevelopment Area and authorizing it to 

approve and negotiate economic development agreements and dispose of City-owned property; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, DIA is the designated Community Redevelopment Agency for the 

Northbank CRA, for which a Business Investment and Development Plan, inclusive of a 

Community Redevelopment Plan, (“BID/CRA Plan”) was adopted by Ordinance 2014-560-E and 

updated by Ordinance 2022-372-E; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 55.108 of the Jacksonville Code of Ordinances grants certain powers 

and duties to the DIA, including: 



 

Page 2 of 13 

 

 

Interpreting the BID/CRA Plan and approving development and redevelopment projects 

within Downtown. 

 

Implementing the BID/CRA Plan, and negotiating and approving downtown development 

and redevelopment agreements, grant agreements, license agreements, and lease 

agreements.  

 

Planning and proposing Projects and Public facilities within Downtown; and 

 

Subject to Section 122.434, Ordinance Code (Procedure for disposition of Community 

Development Property), hold, control, manage, lease, sell, dedicate, grant, or otherwise 

dispose of any of the City’s Downtown assets and properties managed by the DIA, or any 

interest therein. 

 

WHEREAS, 801 Bay St LLC is the owner of the 801 W Bay Parcel consisting of an 

improved with a surface parking lot and approximately 39,000 square foot office building and 

identified by Duval County Tax Parcel Number 074487-0010 and located within the Combined 

Downtown Northbank Community Redevelopment Area (“Northbank CRA”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the 801 W Bay Parcel is proposed to be conveyed to the City for 

redevelopment purposes pursuant to resolution 2025-02-04 in exchange for other City-owned 

property assigned to the Northbank CRA within the Combined Downtown Northbank Community 

Redevelopment; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to state law, property acquired by the City for redevelopment 

purposes within the boundaries of a designated Community Redevelopment Area becomes the 

property of the applicable Community Redevelopment Agency for management of redevelopment 

and future disposition; and 

 

WHEREAS, University of Florida has presented to the DIA an acquisition and master plan 

for improvements within the Downtown Northbank Community Redevelopment Area that 

proposes the development of a University of Florida Campus in Downtown Jacksonville; and 

 

WHEREAS, acquisition of the 801 W Bay Parcel is an essential component of the 

University of Florida campus plan and will be the site of initial classes and programs slated to 

begin as early as 2025; and  

 

WHEREAS, the 801 W Bay Parcel will be used as part of a higher educational campus 

including but not limited to such features as: (i) higher educational classrooms, research, 

laboratory, office and clinic uses, as well as residences, administration, retail, food, beverage, 

parking, recreation and other uses and services all supporting the campus; and (ii) on other parcels, 



 

Page 3 of 13 

 

passenger rail supporting uses  all as integral components of the broader master plan proposed; 

and   

 

WHEREAS, the DIA finds that such University of Florida Jacksonville Campus is 

consistent with the Conceptual Master Plan and the adopted vision for the LaVilla and Convention 

Center Catalyst sites contained in the adopted BID Plan for the Downtown Northbank CRA as 

well as the adopted LaVilla Neighborhood Development Strategy; and 

 

WHEREAS, DIA entered negotiation with University of Florida regarding the terms of 

the disposition and redevelopment in accordance with DIA’s approved negotiated disposition 

process and the essential terms of the redevelopment proposal including certain of University of 

Florida's obligations and conditions to closing on the 801 W Bay Parcel are set forth in the Term 

Sheet attached as Exhibit B; and 

 

WHEREAS, DIA has established the terms upon which a public notice of disposition will 

be published as set forth in Exhibit C; and  

 

WHEREAS, to determine fair value for the 801 W Bay Parcel pursuant to Florida Statutes 

Chapter 163.380(2), and as required by City of Jacksonville Code of Ordinances §122.432, the 

DIA has engaged an appraiser to appraise the various parcels involved in the disposition; and  

 

WHEREAS, development of the University of Florida Jacksonville Campus proposed 

creates higher education opportunities expected to attract top tier students from around the world 

where such development will generate interest in development of a long underutilized historic area 

of Downtown Jacksonville, draw firms into the area creating new employment opportunities, and 

put City-owned properties to use for the overall benefit of the local community; and 

 

WHEREAS, the DIA finds that the proposed disposition and redevelopment proposal 

further the following Redevelopment Goal and Strategic Objectives found in the BID/CRA Plan: 

 

Redevelopment Goal 1: Increase…job growth to reinforce Downtown as the region’s 

epicenter for business. 

 

Through the creation of an educational campus of a top tier university within Downtown, 

Downtown will be positioned to provide a highly trained workforce to businesses seeking 

to locate within Downtown and the region. Further, the location of a major research 

institute within the proposed campus will further solidify Downtown as the region’s 

epicenter for business. 

 

Redevelopment Goal 2: Increase rental and owner-occupied housing Downtown… 

 



 

Page 4 of 13 

 

The proposed campus will increase the demand for housing within the immediate vicinity 

as well as throughout Downtown. In addition, some student housing is envisioned to be 

part of the campus or developed nearby. 

 

Strategic Objectives: 

• Actively pursue a minimum of 8,140 built and occupied multi-family dwelling units 

by 2030; and strive to induce construction of 425 multifamily dwelling units per year, 

on average. 

• Improve the breadth and diversity of housing options across Downtown Jacksonville 

to provide all types and varied price ranges of rental and owner-occupied 

opportunities, including mixed-income and mixed-use structures. 

 

Redevelopment Goal No. 3: Increase and diversify the number and type of retail, food 

and beverage, and entertainment establishments within Downtown. 

  

The proposed campus will include multiple mixed-use buildings that include publicly 

accessible food and beverage or other retail establishments. 

  

 Strategic Objectives: 

• Increase the number of retail, food and beverage, and entertainment establishments that 

are open for business weekends and other times outside of weekday business hours. 

• Pursue the addition of one or more new neighborhood restaurant/entertainment venues 

in each District by 2025 and a second by 2030. 

 

 WHEREAS, at a publicly noticed meeting held on February 13, 2025, the DIA Retail 

Enhancement and Property Disposition Committee (“REPD”) recommended that the DIA Board 

adopt Resolution 2025-02-05 and 

 

WHEREAS, upon adoption of this Resolution, a 30-day public notice for the solicitation 

of proposals pursuant to Section 163.380(3)(a), Florida Statutes, and Sections 122.434(a) and (b), 

Jacksonville Ordinance Code, will be issued. 

  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment Authority: 

  

Section 1. The recitals set forth above are true and correct and are hereby incorporated 

herein by this reference.   

 

Section 2.   The DIA has determined that in furtherance of its plan to facilitate 

development in the Downtown Northbank Community Redevelopment Area the 801 W Bay Parcel 

should used and further improved as part of a University of Florida Campus in accordance with 

the terms outlined in Exhibit B, attached herein, unless a responsive proposal of greater value is 



 

Page 5 of 13 

 

received, and that the commitments of the University of Florida regarding development of the 

property constitute fair value for the land 

 

Section 3.  The DIA instructs the Chief Executive Officer of the Downtown Investment 

Authority to take all action necessary to effectuate the thirty (30) day Notice of Disposition for the 

801 W Bay Parcel, such disposition conditioned upon and immediately following conveyance of 

the 801 W Bay Parcel to the City, in accordance with DIA’s Negotiated Notice of Disposition 

Process and pursuant to the terms set forth in Exhibit C and consistent with Florida Statutes and 

the Ordinance Code.  

 

Section 4. Proposals received, if any, will be reviewed by the DIA Chief Executive 

Officer, who will make a recommendation to the DIA Board regarding any responsive alternate 

proposals received. 

 

Section 5. If no alternate responsive and qualified proposals are received, or if they are 

determined by the CEO to be lower in value or unresponsive, the DIA authorizes its CEO to 

finalize negotiation of a Redevelopment Agreement with University of Florida substantially in 

accordance with the terms set forth on Exhibit B, and including such additional dispositions as 

may be approved and authorized by Resolution, and file legislation seeking approval of the 

disposition and Redevelopment Agreement and associated documents with City Council. 

 

Section 6. The DIA Board hereby authorizes the CEO of the Downtown Investment 

Authority to take all action necessary to effectuate the purposes of this Resolution. 

 

Section 7. This Resolution, 2025-02-05, shall become effective on the date it is signed 

by the Chair of the DIA Board. 

  

 

 

WITNESS:      DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

 

______________________            _______________ 

            Patrick Krechowski, Esq., Chairman  Date 

 

 

VOTE:  In Favor: ______ Opposed: ______ Abstained: ______        

  



 

Page 6 of 13 

 

     

Exhibit A to Resolution 2025-02-05 

 

 

Approximately 2.85 acres currently owned by 801 Bay St LLC and improved with a surface parking 

lot and approximately 39,000 square foot office building and identified by Duval County Tax 

Parcel Number 074487 0010. Said property is bounded on the north by Forsyth Street, on east 

by the Jefferson Street, on the South by Bay Street and on the west by City-owned land identified 

by tax parcel number 074487 0020. 

 

 



 

 

Page 7 of 13 

 

Exhibit B to Resolution 2025-02-05 

Term Sheet for the Disposition of Real Property to the University of Florida 

 

 

Developer:  University of Florida 

 

The 801 W 

Bay Parcel:  Approximately 2.85 acres improved with a surface parking lot and approximately 

39,000 square foot office building and identified by Duval County Tax Parcel 

Number 074487 0010, proposed to be acquired by the Northbank CRA from its 

current owner by 801 Bay St LLC (the “801 W Bay Parcel”). Said property is 

bounded on the north by Forsyth Street, on east by the Jefferson Street, on the 

South by Bay Street and on the west by City-owned land identified by tax parcel 

number 074487 0020 which is the subject of Resolution 2025-02-1. The 801 W 

Bay Parcel is to be conveyed to Developer following acquisition thereof and 

award of the 801 W Bay Parcel to Developer pursuant to a publicly noticed 

disposition consistent with the closing conditions below including negotiation of 

a Redevelopment Agreement consistent with the terms set forth herein and 

approval by the Jacksonville City Council of legislation authorizing the same. 

 

Use Limitation: The 801 W Bay Parcel shall be limited to use for a higher educational campus, 

including but not limited to such features as) classrooms, research, laboratory, 

office and clinic uses, as well as residences, administration, retail, food, beverage, 

parking, recreation and other uses and services, all supporting the campus 

(“Campus Uses”); and the deed of conveyance will include such a restriction. 

 

Purchase Price: The consideration for the 801 W Bay Parcel shall be the Developer’s commitment 

to complete the 801 West Bay Project (as defined below) and there shall be no 

cash purchase price paid for the 801 W Bay Parcel. 

 

The 801 West  

Bay Project: Developer proposes establishing the 801 W Bay Parcel building as the initial 

administrative, academic, and research facility of its new Jacksonville campus. 

Administratively, the building will provide space for UF Jacksonville campus 

leadership, marketing and enrollment professionals, administrative staff, and 

facilities management as early as 2025. Academically, Developer will introduce 

no fewer than two degree programs with at least 50 students by the end of 2026. 

Additional degree programs may launch as soon as 2026 in fields such as 

engineering, law, business, health sciences, and more. The building will also 

provide flexible faculty offices, common space, student support services, and 



 

 

Page 8 of 13 

dining options. UF’s Florida Semiconductor Institute (FSI), which serves as the 

statewide hub for research, development and workforce initiatives in 

semiconductor technologies, will establish research and administrative offices in 

the building in 2026 as well. 

 

 

 All improvements on the 801 W Bay Parcel shall comply with the Downtown 

Zoning Overlay, subject to any deviation or variation as may be required for the 

improvements, with final approval by the Downtown Development Review Board 

(“DDRB”), or the COJ City Council as may be required. For clarity, while use of the 

Property will be deed restricted as specified above, the 801 W Bay Parcel will only 

be used for Campus Uses, except as otherwise approved by the DIA.  

 

Preconditions  

to Closing:   Acquisition of the 801 W Bay Parcel by the City is a precondition to the City’s 

obligations hereunder and the City shall have no liability to Developer if for any 

reason it does not acquire the 801 W Bay Parcel and is unable to proceed with 

this disposition. The closing and conveyance of the 801 W Bay Parcel to Developer 

is expected to occur simultaneously or shortly following acquisition of the 801 W 

Bay Parcel by the City. Conveyance will follow the Due Diligence period and 

approval by City Council and execution of the Redevelopment Agreement and 

associated documents by all parties, upon a mutually agreeable date but no later 

than December 20, 2025. The Redevelopment Agreement may contain certain 

additional conditions to closing as may be agreed upon by the parties. No closing 

on any parcel shall occur until the Developer has completed its due diligence and 

agreed to move forward without termination, or the Due Diligence Period has 

expired. 

 

Redevelopment  

Agreement: The Redevelopment Agreement (sometimes referred to as the “RDA”) will 

establish, inter alia, the essential terms of the conveyance of the Property, the 

Developer’s rights and responsibilities with respect to design and use, the 

Developer’s and the City’s obligations with respect to construction of 

infrastructure improvements, if any, site remediation, improvements on the 

Property and other terms relevant to development of the Property including 

rights of reversion in favor of the DIA and the City if development activity does 

not occur after closing as agreed upon by the parties.  The RDA will become 

effective upon its execution following approval by COJ, and final University of 

Florida Board of Trustee approval, with an outside date for execution by 

Developer of forty-five (45) days following the effective date of the legislation 

(which date shall be set forth in the legislation). While this term sheet summarizes 



 

 

Page 9 of 13 

certain of the terms and conditions that will be contained in the RDA, it is not a 

complete statement of all such terms and conditions. Additional terms and 

conditions essential to implementation of the master plan will also be included in 

the RDA.  

 

Site  

Investigation:  The Developer will seek to obtain from the current owner of the 801 W Bay Parcel, 

early access to the 801 W Bay Parcel to conduct inspections prior to execution of 

the Redevelopment Agreement. In addition, following the execution of the 

Redevelopment Agreement the Developer will have an additional period, if 

needed, to have a cumulative total of one hundred eighty (180) calendar days 

from the grant of access (the “Due Diligence Period”) to inspect and perform tests 

on the 801 W Bay Parcel  and any other LaVilla parcels awarded to Developer 

through disposition or included in the campus master plan. pursuant to a scope 

of work approved by Developer and the DIA to determine its suitability for the 

campus, and to investigate the quality and marketability of the title of the fee 

simple interest it will receive from the City. Upon providing written notice to the 

DIA, the Developer may terminate the Redevelopment Agreement and the 801 

West Bay Project any time within the Due Diligence Period without cause and 

without incurring any obligations under the Redevelopment Agreement. If no 

written termination notice is delivered by Developer to the DIA prior to the 

expiration of the Due Diligence Period, all remaining terms found in the 

Redevelopment Agreement shall be in effect. 

 

Environmental: Upon taking title, City will provide access to the 801 W Bay Parcel for any required 

investigation but shall not be liable for environmental issues that arise by actions 

taken by the Developer or its agents during inspection or following conveyance 

of the 801 W Bay Parcel, including liability for any damage caused by Developer 

or its contractors during construction. 

 

Conveyance 

“AS IS”: Except for any representations and warranties or as otherwise may be agreed 

upon by the parties in the Redevelopment Agreement, the City agrees to convey 

the 801 W Bay Parcel in “as-is” condition and is not undertaking any obligation, 

financial or otherwise, to remediate the sites, clear title, or otherwise.  

 

Form of Deed: The City will convey title by Quit Claim Deed as required by the Ordinance Code, 

unless waived. 

 

Documentary  



 

 

Page 10 of 13 

Stamps: The City is precluded by law from the payment of Documentary stamp taxes. Such 

taxes, if any, will be paid by Developer or someone on Developer’s behalf. 

 

Survey: DIA to provide Developer with a survey map and prepared legal description for 

the Property on or before the RDA execution date. If Developer desires a stamped 

survey depicting all improvements and easements, etc. the Developer shall obtain 

the same at its cost and expense. 

 

Title  

Commitment: DIA shall obtain and deliver to Developer a title commitment for the Property on 

or before the RDA execution date. Title insurance, if desired, shall be issued at 

closing at Developer’s expense. 

 

Appraisal: DIA shall obtain appraisals of the 801 W Bay Parcel as required for disposition at 

DIA’s expense and shall make the same available to Developer on or before 

execution of the RDA.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City will deed the 801 

W Bay Parcel to Developer for no monetary consideration in recognition of the 

other obligations of Developer set forth in the RDA. 

 

Restriction on  

Further Transfer:  The Property to be deed restricted against further transfer without the approval 

of DIA except as may be otherwise set forth in the Redevelopment Agreement 

(such as conveyance to university direct-support organizations (as defined in 

Section 1004.28, Florida Statutes), university health services support 

organizations (as defined in Section 1004.29, Florida Statutes), and their 

subsidiaries). 

 

Reverter:   The Deed will include a reverter of the 801 W Bay Parcel in favor of the City in the 

event Developer fails to commence on the 801 W Bay Parcel no fewer than two 

degree programs with at least 50 students by the end of 2027 (subject to force 

majeure). In addition, the Property will be restricted to Campus Uses  and subject 

to the restrictions on transfer set forth herein.   

  

 

 

Right of  

Repurchase: The Redevelopment Agreement or deed shall include a mutually agreeable right 

of repurchase to allow the City to re-acquire the Property if there is a cessation 

of Campus Uses, and it becomes dilapidated as defined between the parties.  

 



 

 

Page 11 of 13 

Entitlements:  Mobility Credits will be provided to Developer if Developer earns the same 

through its design in accordance with the criteria for the Mobility Fee Credit 

established in the adopted BID Strategy.  Stormwater Credits may be available for 

purchase by Developer in accordance with the ordinance governing the same 

once the quantity of credits required is known and subject to the availability of 

credits in the City or Downtown Stormwater Credit Bank. The building located at 

801 West Bay Street is comprised of an effective area of 38,378 square feet of 

existing office entitlements. The developer may convert the existing 801 West 

Bay Street entitlements utilizing the conversion rates in Table L-2: CBD Land Use 

Transportation / Trade-off Matrix in furtherance of their development plan 

consistent with the permitted use above. Should additional entitlements be 

necessary, Developer will request and DIA will allocate the required additional 

entitlements, with that allocation formalized via an Allocation of Development 

Rights Agreement, or functional equivalent thereof.   

 

Design: a) The Developer will design any improvements to the Property with the goal of 

creating educational campus buildings incorporating design and use 

considerations capable of attracting students and researchers for decades 

following their completion. The buildings will be designed with the intent to 

serve an important and functional purpose contributing to that which defines 

the City as a distinctive and leading urban research and learning campus and 

will remain visually and functionally beneficial with the passage of time. 

b) The design will comply with the Downtown Overlay Standards as enacted 

within the Jacksonville Municipal Code as well as the DDRB's development 

guidelines, except as may otherwise be approved by the DDRB and allowed 

by code. The design is subject to further review and approval of the 

Downtown Investment Authority for consistency with its BID and CRA Plan 

and of the DIA and COJ for consistency with associated adopted studies and 

plans. 

c) In collaboration with the City’s Chief Resiliency Officer and the Florida 

Institute for Built Environment Resilience, the design may include resiliency 

features, including to the extent practicable the design recommendations set 

forth in Resilient Jacksonville published in October 2023 and its update 

published in October 2024. 

d) Parking and landscaping will comply with the City's standard as found in the 

Downtown Design Standards, except as otherwise approved through 

deviations or variances.   

 

Performance  

Schedule: 



 

 

Page 12 of 13 

a) The Redevelopment Agreement will be entered into by the Developer, DIA 

and the City within forty-five (45) days following City Council approval 

legislation authorizing the same. Due Diligence period of one hundred eighty 

(180) days as defined above with termination rights as found in the 

Redevelopment Agreement. 

b) Conveyance of the 801 W Bay Parcel to occur within thirty days of satisfaction 

of the conditions to closing, but not sooner than the earlier of the execution 

date of the Redevelopment Agreement and the Acceptance Date (defined as 

an affirmative letter delivered to the DIA within the Due Diligence period or 

with the expiration of the Due Diligence period with no termination letter 

provided by Developer). 

c) Developer must commence the 801 West Bay Project within 1 year of closing 

on the 801 W Bay Parcel.  

d) Developer must be utilizing the 801 W Bay Street Parcel for no fewer than two 

degree programs with at least 50 students by the end of 2026 and proceed 

diligently using commercially reasonable efforts to grow the campus student 

enrollment, approved curriculum, programs (including the Florida 

Semiconductor Institute), research and other Campus Uses taking place on 

the Jacksonville Downtown campus. 

e) The foregoing deadlines will be subject to extensions of up to six (6) months 

granted by the DIA's Chief Executive Officer without additional City approval 

upon reasonable cause shown. In addition, extensions shall be available for 

force majeure.  

f) Following entry into the Redevelopment Agreement the Developer will 

provide project updates to DIA every six (6) months, and the DIA reserves the 

right to inspect the Property with not less than 48 hours notice to Developer, 

and not more than once per month prior to Substantial Completion of any 

improvements. 

g) Provisions of this Term Sheet are intended to guide the parties in negotiating 

the Redevelopment Agreement and any other documents that may be 

necessary to give effect to the manifest intent of the parties expressed herein, 

but no party shall be bound unless and until a fully executed Redevelopment 

Agreement is approved and entered into. 

 

 



 

 

Page 13 of 13 

Exhibit C to Resolution 2025-02-05 

 

Essential Terms of Disposition Notice 

 

1. This disposition is conditioned upon acquisition of the subject property by the City on or before 

December 20, 2025. 

2. Property Interest considered for disposition by Quit Claim Deed, unless waived by Ordinance:  

Fee Simple title, in “as is” condition, subject to any representations and warranties in the 

Redevelopment Agreement and also subject to covenants, easements and restrictions of record, 

to: 

a. RE# 074487 0010 together with all improvements thereon (the “801 W Bay Parcel “)  

3. Use: The 801 W Bay Parcel shall be limited to use for a higher educational campus.  

4. New construction must comply with Downtown Zoning Overlay including approval of any 

deviation or variance as may be required for the improvements. 

5. Deed to contain a reverter if at least two academic programs with at least 50 students enrolled 

are not in operation  on the 801 W Bay Parcel by the end of 2027.  

6. The Redevelopment Agreement or deed shall include a mutually agreeable right of repurchase to 

allow the City to re-acquire the Property if there is a cessation of Campus Uses, and it becomes 

dilapidated as defined between the parties.. 

7. Redevelopment Agreement to be executed within forty-five (45) days following City Council 

approval thereof and closing to occur within 7 months of effective date of Redevelopment 

agreement . 

8. If conveyance is to a non-profit or tax-exempt entity, Property to be deed restricted against 

further transfer without the approval of DIA except to approved affiliates.  

9. Developer must demonstrate successful track record of the development and operation of similar 

facilities. 

10. Developer to demonstrate current and previous capacity and capability to raise debt and equity 

funds necessary for project financing. 

11. Proposal must identify if Developer or proposed owner is exempt from payment of ad valorem 

taxes or if taxes will be paid on the proposed improvements to be constructed on the parcel. 

12. Developer must commence higher education programs on the 801 W Bay Parcel by later of six 

months after closing or January 15, 2026. 

13. The foregoing deadlines will be subject to extensions of up to six (6) months granted by the DIA's 

Chief Executive Officer without additional City approval upon reasonable cause shown. In 

addition, extensions shall be available for force majeure.  

 

 

 



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

RESOLUTION 2025-02-05 801 WEST BAY DISPOSITION 



Staff Report to Resolution 2025-02-05 

 

1 

 

CRA NEGOTIATED PROPERTY DISPOSITION 

801 W Bay Street to UF 

RESOLUTION 2025-02-05 

 

Staff Report for DIA RE&PD Committee 

 

February 7, 2025 

 

Property: 801 W Bay Street 

 

Project: University of Florida Graduate Campus 

 

Request: Negotiated Disposition 

 

Consideration for disposition:                              No cash purchase price- commitments 

 of UF to establish campus 

  

Project Background: 

In February 2023, the University of Florida (“UF”) announced intentions to locate a new graduate 

campus at a then undetermined location in Downtown Jacksonville that would bring as many as 1,500 

students and approximately 80 professors within an approximate five-year period from opening. 

Although degree and class offerings have not been finalized, early reports indicate the new graduate 

campus will focus on advanced studies in artificial intelligence, data analytics, computer science 

(concentrating on AI and cybersecurity), business management, law, and biomedical and health 

sciences, and semiconductor research. The campus is projected to cover 22 acres as it reaches its full 

capacity. A key component of the campus will be the Florida Semiconductor Institute, dedicated to 

advancing research and development in semiconductor technology, a critical area for national security 

and economic competitiveness. The institute has already secured $80 million in state funding, with 

additional federal support anticipated. 

 

The establishment of the Jacksonville campus is supported by significant funding from various sources. 

The state of Florida has committed $150 million, while the City of Jacksonville approved $50 million in 

Ordinance 2023-114, with an additional $50 million proposed. Private donors have also contributed $50 

million to the project. This investment is expected to have a substantial economic impact on the region, 

fostering innovation, creating job opportunities, and attracting talent to Jacksonville. 

 

In December 2024, the University announced that the LaVilla District had been selected for the location 

of the campus with focus on the parcels including and surrounding Prime Osborne Convention Center, 

most of which are City-owned. The LaVilla location was selected in part due to the existing privately 

owned office building at 801 West Bay that would create the opportunity for quick establishment of the 

campus while a new building was in design and under construction.  

 

 



Staff Report to Resolution 2025-02-05 

 

2 

 

The Property:  

Address 801 W. Bay Street 

Duval County Tax Parcel Number  074487-0010 

Acres Approximately 2.85 

Improvements Approximately 39,000 SF Office Building 

 Approximately 2.0 acres of paved access and parking 

 

 
 

The former Interline building located at 801 W. Bay Street, located in the LaVilla District, of the 

Combined Downtown Northbank Community Redevelopment Area, includes an office building of 

approximately 39,000 square feet. In addition, approximately 2.0 acres of the 2.85-acre site is improved 

with ingress/egress drives and surface parking which can be further developed as growth needs dictate. 

Classes could begin as early as August 2025 if UF is the winning bidder. Accordingly, the opportunity for 

UF to acquire this property and begin establishing their campus almost immediately serves their goals, 

and the goals of the City and the DIA, mutually. 

 

The Disposition 

The 801 W Bay Street property has been targeted for acquisition by DIA and if acquired, will be used to 

facilitate development of a higher education campus in Downtown Jacksonville consistent with the 

discussion in the CRA Plan regarding the LaVilla Catalyst site area. Through the creation of a higher 

educational campus within Downtown, Downtown will be positioned to provide a highly trained 

workforce to businesses seeking to locate within Downtown and the region. This use is consistent with 

the BID Plan goals and objectives described below and the commitments to establishment of the 

Downtown Jacksonville campus warrant the disposition without additional cash consideration. This 

disposition is contingent upon successful acquisition of the 801 W Bay Street property by the City. 
 

If the subject Resolution 2025-02-05 is approved by the RE&PD Committee, and subsequently by the DIA 

Board, a public notice for the disposition of the 801 W Bay Street Property will be published to allow 

other bidders the chance to propose under the terms and conditions provided in the Exhibit C, “Essential 



Staff Report to Resolution 2025-02-05 

 

3 

 

Terms of Disposition Notice” to the Resolution. Such terms and conditions also require other proposers 

to use the site for a higher educational campus, demonstrate the requisite experience for such 

acquisition and use, and also demonstrate access to capital for the project. Additional terms and 

conditions provide City protections if such development activity does not follow following conveyance to 

the winning proposer, whether to UF or an alternative bidder. 

 

As a negotiated disposition, the Resolution also contains the terms (set forth in Exhibit B to Resolution 

2025-02-05) upon which DIA agrees to convey the property to UF, if UF’s proposal provides the 

greatest value and benefit to the CRA. Among other requirements, UF must commence programs on the 

site within the later of six months after closing or January 15, 2026. UF has committed to operating a 

minimum of two academic programs with at least 50 students enrolled in the 801 W Bay building by the 

end of 2026, in addition to other Campus Uses. The deed will contain a reverter as well as a restriction 

on use for a higher education campus and a restriction on transfer. A performance schedule outlines the 

execution of the RDA, the closing, and growth of campus programs. Closing is expected to occur 

simultaneously with the City’s acquisition of the property but not later than December 20, 2026. 

 

BID Strategy and CRA Plan: 

In context of the Downtown Northbank CRA, the disposition of City owned parcels satisfies the BID and 

CRA plan and statutory requirements in the following ways.  

 

Redevelopment Goal 1: Increase…job growth to reinforce Downtown as the region’s epicenter for 

business.  

Through the creation of an educational campus of a top tier university within Downtown, Downtown 

will be positioned to provide a highly trained workforce to businesses seeking to locate within 

Downtown and the region. Further, the location of a major research institute within the proposed 

campus will further solidify Downtown as the region’s epicenter for business. 

 

Strategic Objectives: 

• Improve the occupancy rates of existing Downtown commercial office buildings. 

• Grow or maintain the Downtown workforce each year by adding new permanent jobs 

and/or retaining existing permanent jobs within Downtown. 

 

Redevelopment Goal 2: Increase rental and owner-occupied housing Downtown…  

The proposed campus will increase the demand for housing within the immediate vicinity as well as 

throughout Downtown. In addition, some student housing is envisioned to be part of the campus or 

developed nearby. 

  

Strategic Objectives:  

• Actively pursue a minimum of 8,140 built and occupied multi-family dwelling units by 2030; 

and strive to induce construction of 425 multifamily dwelling units per year, on average.  

• Improve the breadth and diversity of housing options across Downtown Jacksonville to 

provide all types and varied price ranges of rental and owner-occupied opportunities, 

including mixed-income and mixed-use structures.  



Staff Report to Resolution 2025-02-05 

 

4 

 

Redevelopment Goal No. 3: Increase and diversify the number and type of retail, food and beverage, 

and entertainment establishments within Downtown.  

The proposed campus will include multiple mixed-use buildings that include publicly accessible food and 

beverage or other retail establishments.  

 

Strategic Objectives:  

• Increase the number of retail, food and beverage, and entertainment establishments that 

are open for business weekends and other times outside of weekday business hours.  

• Pursue the addition of one or more new neighborhood restaurant/entertainment venues in 

each District by 2025 and a second by 2030.  

 

Disposal of property in a Community Redevelopment Area must adhere to Florida statute 163.380, 

which allows the Combined Northbank CRA to “sell, lease, dispose of, or otherwise transfer real property 

or any interest therein acquired by it for community redevelopment in a community redevelopment 

area,…and may enter into contracts with respect thereto for…educational, or other uses, in accordance 

with the community redevelopment plan, subject to such covenants, conditions, and restrictions, 

including covenants running with the land, as it deems necessary or desirable to assist in preventing the 

development or spread of future slums or blighted areas or to otherwise carry out the purposes of this 

part.” The second part of the ordinance requires that the property “be sold or transferred at a value 

determined to be in the public interest for uses in accordance with the community redevelopment plan,” 

which have been outlined above.  

 

Importantly, the statute provides the following, “In determining the value of real property as being in the 

public interest for uses in accordance with the community redevelopment plan, the county, municipality, 

or community redevelopment agency shall take into account and give consideration to the long-term 

benefits to be achieved by the county, municipality, or community redevelopment agency resulting from 

incurring short-term losses or costs in the disposal of such real property; the uses provided in such plan; 

the restrictions upon, and the covenants, conditions, and obligations assumed by, the purchaser or lessee 

or by the county, municipality, or community redevelopment agency retaining the property; and the 

objectives of such plan for the prevention of the recurrence of slum or blighted areas. In the event the 

value of such real property being disposed of is for less than the fair value, such disposition shall require 

the approval of the governing body, which approval may only be given following a duly noticed public 

hearing.”  

 

The community benefits of establishing the University of Florida graduate campus are anticipated to 

provide long-term benefits that outweigh any short-term monetary losses that may be incurred through 

the transfer of the property at no cost to UF, however all dispositions will be forwarded to City Council 

for ultimate approval. The 801 W Bay site has been underutilized for several years and in addition to the 

building, contains a surface parking lot which is ultimately part of the vision for future redevelopment as 

well. Appraisals have been ordered for the site by DIA and should be available before Committee. 

 

Summary of Terms and Conditions of Disposition to UF: 

• The 801 W Bay Parcel must be used for a higher educational campus, including such features as 



Staff Report to Resolution 2025-02-05 

 

5 

 

classrooms, research, laboratory, office and clinic uses, as well as residences, administration, 

retail, food, beverage, parking, recreation and other uses and services, all supporting the 

campus and the deed of conveyance will include such a restriction. 

• To ensure rapid use of the site, Developer will introduce no fewer than two degree programs 

with at least 50 students by the end of 2026. If UF is the winning bidder classes are anticipated 

to start as early as August 2025, and UF’s Florida Semiconductor Institute (FSI), which serves as 

the statewide hub for research, development and workforce initiatives in semiconductor 

technologies, will establish research and administrative offices in the building in 2026 as well. 

• Developer will be provided an access agreement to begin due diligence prior to execution of the 

Redevelopment Agreement, and following the execution of the Redevelopment Agreement the 

Developer will have an additional period, if needed, to have a cumulative total of one hundred 

eighty (180) calendar days from the grant of access to inspect and perform tests on the 801 W 

Bay Parcel. 

• All improvements on the 801 W Bay Parcel shall comply with the Downtown Zoning Overlay, 

subject to any deviation or variation as may be required for the improvements, with final 

approval by the Downtown Development Review Board (“DDRB”), or the COJ City Council as 

may be required. 

• The City agrees to convey the 801 W Bay Parcel in “as-is” condition by way of a quit claim deed 

for fee simple interest in the property. 

• Developer to pay all doc stamps as required by law. 

• Conveyance will follow the Due Diligence period and approval by City Council and execution of 

the Redevelopment Agreement and associated documents by all parties, upon a mutually 

agreeable date but no later than December 20, 2025. 

• The Deed will include a reverter of the 801 W Bay Parcel in favor of the City in the event 

Developer fails to commence on the 801 W Bay Parcel no fewer than two degree programs with 

at least 50 students by the end of 2027. 

• The Property to be deed restricted against further transfer without the approval of DIA except 

as may be otherwise set forth in the Redevelopment Agreement. 

• The Redevelopment Agreement or deed shall include a mutually agreeable right of repurchase 

to allow the City to re-acquire the Property if there is a cessation of Campus Uses, and it 

becomes dilapidated as defined between the parties. 

• The design will comply with the Downtown Overlay Standards as enacted within the Jacksonville 

Municipal Code as well as the DDRB's development guidelines, except as may otherwise be 

approved by the DDRB and allowed by code. The design is subject to further review and 

approval of the Downtown Investment Authority for consistency with its BID and CRA Plan and 

of the DIA and COJ for consistency with associated adopted studies and plans. 

 

Performance Schedule Summary for UF: 

• Developer to enter into the RDA within 45 days following City Council approval. 

• Conveyance of the 801 W Bay Parcel to occur within thirty days of satisfaction of the conditions 

to closing, but not sooner than the earlier of the execution date of the Redevelopment 

Agreement and the completion of Due Diligence. 

• Developer must commence use of the site for administrative, academic, and as a research 



Staff Report to Resolution 2025-02-05 

 

6 

 

facility for its new Jacksonville campus within 1 year of closing on the 801 W Bay Parcel. 

• The foregoing deadlines will be subject to extensions of up to six (6) months granted by the 

DIA's Chief Executive Officer without additional City approval upon reasonable cause shown. In 

addition, extensions shall be available for force majeure. 

 



TAB III.H 

RESOLUTION 2025-02-06 21 E. ADAMS FAÇADE  



RESOLUTION 2025-02-06 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

(“DIA”) ACTING AS THE COMBINED NORTHBANK COMMUNITY 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY (“GRANTOR”) APPROVING THE 

AWARD OF DIA STOREFRONT FAÇADE GRANT AGREEMENT TO 21 

E ADAMS ST, LLC (“APPLICANT” OR “GRANTEE”); AUTHORIZING 

THE CEO OF THE DIA TO NEGOTIATE A GRANT AGREEMENT; 

AUTHORIZING THE DIA CEO TO EXECUTE SUCH AGREEMENT; 

AND FINDING THAT THE DEVELOPMENT PLAN IS CONSISTENT 

WITH THE DIA’S BUSINESS INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT 

PLAN (“BID PLAN”) AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, via Ordinance 2012-0364-E, the City Council created the Downtown 

Investment Authority, designating the DIA as the City’s Community Redevelopment Agency for 

the Combined Northbank Downtown Community Redevelopment Area and authorizing it to 

approve and negotiate economic development agreements; and 

 

WHEREAS, DIA is the designated Community Redevelopment Agency for the 

Northbank CRA, for which a Business Investment and Development Plan, inclusive of a 

Community Redevelopment Plan, (“BID/CRA Plan”) was adopted by Ordinance 2014-560-E and 

updated by Ordinance 2022-372-E; and 

 

WHEREAS, at their June 18, 2020 meeting the Downtown Investment Authority (“DIA”) 

approved Resolution 2020-06-02 establishing the DIA Storefront Façade Grant Program, to 

provide funding for the improvement of storefronts, and, if applicable, second story façades, in the 

Downtown Jacksonville Historic District to activate the streetscape and the overall revitalization 

of Downtown Jacksonville, with funding provided through the Downtown Northbank CRA Trust 

Fund; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Applicant acquired eligible property located at 21 E. Adams Street (RE# 

073587-0100) and applied for funding under the DIA Storefront Façade Grant Program to facilitate 

improvements to the exterior of the building; and 

 

WHEREAS, the application was reviewed by the DIA staff, found to be consistent with 

program guidelines and the BID Plan and CRA Plan for Downtown; and 

 

WHEREAS, the DIA Strategic Implementation Committee, at their meeting of February 

14, 2025, voted to recommend approval of the application to the DIA Board; and 

 



RESOLUTION 2025-02-06 

PAGE 2 OF 6 

 

Page 2 of 7 
 

WHEREAS, to assist the Grantee in making renovations to the façade of the commercial 

building located at 21 E. Adams Street (“the Project”) the DIA proposes to provide a Grant in an 

amount not to exceed EIGHT THOUSAND SEVENTY-FOUR DOLLARS ($8,074.00) to the 

Grantee; and 

 

WHEREAS, the financial assistance to the Project will be in the form of the proposed 

terms and incentives on the Term Sheet, attached as Exhibit A to this Resolution, 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment Authority: 

 

Section 1. The DIA finds that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are 

incorporated herein by this reference. 

 

Section 2.  The DIA hereby finds that the Project is supported by the following Goal(s) 

and Strategic Objective(s) of the BID Plan: 

 

• Goal Number 3:  Increase and diversify the number and type of retail, food and beverage, 

and entertainment establishments within Downtown. 

▪ Facilitate the restoration and rehabilitation of Downtown’s historic building stock 

for use by retail/beverage/entertainment establishments. 

• Goal Number 4: Increase the vibrancy of Downtown for residents and visitors through arts, 

culture, history, sports, theater, events, parks, and attractions. 

▪ Create and promote a consistent brand for Downtown that conveys a sense of 

excitement and within the boundary of Downtown foster distinct neighborhood 

identities that evoke a unique sense of place. 

• Goal Number 5: Improve the safety, accessibility, and wellness of Downtown Jacksonville 

and cleanliness and maintenance of public spaces for residents, workers, and visitors.  

▪ Support a clean and safe Downtown 24-7, including the work of Downtown Vision 

Inc. 

▪ Enforce proper maintenance of private property. 

 

Section 3. The DIA hereby awards a DIA Storefront Façade Grant to Grantee in an 

amount not to exceed $8,074 from the Combined Northbank TID in accordance with the terms of 

the term sheet attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

 

Section 4. The DIA Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized to negotiate and 

execute the contracts necessary to document this approval and otherwise take all additional actions 

necessary to effectuate the purposes of this Resolution. 

 

Section 5.  The Effective Date of this Resolution is the date of execution of this 

Resolution by the Chair of the DIA Board. 



RESOLUTION 2025-02-06 

PAGE 3 OF 6 

 

Page 3 of 7 
 

 

 

WITNESS:      DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

 

 

      

               Witness                                     Patrick Krechowski, Esq., Chairman Date 

 

 

VOTE:    In Favor: ________ Opposed:  _________ Abstained: _______ 



RESOLUTION 2025-02-06 

PAGE 4 OF 6 

Page 4 of 7 

EXHIBIT A - TERM 

SHEET Resolution 

2025-02-06 

South of Bay Street, LLC 

10 S Newnan Street 

Façade Grant 

Project Name: 21 E Adams Street 

Applicant:    21 E Adams St, LLC 
Elias Hionides, Manager 

Estimated Rehabilitation Budget: $18,028 

Eligible Façade Improvement Costs: $16,148 

Maximum Façade Grant Funding (50%): $ 8,074 

Project: Exterior renovations to 21 E. Adams Street in accordance with the application received, 

materially consistent with the budget found in FIGURE 1., subject to DIA Board approval.  

DIA Funding: No more than $8,074, through the Downtown Northbank Combined CRA. 

Infrastructure: No City of Jacksonville or CRA infrastructure funding or support is requested. 

Land: No City of Jacksonville or CRA land or building is requested. 

Loans:  No further City of Jacksonville or CRA loans have been requested. 

Façade Grant: 

• Maximum funding limited to the lesser of 50% of actual costs incurred on eligible improvements

as supported by invoices as approved by the DIA, or $16,148.

• Eligible costs are those outlined in Figure 1 below and are further limited to expenditures made

on improvements to the exterior walls facing Adams Street materially consistent with images

shown in FIGURE 2 below.

• The Grant will be funded following submission and review of a funding request form following

completion of the work.

• Work shall be inspected for compliance with the application as submitted, and all invoices must

be submitted for satisfactory review and approval by DIA Staff.

• The Grant approval is contingent upon the following:

1. Only work on the street-facing storefront(s) as outlined in the application submitted is

eligible for reimbursement.



RESOLUTION 2025-02-06 

PAGE 5 OF 6 

 

Page 5 of 7 
 

2. Applicant must be in good standing with the City (no unpaid taxes, Municipal Code 

Compliance outstanding citation on any property of applicant, outstanding defaults on 

any City contract, or previous uncured grant defaults or non-compliance). 

3. The property being improved may not have any outstanding liens or violations. 

4. Applicant must not be engaged in an active lawsuit with or have an unresolved claim from 

or against the City or its agencies that is related to the property from which the grant is 

sought or other similar rehabilitation grants. 

5. Applicant agrees to utilize City-approved JSEB subcontractors for renovation work 

associated with the grant where possible. 

6. Must maintain the improvements in good repair. 

7. All improvements must adhere to Downtown Overlay Zone and Downtown District Use 

and Form Regulations, and must be submitted for and receive DDRB approvals, as 

applicable. 

8. If at any point the space is not occupied, the Applicant shall utilize its best efforts to 

continue to activate the streetscape. This can be accomplished through temporarily 

attaching art to the windows, utilizing the storefront space as an art installation or 

exhibition, or other creative efforts to address street activation. 

 

Performance Schedule: 

1. Façade Grant Agreement or appropriate loan document to be executed not later than three (3) 

months from receipt of the Draft Agreements which will establish the Façade Grant Agreement 

Effective Date. 

2. Commencement of Construction of Façade Improvements: Within three (3) months following the 

Façade Grant Agreement Effective Date, Applicant commits to commencement of construction, 

meaning receipt of all required approvals, permitting, and closing on all required financing to 

allow the start of construction activities and has begun work in earnest.  

3. Substantial Completion: Within six (6) months following Commencement of Construction as 

defined above.  

4. The DIA CEO will have authority to extend this Performance Schedule, at the CEO’s sole discretion, 

for up to three (3) cumulative months for good cause shown by the Applicant. Any extensions to 

the Commencement Date shall have the same effect of extending the Substantial Completion 

Date simultaneously. 

 

Conditions:   

This Term Sheet is limited by the following conditions: 

1. Downtown Investment Authority to receive copies of any necessary permits, invoices, cancelled 

checks or documentation from other methods of payment, and other items as may be requested 

by the DIA in its sole discretion as evidence of eligible expenditures; and 

2. Annual reporting required to demonstrate compliance with terms and conditions as approved; 

and 



RESOLUTION 2025-02-06 

PAGE 6 OF 6 

 

Page 6 of 7 
 

3. There may be additional terms, conditions, rights, responsibilities, warranties, and obligations for 

both parties which shall be determined in a later negotiated mutually agreeable written contract. 

 

FIGURE 1. FAÇADE BUDGET AS PROPOSED 

21 East Adams Street / Façade Update   
ITEM  COSTS  ELIGIBLE? ELIGIBLE COSTS 
4 Reclaimed Shutters  $ 1,200.00  y  $ 1,200.00  
Paint Façade  $ 1,690.00  y  $ 1,690.00  
2 Ceiling Fans  $ 600.00  n  $ -    
Wood Clad Ceiling  $ 1,280.00  n  $ -    
Wrought Iron Features  $ 6,800.00  y  $ 6,800.00  
Indochine Signage  $ 5,708.00  y  $ 5,708.00  
New Awning  $ 750.00  y  $ 750.00  
        
   $ 18,028.00  TOTAL  $ 16,148.00  

 

 

  



RESOLUTION 2025-02-06 

PAGE 7 OF 6 

 

Page 7 of 7 
 

FIGURE 2. FAÇADE IMPROVEMENTS AS PROPOSED 

 



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

RESOLUTION 2025-02-06 21 E. ADAMS FAÇADE STAFF REPORT 



DIA STRATEGIC IMPLEMENTATION COMMITTEE 
STAFF REPORT FOR RESOLUTION 2025-02-06 

FAÇADE GRANT 
 
 
Project Name: 21 E Adams Street 

Applicant: 21 E Adams St, LLC 
 Elias Hionides, Manager 

 
Project Location: 21 E Adams Street 
 Jacksonville, Florida 32202 

Estimated Rehabilitation Budget: $18,028 

Eligible Façade Improvement Costs: $16,148 

Maximum Façade Grant Funding (50%): $ 8,074 

 

Project Description: The applicant, 21 E Adams St, LLC, 
managed by Mr. Elias Hionides, purchased the building at 
21 East Adams Street in August 2024, also known as former 
Burrito Gallery Building, from the Gallery Restaurant Group. 
While the Burrito Gallery closed in February of 2024, the 
second-floor tenant, Indochine, remains in business. After 
the building purchase and with new investment in building 
infrastructure by 21 E Adams St, LLC, Indochine signed a 
new 5-year lease.  

Additionally, the first-floor space formerly occupied by the 
original Burrito Gallery is currently being renovated for a 
new tenant, Dorothy’s Downtown, which was approved for 
a targeted Food and Beverage Grant in September 2024 
under the DIA’s Retail Enhancement Program. This Façade 
Project is additional enhancement to the building above 
and beyond the FAB REP grant and its scope.     

The property is located in the Central Core neighborhood across Adams Street from the Jessie Ball duPont 
Center. The two-story building, built in 1910, is a contributing structure to the Historic District but it is not a 
Designated Landmark. 

The applicant proposes improvements to the historic façade to include painting, a new awning, additional 
wrought iron decorative elements, shutters and new signage for Indochine. 

 

 



RESOLUTION 2025-02-06 
PAGE 2 of 4 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Rehabilitation Budget 

 

21 East Adams Street / 
Façade Update       
        
ITEM  COST  ELIGIBLE? ELIGIBLE COSTS 
4 Reclaimed Shutters  $  1,200.00  y  $ 1,200.00  
Paint Façade  $ 1,690.00  y  $ 1,690.00  
2 Ceiling Fans  $ 600.00  n  $  -    
Wood Clad Ceiling  $ 1,280.00  n  $ -    
Wrought Iron Features  $ 6,800.00  y  $ 6,800.00  
Indochine Signage  $ 5,708.00  y  $ 5,708.00  
New Awning  $750.00  y  $ 750.00  
        
   $ 18,028.00  TOTAL  $ 16,148.00  

 

 



RESOLUTION 2025-02-06 
PAGE 3 of 4 
 
The proposed renovations have been reviewed and approved administratively by the Downtown 
Development Review Board. 

Program Considerations: 
In review of this application, it is determined that the property and applicant meet the following 
requirements: 

1. The property was built in 1910 and meets the program requirement of being a minimum of 25 years 
old. 

2. The gross façade of the structure is eligible as a two-
story building. The façade is also eligible for the 
“contributing structure boost”. 

3. Expenditures related to the façade are eligible for 
reimbursement as detailed further in the Exhibit A 
Term Sheet to Resolution 2025-02-06. 

4. In accordance with Façade Grant Guidelines: 
a. Property taxes are current, and the property 

has contributed to Duval County ad valorem 
for more than five years. 

b. Improvements to the property will be made in 
accordance with all applicable codes and 
permits, as approved by the DDRB Staff. Staff 
can approve this type of project without DDRB 
review and approval per SUBPART H. - DOWNTOWN OVERLAY ZONE AND DOWNTOWN 
DISTRICT USE AND FORM REGULATIONS, Sec. 656.361.7.1  

c. Applicant is in good standing with the City, the property is not subject to outstanding 
Municipal Code Compliance liens or violations. 

d. The property has not received other COJ or DIA Funding that would be duplicative with this 
project. As previously state, this property did receive a Targeted Food and Beverage Grant 
under the Retail Enhancement Program but no expenses are duplicative. 

Type 
Total Project 

Costs  Eligible Costs 

Contributing 
Structure 

Boost 

Total Maximum 
funding via 

eligible costs 
calculation 

Facade $18,028 $16,148 N/A 

 

$8,074 

 

Funding eligibility is determined as the lesser of 50% of eligible costs ($16,148 X 50% = $8,074), the square 
footage calculation (53 x 25 = 1,325 sq ft x $32 per = $42,400) or the maximum funding limit of $75,000. 
Accordingly, maximum eligibility is determined to be $8,074 for these proposed façade improvements. 

 “Only storefront façades that have 

street frontage on a public street are 

eligible. “Storefront Facade” refers to 

the exterior façade of entire ground 

floor fronting the sidewalk and public 

street. The second story of the 

building may be eligible if the 

architectural details and construction 

materials of the second story are 

most similar to the first story when 

compared to the rest of the building, 

or if the building is only two-stories 

tall.” 



RESOLUTION 2025-02-06 
PAGE 4 of 4 
 
Funding and compliance under the DIA Storefront Façade Grant in the amount of $8,074 are subject to: 

• The Façade Grant Agreement, or appropriate forgivable loan document, is to be executed not later 
than three (3) months from grantee’s receipt of the Draft Agreements which will establish the Façade 
Grant Agreement Effective Date.  Thereafter, Commencement of Construction of Façade 
Improvements shall occur within three (3) months following the Façade Grant Agreement Effective 
Date. 

• The Façade Grant Agreement shall allow the DIA CEO to extend the performance schedule for up to 
three (3) months in her sole discretion for good cause shown by Applicant. 

• Disbursement will be made following completion and inspection of the work by DIA Staff, to be 
supported by invoices submitted that document the actual expenditure made to complete the 
project substantially in accordance with the application as submitted. 

• Must maintain the improvements in good repair and make ad valorem tax payments for a minimum 
period of five years from the date of funding. 

• If at any point the space is not occupied, the Property Owner shall utilize its best efforts to continue 
to activate the streetscape. This can be accomplished through temporarily attaching art on the 
windows, utilizing the storefront space as an art installation or exhibition, or other creative efforts to 
address street activation. 

• Other terms and conditions as found in the Exhibit A Term Sheet to resolution 2025-02-06. 



TAB III.I 

RESOLUTION 2025-02-07 BAPTIST ALLOCATION OF DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS 



RESOLUTION 2025-02-07 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY (“DIA”) 

EXERCISING ITS AUTHORITY TO NEGOTIATE, ASSIGN AND ALLOCATE 

DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS WITHIN THE CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT 

PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 55, JACKSONVILLE CODE OF ORDINANCES; 

ALLOCATING UP TO ONE HUNDRED THIRTY THOUSAND (130,000) 

SQUARE FEET OF OFFICE/MEDICAL OFFICE TO SOUTHERN BAPTIST 

HOSPITAL OF FLORIDA, INC. OR AFFILIATED ENTITY THEREOF; 

ESTABLISHING PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS AND CLAWBACK 

PROVISIONS; AUTHORIZING THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO 

EXECUTE THE CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS AND OTHERWISE TAKE 

ALL NECESSARY ACTION IN CONNECTION THEREWITH TO 

EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES OF THIS RESOLUTION; PROVIDING AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

  

WHEREAS, through the adoption of Ordinance 2012-0364, the DIA was created to 

serve as the Community Redevelopment Agency for Downtown Jacksonville; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 55 Downtown Investment Authority, Jacksonville 

Code of Ordinances, DIA has the authority to “negotiate, assign and allocate development rights 

within the Central Business District.”; and 

 

WHEREAS, Southern Baptist Hospital of Florida, Inc. is expanding their Downtown 

Campus to include 130,000 square feet of new office/medical office; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Downtown Development Review Board (“DDRB”) approved 

development plans for construction of the new medical facility on January 16, 2025; and 

 

WHEREAS, the available balance of office/medical office entitlements as of the date of 

this resolution is 20,451,997 square feet; and 

 

WHEREAS, the DIA finds this allocation of development rights furthers the following 

Business Investment & Development Strategy Redevelopment Goals: 

 

Redevelopment Goals: No. 1 Increase commercial office utilization, occupancy, and job 

growth to reinforce Downtown as the region’s epicenter for business, 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment Authority  

 

Section 1. The DIA finds that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are 

incorporated herein by this reference. 

 

 

 

 



RESOLUTION 2025-02-07 

PAGE 2 OF 2 
 

Section 2. The DIA hereby allocates up to one hundred thirty thousand (130,000) 

square feet of office/medical office entitlements to Southern Baptist Hospital of Florida, Inc., 

subject to the following: 

 

i. Upon the issuance of the final Certificate of Occupancy or functional equivalent, or in 

the event construction fails to commence within thirty-six (36) months from the 

effective date of this resolution, remaining entitlements allocated by this resolution 

shall return to the DIA without any further action by the City or the DIA. 

 

Section 3. The Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized to execute the contracts 

and documents and otherwise take all necessary action in connection therewith to effectuate the 

purposes of this Resolution.  

 

Section 4. The Effective Date of this Resolution 2025-02-07 is the date upon 

execution of this Resolution by the Chair of the DIA Board. 

 

 

WITNESS:      DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

______________________            

Witness    Patrick Krechowski, Esq., Chair  Date 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

VOTE:  In Favor: ________ Opposed:  _________ Abstained: _______ 

 



TAB III.J 

RESOLUTION 2025-02-08 FORMER LANDING ACCESS AGREEMENT 



 

 

RESOLUTION 2025-02-08 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

(“DIA”) AUTHORIZING ITS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO”) 

TO EXECUTE A SITE ACCESS AGREEMENT (“AGREEMENT”) WITH 

GATEWAY JAX ACQUISITIONS LLC OR AFFILIATED ENTITY 

THEREOF, THEIR AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, EMPLOYEES, 

CONSULTANTS, CONTRACTORS AND SUBCONTRACTORS FOR THE 

PURPOSE OF CONDUCTING DUE DILIGENCE ACTIVITIES, 

INCLUDING ENVIRONMENTAL AND GEOTECHNICAL 

EXPLORATION, SURVEY, UTILITY LOCATION, ETC. FOR  THOSE 

CERTAIN CITY OWNED REAL PROPERTIES IDENTIFIED BY REAL 

ESTATE NUMBERS 074445 0500, 074444 9000, 074444 9020 AND 074445 

0000 TOGETHER WITH THAT AREA UNDER THE MAIN STREET 

BRIDGE EASTERN MOST RAMP AND PORTIONS OF RAL ESTATE 

NUMBERS 074445 07000 AND 074457 1100, COLLECTIVELY 

REFERRED TO HEREIN AS “THE PROPERTY” AND ILLUSTRATED 

BY EXIHIBT ‘A’; AUTHORIZING ITS CEO TO NEGOTIATE TERMS 

AND CONDITIONS PRIOR TO EXECUTION OF A SITE ACCESS 

AGREEMENT; INSTRUCTING ITS CEO TO OBTAIN APPROVAL 

FROM THE CITY’S RISK MANAGER, DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 

AND THE OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNCIL PRIOR TO EXECUTION 

OF THE  AGREEMENT; INSTRUCTING THE CEO TO TAKE ALL 

NECESSARY ACTION TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSE OF THIS 

RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 

  

WHEREAS, through the adoption of Ordinance 2014-560-E the City assigned 

management of certain City-owned properties and buildings to the DIA; and  

 

WHEREAS, from time to time it is requested of the DIA’s Chief Executive Officer to 

allow for temporary use of its managed properties by others for such purposes as conducting due 

diligence activities in advance of disposition of property; and 

 

WHEREAS, the DIA adopted Resolution 2017-07-04, which set parameters for the 

execution of Access Agreements by its Chief Executive Officer, establishing that Access 

Agreements that include environmental, geotechnical, and other invasive due diligence activities, 

or Access Agreements that have terms for greater than six (6) months, require approval by the 

DIA Board prior to execution by its Chief Executive Officer; and 

 

WHEREAS, Gateway Jax Acquisitions, LLC, has requested access to the Property for 

the purposes of performing tasks commonly associated with real property due diligence; and 

 

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

 



RESOLUTION 2025-02-08 

PAGE 2 OF 4 

 

WHEREAS, via Resolution 2025-02-04, having been provided a term sheet negotiated 

between its Chief Executive Officer Gateway Jax Acquisitions, LLC, the Downtown Investment 

Authority has instructed its Chief Executive Officer to issue a Notice of Disposition for the 

Property in accordance with the adopted Negotiated Disposition process, 

  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment Authority: 

 

 Section 1. The DIA finds that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are 

incorporated herein by this reference.   

 

 Section 2. DIA hereby authorizes its Chief Executive Officer to execute a site Access 

Agreement to conditionally grant to Gateway Jax Acquisitions, LLC, its agents, representatives, 

employees, consultants, contractors, and subcontractors a limited license for access to enter upon 

those City-Owned properties illustrated in Exhibit A and more fully described by Duval County 

Real Estate Numbers 074445 0500, 074444 9000, 074444 9020 AND 074445 0000 together with 

that area under the Main Street Bridge eastern most ramp and portion of Real Estate Numbers 

074445 07000 AND 074457 1100.  

 

The due diligence scope shall be limited to those activities approved by the Director of Public 

Works, the Office of General Counsel and the DIA Chief Executive Officer in advance of 

commencement of such work. The due diligence activities shall be at no cost to DIA nor the City 

and shall be coordinated with the City’s Public Works Department and the DIA Chief Executive 

Officer. Any due diligence activities within fifty feet (50’) of the Main Street Bridge, including 

its ramps, shall be coordinated with and approved by the FDOT prior to commencement. Such 

proof of approval shall be provided to the DIA Chief Executive Officer and the Director of 

Public Works prior to commencement of such activities. Any due diligence activities west of the 

Main Street Bridge will be coordinated with the City’s Construction Engineering Inspection firm 

and the City’s Construction Manager at Risk for the Riverfront Plaza Park.  

 

Section 3. The Access Agreement shall continue for one, six (6) month period 

beginning at execution of the Access Agreement and will expire without any further action by 

the City or the DIA, unless the Access Agreement term is extended in writing by the DIA Chief 

Executive Officer, whose ability to extend the term shall be limited to up to an additional ninety 

(90) days. 

 

Section 4. The DIA authorizes its Chief Executive Officer to negotiate additional 

terms and conditions prior to execution of an Access Agreement, providing that those terms and 

conditions are consistent with the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 5. Prior to execution of an Agreement by the DIA Chief Executive Officer 

and Mayor, they shall first obtain approvals of the Access Agreement by the City’s Risk 

Manager, Director of Public Works and the Office of General Counsel. 

 

Section 6.      This Resolution is predicated on the requirement that the DIA Chief 

Executive Officer, the Director of Public Works and the Office of General Counsel shall receive 



RESOLUTION 2025-02-08 

PAGE 3 OF 4 

 

copies of all reports, work products and other information that results from this grant of site 

Access Agreement.  

 

Section 7.     This Resolution shall become effective on the date it is signed by the Chair 

of the DIA Board. 

 

 

 

WITNESS:      DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

______________________            

Witness    Patrick Krechowski, Esq., Chair  Date 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

VOTE:  In Favor: ________ Opposed:  ________ Abstained: ______ 

 

 



RESOLUTION 2025-02-08 

PAGE 4 OF 4 

 

RESOLUTION 2025-02-08 

EXHIBIT A 

 
 



TAB IV.A  

JANAURY 31ST, 2025 DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY MEETING 
MINUTES APPROVAL 



 
 

PAGE 1 OF 4 

 

Downtown Investment Authority 

Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting 

Friday, January 31st, 2025, 9:00 a.m. 

Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting 

MEETING MINUTES 

 

DIA Board Members: Patrick Krechowski, Esq.; Micah Heavener; Sondra Fetner, Esq.; Scott Wohlers, 

Jim Citrano; Jill Caffey; and John Hirabayashi 

 

Mayor’s Office: None 

 

Council Members: None 

 

DIA Staff: Lori Boyer, Chief Executive Officer; Steve Kelley, Director of Downtown Real Estate and 

Development; Guy Parola, Director of Operations; and Ava Hill, Administrative Assistant 

 

Office of General Counsel: John Sawyer, Esq. 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

Board Chair Krechowski called to order the Downtown Investment Authority Meeting at 9:41 AM.  

 

II. DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

 

A. DECEMBER 18TH, 2024, DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY MEETING 

MINUTES APPROVAL 

 

Board Chair Krechowski called for a motion to approve the meeting minutes as presented. 

 

Motion:  Board Member Citrano motioned to approve the meeting minutes. 

Seconded:         Board Member Wohlers seconded the motion. 

 

Seeing no discussion, Board Chair Krechowski called for a vote. 

 

Vote:  Aye: 7  Nay: 0  Abstain: 0  

 

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 7-0-0 

 

B. RESOLUTION 2025-01-05 WATER STREET GARAGE PARKING FOR CITIZENS  

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY ("DIA") 

INSTRUCTING ITS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER ("CEO") AND THE CITY'S 

PUBLIC PARKING OFFICER TO PREPARE AND FILE 

LEGISLATIONAUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OFLEASE OF UP TOI,107 

PARKING SPACES WITHIN THE WATER STREET GARAGE TO ANY OFFEROR 

WHO MAY BE THE SUCCESSFUL BIDDER IN CITIZENS PROPERTY INSURANCE 

CORPORATION ITN No. 24-0031 (the "ITN"), FOR THE TERM OF SAID OFFICE 

LEASE AT THE AUTHORIZED DISCOUNTED RA TE THEREFOR OR SUCH LOWER 



 
 

PAGE 2 OF 4 

 

Downtown Investment Authority 

Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting 

Friday, January 31st, 2025, 9:00 a.m. 

RA TE AS MAY BE NEGOTIATED BY THE DIA AND AS APPROVED BY CITY 

COUNCIL; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

CEO Lori Boyer explained that Citizens Property Insurance is considering relocating upon lease 

expiration and issued an ITN, initially for Southside but later including Downtown. Downtown 

property owners interested in bidding asked about parking availability in the Water Street Garage. 

To support Downtown occupancy, letters confirmed available parking at a discounted rate, with 

potential for further negotiation through City Council. She concluded that the resolution aimed to 

help retain citizens Downtown.  

 

Board Chair Krechowski opened the floor for discussion. 

 

Board Member Fetner asked if the offer be non-transferable, so that it's only applying to citizens.  

She added that she wanted to make sure they weren’t giving up too many spaces. CEO Boyer’s 

response was yes and then explained. 

 

Board Member Wohlers asked what DIA was currently operating out of this garage, if they are at a 

net profit net loss or breaking even. CEO Boyer responded that they are operating out of a loss and 

explained. Board Member Wohlers also asked how many spaced would need to be leased to be 

considered profitable. CEO Boyer responded that the lease alone would make it profitable. 

 

Board Chair Krechowski asked CEO Boyer to clarify that they were not offering all the spaces. 

CEO Boyer responded that he was correct. 

 

Board Member Caffey asked how long the lease would be active and if it could be renegotiated. 

CEO Boyer responded that she’d get back to her with the timeframe and that it would renew in five 

years. 

 

Board Chair Krechowski called for a motion on the resolution. 

 

Motion: Board Member Wohlers motioned to approve the resolution.  

Seconded: Board Member Heavener seconded the motion. 

 

Seeing no further discussion, Board Chair Krechowski called for a vote on the resolution. 

 

Vote:  Aye: 7  Nay: 0  Abstain: 0 

 

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 7-0-0 

 

C. RESOLUTION 2025-01-06 URBAN DOUGH EXTENSION  

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY ("DIA") 

AMENDING THE PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE CONTAINED WITHIN THE TERM 

SHEET BETWEEN THE DIA ("GRANTOR") AND URBAN DOUGH, LLC AND 

VYSTAR CREDIT UNION ("GRANTEE"), APPROVED VIA RESOLUTION 2024-04-08; 

AUTHORIZING THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER ("CEO") OF THE DIA TO TAKE 



 
 

PAGE 3 OF 4 

 

Downtown Investment Authority 

Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting 

Friday, January 31st, 2025, 9:00 a.m. 

ALL NECESSARY ACTION TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES OF THIS 

RESOLUTION AND THE PURPOSES OF RESOLUTION 2024-04-08, INCLUDING BUT 

NOT LIMITED TO EXECUTION OF AGREEMENTS; PROVIDING FOR AN 

EFFECTIVE DA TE. 

 

Mr. Steve Kelley explained that the agreements approved in April 2020 had set deadlines to ensure 

progress. Extensions were requested in October as they weren’t finalized, with the latest deadline 

being January 17, 2025, for Better Pizza Dough and the Pour Tap Room. He added that since that 

date has passed, an additional three-month extension to April is being sought. 

 

Board Chair Krechowski called for a motion on the resolution. 

 

Motion: Board Member Citrano motioned to approve the resolution.  

Seconded: Board Member Wohlers seconded the motion. 

 

Seeing no discussion, Board Chair Krechowski called for a vote on the resolution. 

 

Vote:  Aye: 7  Nay: 0  Abstain: 0 

 

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 7-0-0 

 

D. RESOLUTION 2025-01-07 GATHER TAP LLC EXTENSION  

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY ("DIA") 

AMENDING THE PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE CONTAINED WITHIN THE TERM 

SHEET BETWEEN THE DIA ("GRANTOR") AND GATHERTAP, LLC AND VYSTAR 

CREDIT UNION ("GRANTEE"), APPROVED VIA RESOLUTION 2024-04-07; 

AUTHORIZING THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER ("CEO") OF THE DIA TO TAKE 

ALL NECESSARY ACTION TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES OF THIS 

RESOLUTION AND THE PURPOSES OF RESOLUTION 2024-04-07, INCLUDING BUT 

NOT LIMITED TO EXECUTION OF AGREEMENTS; PROVIDING FOR AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

(Similar to Resolution 2025-01-06, the previously approved agreement required deadline 

extensions.) 

 

Board Chair Krechowski called for a motion on the resolution. 

 

Motion: Board Member Heavener motioned to approve the resolution.  

Seconded: Board Member Wohlers seconded the motion. 

 

Seeing no discussion, Board Chair Krechowski called for a vote on the resolution. 

 

Vote:  Aye: 7  Nay: 0  Abstain: 0 

 

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 7-0-0 



 
 

PAGE 4 OF 4 

 

Downtown Investment Authority 

Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting 

Friday, January 31st, 2025, 9:00 a.m. 

 

 

III. CEO INFORMATIONAL BRIEFING 

 

A. OLD AND NEW BUSINESS 

 

None. 

 

B. DOWNTOWN PROJECT UPDATE AND CEO REPORT 

 

Using a PowerPoint presentation, CEO Boyer provided project updates and then reviewed the 

following items: 

 

➢ Special Committee on Downtown 

➢ Staffing 

➢ Professional Services contracts 

➢ Capital Projects update 

➢ Development Updates 

➢ Conversations with University of Florida 

 

Board Chair Krechowski asked if there was a Special Committee Meeting scheduled for January. 

CEO Boyer responded that there was no Special Committee Meeting scheduled at that time. 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

After expressing his appreciation for everyone’s involvement, Board Chair Krechowski adjourned 

the DIA meeting at 10:29 PM. 

 

The written minutes for this meeting are only an overview of what was discussed.  For verbatim comments 

of this meeting, a recording is available upon request.  Please contact Ava Hill at avah@coj.net to 

acquire a recording of the meeting. 

mailto:avah@coj.net


TAB IV.B.a 

RESOLUTION 2025-02-09 LAVILLA SOUNDS EVENT SPONSORSHIP



RESOLUTION 2025-02-09 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY (“DIA”) 
AUTHORIZING A FIVE THOUSAND DOLLAR ($5,000.00) EVENT 
CONTRIBUTION TO PLACEMAKING AND EQUITY FUND, INC. TO SUPPORT 
LAVILLA SOUNDS; AUTHORIZING THESE FUNDS FROM THE DIA FISCAL 
YEAR 2024-2025 ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET’S EVENT CONTRIBUTION 
FUNDS; AUTHORIZING ITS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO TAKE ALL 
NECESSARY ACTIONS TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSE OF THIS 
RESOLUTION, INCLUDING EXECUTION OF AN EVENT CONTRIBUTION 
AGREEMENT OR FUNCTIONAL EQUIVALENT THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the mission of the DIA is, “To drive growth in business and investment, 

create a vibrant urban living environment and enhance quality of life in Downtown Jacksonville 
through the transparent and responsible leveraging of public investments, assets, infrastructure, 
and policy”; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the efforts of the DIA seek to facilitate success towards achieving 
Community Redevelopment Area Goals in support of the aforementioned mission. Specifically:  

 
Redevelopment Goal No. 4 Increase the vibrancy of Downtown for residents and visitors 
through arts, culture, history, sports, theater, events, parks, and attractions; and 
 
WHEREAS, activation of Downtown is essential to implementation of the adopted BID 

and CRA Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Placemaking and Equity Fund, Inc. is a non-profit, non-partisan, 

organization that is “dedicated to supporting a sense of belonging for all residents in Jacksonville, 
Florida. The Placemaking & Equity Fund aims to achieve this by promoting increased access to 
public spaces and diverse and enriching programming of those spaces.”; and 

 
WHEREAS LaVilla Sounds is a free community arts and music festival honoring Black 

History Month through entertainment that recognizes LaVilla’s rich history; and 
 

WHEREAS, the arts and music festival will take place Saturday, February 22nd from 11 
a.m. to 6 p.m. at Lift Ev’ry Voice and Sing Park; and  
 

WHEREAS, throughout the day, the festival will feature family-friendly festivities, 
entertainment, food trucks and hands-on activities, including: Special Formula Band, R&B singer 
Alyson Williams, Florida A&M University Concert Choir, Games We Play with Queen Nur, 
Yohannas Performing Arts Company, DJ Charles Scantling and Brenda’s Line Dance Crew and 
more;and 
 

WHEREAS, DIA seeks to support LaVilla Sounds via the event’s silver sponsorship level, 
totaling five thousand dollars ($5,000); and  

 
WHEREAS, the DIA Board via Resolution 2022-04-02 authorizes certain contributions 

to private organizations and sponsorships of events that take place in Downtown and/or further the 



RESOLUTION 2025-02-09 
PAGE 2 OF 2 

Business Investment and Development Plan and do not exceed Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) 
per event or sponsorship, subject to available budgeted funds to proceed directly to the Board for 
consideration on the Consent Agenda; 

   
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Downtown Investment Authority: 

 
Section 1.  The DIA authorizes a contribution of five thousand dollars ($5,000) to the 

Placemaking and Equity Fund, Inc. in accordance with Exhibit ‘A’. 
 
Section 2.   The DIA authorizes its Chief Executive Officer to take all necessary actions 

to effectuate the purpose of this Resolution.  
 

Section 3.  This Resolution shall become effective on the date it is signed by the Chair 
of the DIA Board. 

 
 
WITNESS:              DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________  _______________________________  _____________ 
          Patrick Krechowski, Chair            Date 
 
 
 
 
 
VOTE:  In Favor: ____ Opposed:  ____ Abstained: _____ 



January 28, 2025 

Downtown Investment Authority 
Lori Boyer, CEO 
City Hall at St. James Building  
117 West Duval Street # 310  
Jacksonville, Florida 32202 

Mrs. Boyer, 

The community event announced at the Lift Ev’ry Voice and Sing Rededication Ceremony is 
scheduled for February 22, 2025. We would greatly appreciate DIA’s support via event sponsorship. 
Event details and sponsorship levels included below.   

Event Details 

The City of Jacksonville, the Jessie Ball duPont Fund and Florida Blue invites the community to 
LaVilla’s Lift Ev’ry Voice and Sing Park for a free arts and music festival on Saturday, February 22 
from 11 a.m. to 6 p.m. at 120 Lee Street. Rain or shine, LaVilla Sounds Presented by Florida Blue will 
feature a variety of entertainment and activities that celebrate and honor LaVilla’s rich history.  
“In honor of Black History Month, this festival brings our community together to create a space 
where history is not just remembered, but it is celebrated and helps inspire the next generation,” 
said Carol Alexander, president and chief executive officer of MaBu Culture and host of the event. 
“LaVilla Sounds will honor LaVilla’s role in history, the greater Jacksonville community and beyond 
through a day filled with music, gathering and fun.”  

Throughout the day, the festival will feature family-friendly festivities, entertainment, food trucks and 
hands-on activities, including: 

Special Formula Band 
R&B Singer Alyson Williams  
Florida A&M University Concert Choir 
Games We Play with Queen Nur 
Yohannas Performing Arts Company 
DJ Charles Scantling and Brenda’s Line Dance Crew 

No goods or services were provided in exchange for this contribution. The Placemaking and Equity Fund, Inc. is an exempt organization 
as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code; EIN #87-2882720.

EXHIBIT A



 

LaVilla Sounds presented by Florida Blue is also made possible thanks to the generous contributions 
of the City of Jacksonville, EverBank and the Jessie Ball duPont Fund.  
 
“At Florida Blue, we believe that arts and culture have the power to bring people together and foster 
a sense of community," said Darnell Smith, Market President for North Florida at Florida Blue. "We're 
proud to support LaVilla Sounds and celebrate the rich history and heritage of LaVilla, and we look 
forward to a fun-filled day of music, entertainment, and connection with our neighbors." 
 
In June 2024, the City of Jacksonville celebrated the official re-dedication of the Lift Ev’ry Voice and 
Sing Park, which reimagined the birth site of James Weldon Johnson and J. Rosamond Johnson. Not 
only did the brothers write and compose “Lift Ev’ry Voice and Sing,” which is now recognized by the 
NAACP as the “Black National Anthem,” but they also earned national recognition for civil rights 
activism and composing more than 200 popular musical pieces, respectively.    
 
Visit https://www.levsparkjax.org/ and follow Lift Ev’ry Voice and Sing Park on Instagram, X and 
Facebook for more information.  
 
Thank you for your consideration, 
 

 
Laura Phillips Edgecombe 
Principal, Downtown Public Spaces, Jessie Ball duPont Fund // EoL, CIty of Jacksonville  
ledgecombe@dupontfund.org 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

No goods or services were provided in exchange for this contribution. The Placemaking and Equity Fund, Inc. is an exempt organization 
as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code; EIN #87-2882720. 

 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

No goods or services were provided in exchange for this contribution. The Placemaking and Equity Fund, Inc. is an exempt organization 
as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code; EIN #87-2882720. 

 
 
 



 

LaVilla Sounds 
Sponsorship Opportunities 

 
Benefits   Title Stage Platinum Gold Silver 
Level   $25,000 $15,000 $10,000 $7,000 $5,000 
        
Naming   Presented By Stage VIP n/a n/a 

Meet and 
Greet   yes yes yes n/a n/a 

VIP Tickets   10 8 8 5 2 
Stage 
Commercial    4 times 3 times 2 times 1 time n/a 

10x10 Tent 
Space   2 spaces 1 space 1 space 1 space n/a 

Marketing 

  

 
logo lockup 

press release 
radio 

television 
email 

marketing 
website 

social media 
onsite signage 

stage 
announcement 

{every break} 

press release 
email 

marketing 
website 

social media 
onsite signage 

stage 
announcement 

{every break} 

press release 
email 

marketing 
website 

social media 
onsite signage 

stage 
announcement 

{half the 
breaks} 

press release 
email 

marketing 
website 

social media 
onsite signage 

stage 
announcement 

{half the 
breaks} 

email marketing 
website 

social media 
onsite signage 

stage 
announcement 
{quarter of the 

breaks} 

Other 
Custom 
Benefits per 
Sponsor 

  yes yes yes yes yes 

 

 
 
 
 

No goods or services were provided in exchange for this contribution. The Placemaking and Equity Fund, Inc. is an exempt organization 
as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code; EIN #87-2882720. 

 
 
 


	Structure Bookmarks
	 




